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COMPANY PROFILE
o

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited (the “Company” together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) is mainly engaged in the manufacturing and sales of lead-acid motive batteries
and other related products. These batteries are widely used in electric bikes, electric
vehicles, special-purpose electric vehicles, etc. The Group also manufactures and sells
storage batteries and lithium-ion batteries. It is one of the very few enterprises which has
successfully adopted the enclosed battery formation process in large scale production.

Headquartered in Changxing, Zhejiang Province, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”
or "China”"), the Group’s manufacturing facilities are strategically located in regions with
higher demand for lead-acid motive batteries, including Shandong, Jiangsu, Henan,
Zhejiang, Anhui, Jiangxi and Hebei Provinces in the PRC.

The primary market of the Group features top electric bike manufacturers highlighted by
Yadea, Evermaster and Luyuan, and its secondary market is supported by a nationwide
distribution network covering various provinces in the PRC. The Group has achieved total
cadmium-free production by the end of 2013, in fulfillment of its corporate social
responsibility as a green enterprise.
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Mr. Zhou Mingming
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Grand Cayman, KY1-1205
Cayman Islands
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Zhejiang Province, PRC
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Unit 1308A, 13/F, Lippo Sun Plaza

28 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKS
China Construction Bank, Changxing Jie Fang Dong Road Sub-branch
Bank of China, Changxing County Sub-branch

LEGAL ADVISERS
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AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
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Wanchai, Hong Kong
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

£z ab
15 Ha 22
CONSOLIDATED (RMB'000) BB (ARBTT)
For the year ended 31 December
HEt+t-A=t+—HILFE
D18 2017
—T—+F
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
R ARKETT
Revenue WA 26,948,237 24,654,011
Gross Profit EH 3,235,268 2,922,633
Profit attributable to the owners of the Company A2 RIHEAG A FE(LFE 412,714 454816
Earnings per share — Basic BRAEF -EXR RMB0.37 RMBO0.41
ARM¥o037T | AR¥o41T
Proposed final dividend per share EREFR RS HK$0.066 RMBO0.062
0.066 BT | AR¥00627T
REVENUE (RMB in million) WA ARBEET)
2018 ‘
2017 ‘
REVENUE BREAKDOWN BY PRODUCT WAEE?{%%
(RMB in million  Proportion of total revenue) (ARBBET (GBlALLA)

Li-ion Battery

Electric Vehicle Battery

ERE TR and Special-purpose
g Electric Vehicle Battery

2.94% BEEEEMRERAR
791 EPEEM
0.94% 5200 19.29%
232
4492 18.22%

Electric Bike Battery Others
BEHRITEEM i
7205% 19417 1541 5.72%
(208 @ e 2018
73.42% 18100 1830 /.42%
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GARNERING AWARDS FOR
OUTSTANDING ACHIEVEMENTS
ARRR  BIENRER

NATIONAL MODEL ENTERPRISE OF FORTUNE TOP 500
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Advocate GREEN ENERGY
Perfect HUMAN LIFE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FIBIRS

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors” oreachthe R AZBREXANFTEEZ([EE | HZB8AE K[ E
"Director”) of the Company, | am pleased to present to shareholdersthe ZH )@ ([EE€ ) AIZUIRERAIZEEARNER
annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the #HZE-—ZT—NF+_A=+—HItFE(LAFE])
"Year"). CEEEEWRE -

The business of the Group continued to see healthy growth during the

AEE  AREXGRHERRER  E88E

Year, achieving, in particular:

10

Steady growth with revenue reaching approximately RMB26,948
million, representing an increase of 9.3% as compared with the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Maintained leadership in the industry and continued to be included
on numerous domestic and international esteemed lists of best
Chinese enterprises and ranked first on several lists of Chinese
battery enterprises.

Maintained leadership in technology and received honors and
awards including being recognized as one of the “Global Top 500
New Energy Enterprises” (% 3k ¥ 82 JR & 3£ 50058 ) jointly named
by China Energy News and the China Institute of Energy Economics
Research and also received the “2018 Contribution Award of New
Energy Technology” (2018 ¥ 8¢ JR 3% fi BT 58 tH B BA #2) from the
National Lead-acid Battery Standardization Technology Committee.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRIMS

The Group made such achievements due to the stable development of the
Chinese economy during the Year. The country’s gross domestic product
(GDP) increased by 6.6% in 2018, urbanization continued in steady strides
and per capita consumption expenditure also grew, all bracing stable
growth in demand for electric bikes, electric tricycles, special-purpose
electric vehicles and in turn demand for related lead-acid motive batteries.
Additionally, the Chinese government gradually tightens specification
requirements of the aforementioned types of vehicle in terms of safety and
environmental protection, which drives upgrade and emergence of new
generation of these electric vehicles and leads to an increase in market
demand for related battery products.

As for the Group, with production facilities strategically and extensively
deployed in regions with higher demand for lead-acid motive batteries
and a nationwide sales and distribution network covering all primary and
secondary markets, the Group has strived to maintain a flat structure in
management of distributors and implemented delicacy management, as a
result, it has strengthened its sales channels as well as profitability. Such
efforts have also helped boost the reputation and influence of the
"CHILWEE" brand and enabled the Group to maintain competitiveness in
the market.

The Group has remained steadfast in implementing its technology-driven
development strategy. During the Year, its top-notch research and
development ("R&D") team kept exerting on developing technologies to
the ends of improving product performance and production technologies,
enhancing the core competitiveness of the Group and facilitating quality
business development.

On behalf of the Group, | would like to express my gratitude to our
shareholders, customers and business partners for their long-time support
and faith in the Group. | would also like to thank the Board, the
management team and our staff for their remarkable contribution to the
Group. With the care and support of our stakeholders, and at the concerted
effort of the management team and all staff members, in 2019, the Group
will continue to put its full effort into enhancing its integrated strength,
and with a market-oriented approach, strive to steadily develop its existing
core business and also explore new business opportunities so as to lay a
solid foundation for sustainable development of the Group.

AREBERAFERE LMKE TEGENTE
KERE#HR PR N\FERANEELE
(GDP)IE R iZ6.6% * FrEMBILIREER M AH
ERAS XHEHATE  EH=—WEMEFKRA
BEARBERNEE HERNTRFRIER - N
LERUEHBETE  EH=—MENFHKRAGRE
MZEMERRRENERRBEH RS - #£—
FHBELEDHENTRRNK - THTEHEH
BHEMRNFTL

SN REBBEBBUENEERD  BLEER
EZHAEEMRS NELFTRESMEE - I
BEZEZZMREEE I HEN  2EEE—
FmHER_ETE  AEBEEHEHBERR
T FRAMEERE - RIEASBEHEEE - BN
BAEES - ARGRE [HBR Mg A E - 75
EEEN  EAREEERSEMSRT

AEBMERBRBHZALHEREE  BFEIR
RO RFAE (T EE  RAFERER
DRI - U EERMEEEMAEERM -
—TRAREENZOBEF S BOLENS M
HERE-

AANERERAEE  HABRR - FF  4F%
HHORMXFEEERTRONRN - FE bR
HEFE EHEMZBETIZUMNER - £1
EEANBLNXTT  E-T—-NF ~&E
EREEKLREREISSEELT 0L 270
A IR RN EE WSS E S - UMiEAER
REZRBEZLES  UHAORAFHEH
RASENFERRETEENER -

BEBHERERRF / 201843 11




An industry pioneer in

"GREEN PRODUCTION"
T BRI ITHE

BB [BEEE]







MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB RKE NI

The Group's production facilities have been
strategically located in regions with higher
demand of lead-acid motive batteries
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEEsVam M

The Group engages principally in manufacturing and sales of lead-acid
motive batteries, lithium-ion batteries and other related products, which
are primarily used in electric bikes, electric tricycles and special purpose
electric vehicles.

With advanced production processing and technologies, a strong brand
recognition and an efficient distribution network, the Group has
maintained leadership in the industry. The Group is committed to
upgrading its production technologies for battery products, and through
technological exchange and cooperation with world-leading companies to
develop superior battery products, the Group keeps an ongoing effort to
enhance the Group's core competitiveness in meeting ever-changing
requirements of the developing market.

INDUSTRY REVIEW

Stable demand for electric bikes

Electric bikes have the advantages of being inexpensive, small in size,
convenient and energy efficient, hence, together with electric tricycles and
mini electric vehicles, they are important daily means of transportation in
third-tier and fourth-tier cities, towns and rural areas. Alongside continuous
development of the society, stable progress of urbanisation, the improving
transportation network and increasing per capita consumption in the PRC,
market demands for all types of electric vehicles have been growing
steadily. According to reports of the market research company Frost &
Sullivan ("F&S"), the sales volume and ownership of electric bikes in the PRC
are expected to grow at a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of
approximately 5.2% and 4.0% between 2016 and 2021, respectively.

Demand for electric tricycles growing consistently

The aging of the population is an irreversible trend in the PRC, a trend that
will brace the demand for small electric tricycles as a preferred
transportation means for the elderly, and rapid development of the courier
and logistics industries is pushing up demand for large electric tricycles
used for short-haul goods transportation. Furthermore, development of
the storage and logistics industries has been driving continuous growth in
demand for electric forklifts. And, according to the "Action Plan for
Comprehensive Treatment of Air Pollution in Autumn and Winter 2018-
2019 in Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region and Surrounding Areas” ( 5 % X J&
BHIE2018-2019FKREFARTRAGEABERBTH T R),
effective from 1 October 2018, additional or replacement vehicles for
public transportation, environmental, hygiene and postal services, and
additional or replacement working vehicles in ports, airports and railway
freight areas in the urban built-up areas should primarily be new-energy or
clean-energy vehicles. This new policy is expected to stimulate sales of
special-purpose electric vehicles and related batteries.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SREN =R ISEaY i

Stable demand for lead-acid batteries

Given its merits including cryotolerance, safety, cost-efficiency and
recyclability, as well as extensive applications, the lead-acid battery is well
ahead of other battery types in market penetration and applicability.
Currently, the majority of electric bikes in the PRC are powered by lead-acid
batteries. With the market demand for electric bikes and special-purpose
vehicles, stable and lead-acid motive batteries have a certain lifespan and
need to be replaced after exhaustion, the demand for lead-acid motive
batteries has remained stable. According to the F&S report, the sales
volume of lead-acid batteries for electric bikes in the PRC is expected to
grow at a CAGR of 5.4% between 2016 and 2021.

Policy-driven business opportunities for lithium-ion battery

In May 2018, the amended “Safety Technical Specification for Electric
BENATEL 2 HITIRE) of the PRC was published. The new
standards, more stringent on the safety performance of electric bikes and
require full mandatory compliance, as opposed to mandatory compliance
with only selected clauses in the previous version, will officially take effect

Bicycle” (

on 15 April 2019. In Zhejiang Province, the PRC, a transitional period for
adoption of the new national standards for electric bikes began on 1
November 2018 and will end on 31 December 2021, which gives a three-
year transitional period to those who had bought or have been using non-
compliant electric bikes. The new standards impose strict regulations over
production specifications and the riding of electric bikes nationwide. As a
result, non-compliant products will be eliminated, thereby will drive the
upgrade and emergence of new generation electric bikes. As such, market
demand for lithium-ion batteries will increase in the long run.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Battery sales kept growing

Lead-acid motive batteries are the principal products of the Group. As one
of the benchmark enterprises in the industry of lead-acid motive batteries,
the Group has focused consistently on enhancing product quality and
specifications to maintain its industry leadership, hence its revenue from
the sales of lead-acid motive batteries has kept growing. For the Year,
revenue from sales of lead-acid motive batteries amounted to
approximately RMB24,617 million, representing growth of approximately
9.0% year-on-year. Revenue from sales of electric bike batteries amounted
to approximately RMB19,417 million, representing growth of approximately
7.3% year-on-year. Revenue from sales of electric tricycle batteries and
special-purpose electric vehicle batteries amounted to approximately
RMB5,200 million, representing growth of approximately 15.8% year-on-
year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB R R

Lithium-ion battery products generated sales revenue of approximately
RMB791 million for the Group during the Year, representing growth of
approximately 241.2% year-on-year. The Group has adopted a pouch-type
technique in manufacturing lithium-ion batteries, giving the products
excellent performance, a high level of safety-in-use and specific energy,
conducive to lightweight development and prolonging battery mileage.
The Group will persist in upgrading its research technologies and focus on
production quality in its bid to become a manufacturer armed with
sophisticated technologies and craftsmanship for producing lithium-ion
batteries.

EHTENER B AFE  EAREEER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB RKE NI

Distribution of Independent Distributors of CHILWEE and JINCHAOWE]
[FEE ] M [ 2R B A o

Q CHILWEE
Q JINCHAOWEI

Total number of independent distributors for the “CHILWEE " brand (including CHILWEE,
JINCHAOWEI and JINTAIYANG) in secondary markets

HEmE (BRBE - @B - 2A5) —fAm5BE K HEAR

2018 QU ) 2,558
2017 Q) 2,135
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEEsVam M

Cemented industry leadership

Boasting excellent technological innovation capability, brand influence and
market competitiveness in the energy storage sector, the Group’s industry
position has been highly recognised by the PRC government and the
industry. In addition to continuing to be included on the lists of “Top 500
Chinese Enterprises” (H Bl 1b % 50054 ), “Top 500 Chinese Private Owned
Enterprises” (1 B IR & 1b % 50054 ) and "Top 500 Enterprises of China’s
Manufacturing Industry” (% B 838 2 1 28 50058 ), the Group also made
it among the “Fortune Top 500 Chinese Companies” ({81 & ) A7 B 500 38)
in the Year. Furthermore, the Group was named as “Top 100 Enterprises in
China Light Industry” (AP B &% T % 5 58 1 %) and the top enterprise in
the battery sector among the “Top 100 Enterprises of China Light Industry
in R&D capability”. And, for the sixth consecutive year, the Group placed
first among the “Top 10 Enterprises of New Energy Battery Industry in China
Light Industries” (FR BI8E T 2 ¥T8EJR B M 1T 3 T 5812 ). Moreover, as a
forerunner in the new energy sector, the Group was named among the
“Global Top 500 New Energy Enterprises” (2 BR#T8E R 12 3 500 38) for the
Year by China Energy News and the China Institute of Energy Economics. It
also received the “Outstanding Contribution Award for Innovation in New
Energy 2018" (2018 ¥ B JR £ 11 &1 %7 58 i B Bt £2) from the All-China
Lead-acid Battery Standardisation Technology Committee, another
testament to its industry leadership underpinned by the “leading
technological strength of Chaowei".

Brand influence enhanced through excellent sales
management

The Group has a nationwide sales and distribution network covering all
primary and secondary markets in the PRC. For the primary market, it has
established a premier customer service department to serve major electric
bike manufacturers. Comprehensive services are provided, such as regular
visits with the management of these manufacturers, assignment of
dedicated sales representatives and provision of services in technical
support and technological upgrades. The Group's major customers in the
primary market included Yadea, Luyuan and Evermaster. In addition, the
Group has an extensive distribution network, allowing it to sell the
products to different provinces across the PRC. As at 31 December 2018, it
had a total of 2,558 independent distributors in the secondary market.

The production facilities of the Group are strategically placed close to its
markets with strong demand for lead-acid motive batteries, including
Shandong, Jiangsu, Henan, Zhejiang, Anhui, Jiangxi and Hebei Provinces in
the PRC. This strategy allows the Group to save storage and logistics costs
and enhance efficiency and profitability, while seizing market opportunities
with greater flexibility.
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The Group has continued to adopt a market-driven agency mechanism,
allowing it to remove sales channel intermediaries and implement delicacy
management to enhance its sales channel and increase profitability. It is
also able to improve customer service by continuously enhancing the
technical training and consultation services it offers to distributors. The
Group has continued to engage renowned movie star Mr. Donnie Yen as
the brand ambassador to help strengthen the reputation and influence of
the “CHILWEE” brand to earn the trust of customers and consumers.

Investing in technology R&D to maintain technical edge

The Group's core competitive strength is innovation, thus it is committed
to the pursuit of technology R&D and technological upgrades. The Group’s
R&D expenses for the Year amounted to approximately RMB885 million,
equivalent to approximately 3.3% of the Group's total revenue. As at 31
December 2018, the Group owned 1,708 patents and had submitted
application for 398 patents.

The Group is determined to build a top-notch R&D team thus has been
actively recruiting world-class professionals for the team. As at 31
December 2018, the Group had on the team more than 20 reputed local
and foreign experts, 5 of whom were brought in via the “Program of One
Thousand Talent (F A & Zl)". In addition, the Group was named as
National Model Enterprise of Technology Innovation (B85 £ i &1l #7 /R £
182 and National Model Enterprise of Intellectual Property (BIZR 1585 &
#E 7N 8518 2). It has established a number of platforms for technological
innovation, such as a nationally-recognized enterprise technology centre, a
nationally-accredited laboratory, a national environmental protection
engineering technology centre, a provincial key research institute, an
academician work station and a post-doctoral research work station,
among others. It has also established overseas research institutes in the
United States, Russia and Germany.
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Future Development Strategy

Looking ahead, the Group will keep pushing forward with attaining the
strategic goals of “claiming leadership in talent and technology, quality and
cost, and market and brand”, striving to become an industry leader capable
of “guiding the direction of technological development in and creating
benchmark production models for the industry”. As regulation on the
battery industry gets tighter, the industry will become more consolidated
and have an optimised structure. With strong integrated strengths, the
Group will continue to maintain the high quality and low price-
performance ratio of its products, solidify the core competitiveness of its
principal operations while seeking stable development of its other
businesses. It will also continue to expand and optimize its sales network
through the strategic deployment of production facilities, keep enhancing
operational efficiency, spend more efforts in scientific and technological
R&D and elevate its brand value, with the aim of grooming “CHILWEE" into
a renowned battery brand.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue amounted to approximately RMB26,948,237,000 in
2018, increased by approximately 9.3% over approximately
RMB24,654,011,000 in 2017, which was primarily attributable to the growth
in sales amount of electric bike batteries, electric vehicle batteries and
special-purpose electric cars batteries, and Li-ion batteries.

Gross profit

The Group's gross profit amounted to approximately RMB3,235,268,000 in
2018, representing an increase of approximately 10.7% over approximately
RMB2,922,633,000 in 2017. The gross profit margin in 2018 was
approximately 12.0% (2017: approximately 11.9%), which was primarily due
to improvement in selling price of lead-acid batteries in the second half of
2018.

Other income and other gains

The Group's other income and other gains amounted to approximately
RMB274,231,000 in 2018, representing a decrease of approximately 15.6%
from approximately RMB324,982,000 in 2017, which was mainly due to
decrease in government grants.
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Distribution and selling expenses

The Group's distribution and selling expenses amounted to approximately
RMB917,817,000 in 2018, representing an increase of approximately 3.8%
from approximately RMB884,310,000 in 2017, which was primarily
attributable to increase in after-sales service expenses and sales
commission in 2018. For 2018, the distribution and selling expenses as a
percentage of revenue were approximately 3.4% (2017: approximately
3.6%).

Administrative expenses

The Group's administrative expenses were approximately RMB630,693,000
in 2018, representing an increase of approximately 15.3% over
approximately RMB546,778,000 in 2017, which was primarily attributable to
increases in staff expenses and professional fees in 2018. The increase in
administrative expenses was in line with the Group’s business expansion.

Research and development expenses

R&D expenses amounted to approximately RMB884,914,000 in 2018,
representing an increase of approximately 14.1% over approximately
RMB775,849,000 in 2017, which was primarily attributable to increases in
costs of research materials and R&D staff costs as a result of a greater
number of R&D projects being undertaken, including R&D in new products.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs increased by approximately 34.2% from
approximately RMB250,636,000 in 2017 to approximately RMB336,478,000
in 2018. The increase in finance costs was primarily due to an increase in
interest expenses on bank borrowings and medium-term note.

Profit before tax

For the above reasons, the Group's profit before tax decreased by
approximately 9.1% to approximately RMB577,709,000 in 2018 (2017:
approximately RMB635,639,000).

Taxation

The Group's income tax expenses increased by approximately 22.3% to
approximately RMB200,202,000 in 2018 (2017: approximately
RMB163,755,000). The effective tax rate was approximately 34.7% in 2018
(2017: approximately 25.8%) and the increase in the effective tax rate was
mainly due to losses incurred by certain subsidiaries.
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Profit attributable to owners of the Company
In 2018, profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB412,714,000. Profit attributable to owners of the
Company for 2017 was approximately RMB454,816,000.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had net current assets of
approximately RMB584,347,000 (31 December 2017: net current assets of
approximately RMB1,582,230,000). Cash and bank balances were
approximately RMB2,975,507,000 (31 December 2017: approximately
RMB1,501,319,000). Net debts, including bank borrowings, corporate
bonds, obligation under finance leases, short-term note, medium-term
note and deducting cash and bank deposits, were approximately
RMB2,381,047,000 (31 December 2017: approximately RMB3,781,851,000),
which were mainly used to finance the capital expenditure and daily
working capital of the Group. They were denominated in RMB, EUR or HKD,
of which approximately RMB3,753,253,000 bore interest at fixed rates and
approximately RMB3,761,691,000 were repayable within one year. The
Group adopts centralised financing and treasury policies in order to ensure
that the Group's funding is utilised efficiently and it monitors its interest
rate risks in a conservative manner.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s current ratio (current assets/current
liabilities) was 1.06 (31 December 2017: 1.18) and gearing ratio (net debts/
total assets) was approximately 13.4% (31 December 2017: approximately
22.2%). The Group has sufficient cash and available banking facilities to
meet its commitments and working capital requirements. This strong cash
position enables the Group to explore potential investment and potential
business development opportunities to expand its domestic market share.

Exchange rate fluctuation risk

As the Group's operations are mainly conducted in the PRC and the
majority of the sales and purchases are transacted in RMB, the Directors are
of the view that the Group’s operating cash flow and liquidity are not
subject to significant foreign exchange rate risks.

Contingent liabilities
The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2018 (31
December 2017: RMB8,000,000).
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Pledge of assets EEER

At the end of the Year, certain of the Group's assets were pledged to secure AR FELE R - NEBEFE TEEELARTT
banking facilities granted to the Group. The aggregate carrying amount of B FAREERITRENET - RS HEELER
the assets of the Group pledged at the end of each of the financial yearsis B - AEBECDEHEEMNAERMEWN T ¢

as follows:
D18 2017
—ET—+F
B’ 000 RMB'000
R % AREFT
Buildings B 765,414 600,056
Land use rights o P A 336,094 212,408
Plant and machinery e N 2= - 255,283
Construction in progress FEETRE 60,288 -
Other receivables E e ERIA 45,802 -
Bills receivable JEW =15 - 1,005,960
Receivables at FVTOC| BAFE AR M2 ERE
B FE W R 288,365 -
Restricted bank deposits ZRREERITIFK 1,159,844 1,052,383
Capital commitments BEAREE
018 2017
—ET—tF
B’ 000 RMB"000
R ARETT
Contracted but not provided for: ERTHIIEB FTAEREE -
— acquisition of property, plant and equipment  — URBEWIZE « BE MR & 62,516 142,204
— acquisition of intangible asset — WEETEE 8,212 7,803
— capital contribution to associates — Mg RAREE 42,625 39,028
— capital contribution to a joint venture —m—HeErETE - 12,800
Human resources and employees’ remuneration ANERRIESHH
As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed a total of 16,353 31 RZ-Z—N\F+_A=+—8 AEERHEK
December 2017: 18,215) staff members in the PRC and Hong Kong. EBAHERI3B3BREI(ZE—+F+_A4

=+—H :182154) °

During the Year, the total cost of employees amounted to approximately — AR4FE[E & B4R A K A AR 1,426,200,000 7T °
RMB1,426,200,000. The Group sought to further strengthen staff training by~ A& B4 hnsa ¥ 8 Tzl - ABBABERE
offering focused training programmes and study tours to management 1T A BRI EZIFIIA R ERME S - 7
and professional technical personnel, and disseminating the latest 8B T MR {EZEBTITEIRE N EMITEBRT
information of government policy on the lead-acid motive battery industry — SHTALE » THIIRE B TMHREKFERGAEZE -
to staff. The Group continued to strive for the enhancement of professional ~ FIFF - AEB AE TIRHEAZE HOHM - E8
standards and overall qualities of its staff. The Group also provided L& NL2AHMIFATE  REES -

competitive salary packages to its staff, encouraging them to be fully

dedicated in their work and to leverage their capabilities in serving its

customers.
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Significant investment, material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

There were no significant investments held, no material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the Year, nor
was there any plan authorized by the Board for other material investments
or additions of capital assets at the date of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SHARES
On 20 February 2018, the Company entered into subscription agreements
(the “Subscription Agreements”) with six individual subscribers, pursuant to
which the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue a total of
132,000,000 shares of the Company at a subscription price of HK$4.48 per
share. The Subscription Agreements have lapsed and ceased to have
further effect after 20 September 2018.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 20 February
2018, 18 May 2018, 22 June 2018 and 20 September 2018 for further details.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares
during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance in the interests of shareholders. The Company has complied
with all code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code contained in
Appendix 14 (the “CG Code”) of the Listing Rules throughout the Year,
except for the deviation as stated below.

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code requires the roles of chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer to be separated. Mr. Zhou Mingming is
currently both the chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of the
Company. The Board considers that the current arrangement facilitates the
execution of the Group's business strategies and maximizes efficiency of its
operation and is therefore beneficial to the Company and its shareholders
as awhole.

BARE WHBRLEHBAT BEAT
REELRHE

AEE  WERBANBLAT  BELARABE
$NBEARERETHBAT BELFREY
CEMEAUBRLE  RAFRAN EFR
TR (e A BB R A R A A A
pEtE -

BE  LEIEBER LHRSG
R-ZZE—NF-_A=+H  ARRIENZ@ERR
BriIuRERE(RBERED - Bt A28
BIEHERERSRREE 448 B TR EREITA
132000000 AR EKHD - REHBHRER-ZF
—N\FNAZ+HBRARTBABWRS -

FLHBRELAMARRBHA-ZT—N\F_A
—+tH ZE-NFRA+NEBE  ZE—N\FX
AZ+ZBEZE—\FLAZTHHRE -

B EXWBEEI - ARASHEEMHERBRA
FEMEBE - HEFBOARRRER LR

TEERER
ARBBORBEARFOERER  UHTARR
Mzt o BRIRBE N ESN ARRRAFE —HE
ST EMARRM ST OAE R RERTR (TR
EIASTAI) BFTA ST RIS -

EEEARTANTUBRIEALGREESTEE:
FRITHREAZNABE TR - BARELERR
ARBEFTSIFERTRAH - EFSARRA
ZHBEPRTAKRBEEBRB RIS IEDEEN
o ARREMRARFREZRR -

BEBHERERRF / 201843 25




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SREN =R ISEaY i

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions of
the Directors, senior management and relevant employees (who, because
of their office in the Company, are likely to be in possession of unpublished
inside information) of the Company. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all of them have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the Year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee. Its primary duties
include, among other things, the review and supervision of the Group’s
financial reporting process, risk management and internal control system.
The Audit Committee comprises all four independent non-executive
Directors of the Company, namely Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai (“Mr. Lee"),
Mr. Wang Jigiang, Prof. Ouyang Minggao and Mr. Ng Chi Kit. Mr. Lee is the
chairman of the Audit Committee. Mr. Lee has professional qualification
and experience in accounting and financial matters.

The Audit Committee has met and discussed with the external auditors of
the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, and has reviewed the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and the audited
results of the Group for the Year. The Audit Committee considered that the
consolidated results of the Group for the Year are in compliance with the
relevant accounting standards, rules and regulations and that appropriate
disclosures have been duly made in accordance with Appendix 16 of the
Listing Rules in this annual report.

PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE OF
REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company (the “Register of Members”) will
be closed from 6 June 2019 to 12 June 2019 (both days inclusive), for the
purpose of determining shareholders’ entitlement to attend the annual
general meeting, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for attending the annual
general meeting, the shareholders should ensure that all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, No.183 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration by
no later than 4:30 p.m. on 5 June 2019.
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The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HKS$0.066 per share for shareholders whose names appear on the Register
of Members on 20 June 2019. The Register of Members will be closed from
18 June 2019 to 20 June 2019, both days inclusive, and the proposed final
dividend is expected to be paid on or around 11 July 2019. The payment of
dividends shall be subject to the approval of the shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company expected to be held by 12 June 2019. In
order to be qualified for the proposed final dividend, shareholders should
deliver share certificates together with transfer documents to the
Company'’s branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-16, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30
p.m.on 17 June 2019.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENBKEEAS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhou Mingming (JEIBABR), aged 50, is the founder of the Group, the
chairman of the Board, an executive Director and the chief executive officer
of the Group. Mr. Zhou is mainly responsible for the Group's overall strategy
planning and investment decisions. Mr. Zhou received a bachelor’s degree
in chemistry from Hangzhou Normal University (471 /1| B 8 22 §%) in July
1990, and has over 20 years experience in the lead-acid battery industry.
Mr. Zhou is the younger brother of Mr. Yang Xinxin, and the son of Mr.
Zhou Longrui and Ms. Yang Yunfei, all being executive Directors. Also, Mr.
Zhou is the spouse of Ms. Fang Jianjun, a non-executive Director.

Mr. Zhou Longrui ( ABEER ), aged 80, is an executive Director of the Group.
He is mainly responsible for the overall supervision of the technical aspects of
our production process. Mr. Zhou joined the Group in January 1998. Mr.
Zhou has rich experience in the lead-acid battery industry gained at the
Group and through previous employment. Early in 1994 and since then, Mr.
Zhou published several professional articles in the field of lead-acid batteries
on various magazines such as Batteries ((E & 1)), International Power
Information ({BIFR &R 15 ) and Power Technologies ({ EJRIIT), etc.
Mr. Zhou was appointed the vice-chairman of the First Session of Lead-acid
Battery Committee (35 — RN B EMNE XL E R EEEZE)by
China Electrotechnics Technology Academy (Ff B & T 3% 1l7 & &) in
August 2008 and a member of National Lead-acid Battery Standardization
Technology Committee (2B #1B B iR (L T & B ) in July 2007.
He is the father of Mr. Zhou Mingming and Mr. Yang Xinxin and the spouse
of Ms. Yang Yunfei, all being executive Directors. He is also a father-in-law of
Ms. Fang Jianjun, a non-executive Director.

Ms. Yang Yunfei (3 E ), aged 76, is an executive Director of the Group.
She is mainly responsible for the management of the Group’s procurement
and building. She has been with the Group since January 1998. Ms. Yang has
worked in several battery manufacturing factories, responsible for
manufacturing or overall operation of the factories and worked for the
establishment preparation of the Group. Ms. Yang has accumulated rich
experience in the lead-acid battery industry gained at the Group and
through previous employment. Ms. Yang Yunfei is the mother of Mr. Zhou
Mingming and Mr. Yang Xinxin and the spouse of Mr. Zhou Longrui, all being
executive Directors. She is also a mother-in-law of Ms. Fang Jianjun, a non-
executive Director.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENBKEEAS

Mr. Yang Xinxin (#5337 $7), aged 52, is an executive Director of the Group.
He is mainly responsible for assisting Mr. Zhou Mingming in the discharge
of Mr. Zhou's duties in the overall management of the Group. Mr. Yang
joined the Group in August 2011. He has vast experience in the
management of sizeable organisations. Immediately prior to joining the
0) and
deputy head (&It &) of Zhejiang Design Institute of Water Conservancy
and Hydroelectric Power (HT)I A /K MK E #))813% 5B ), and had served
in such positions since August 2006. Mr. Yang was the deputy head (&5
) of the People’s Government of Anji County, Zhejiang Province (/T #&
% 8 A RIEF) between June 2001 and August 2003. Mr. Yang was the
deputy director of Water Resources Department of Zhejiang Province (J#
L & 7K H| EE) between August 2003 and August 2006. Mr. Yang is a
professor-level senior engineer (2% 4% = 4 T2AM). Mr. Yang obtained a
bachelor degree from Anhui University of Science & Technology (% & 32
T KE), formerly known as Huainan Mining Institute (YEFIE3E B30, in
July 1988 and a master degree from Zhejiang University (3T T K £2) in
March 1991. Mr. Yang is an elder brother of Mr. Zhou Mingming, the son of
Mr. Zhou Longrui and Ms. Yang Yunfei, all being executive Directors. He is

Group, Mr. Yang was the secretary of the party committee (2Z& &

also a brother-in-law of Ms. Fang Jianjun, a non-executive Director.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Fang Jianjun (52 E), aged 50, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Group on 17 November 2013. Ms. Fang received a bachelor’s
degree in chemistry from Hangzhou Normal University (#71M Bf &5 A< E2) in
July 1990. From August 1990 to October 1998, Ms. Fang was a teacher at
Hongxi Middle School (2I3Z 7 £) in Zhejiang Province, the PRC. Ms. Fang is
the spouse of Mr. Zhou Mingming, an executive Director, the chairman of
the Board, and the controlling shareholder (as defined under the Listing
Rules) of the Company. She is also a daughter-in-law of Mr. Zhou Longrui and
Ms. Yang Yunfei, a sister-in-law of Mr. Yang Xinxin, all being executive
Directors.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENBKEEAS

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Jigiang CE#%), aged 79, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Group. Mr. Wang has more than 50 years of experience in the field
of electrochemistry. Before he retired in December 2008, Mr. Wang has been
working in the 18th Research Institute, China Electronics Technology Group
Corporation (FEIEFEHZEEAFIE+/\BFFEFT) since October 1962 as a
vice-chief engineer. In addition, Mr. Wang received various awards of national
and provincial levels for his achievements on development of new battery
technology, such as the first class award on science and technology
advancement (BHE$1i73E 26— %) from the former Ministry of Electronics
Industry (presently known as MIIT) on his research on lithium rechargeable
battery technology in October 1999. Mr. Wang received a bachelor’s degree in
electrochemistry from Fudan University in 1962, and went to Stanford University
in the United States as a visiting scholar on government sponsorship from 1982
to 1985. After returning to the PRC, he received the title of professor and mainly
in charge of new battery technology development. After his retirement, Mr.
Wang has continued to assist China Industrial Association of Power Sources (1
ELEEYIEEIRITERHE) to organise various international and domestic
technology exchange activities, including China International Solar Photovoltaic
Industry Fair (1 YR EE I B 2 RN R ) which is held biennially.

Prof. Ouyang Minggao (BXf% B35), aged 60, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Group. Prof. Ouyang graduated from the
Technical University of Denmark with a doctorate degree in Engineering in
1993. He worked at Tsinghua University (52 A EZ2) since 1994 at which he
held various titles including Ministry of Education Scholar Chang Jiang
Special Professor (B 2 K)T B& FFIEHIN) and supervisor of the
National Key Laboratory for Automobile Safety and Energy-saving Research
(RELRFHEEEBIRERERET (). Prof. Ouyang is a Standing
Member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (FEIARBUAH M @R E2HEZE2FHEE).
Prof. Ouyang is an independent non-executive director of Baic Bluepark
New Energy Technology Co, Ltd. (Stock Code: 600733) (3t /5 8 A ¥TREIR
B AR BBRAA]), a company listed on the Main Board of Shanghai
Stock Exchange. Prof. Ouyang also served as independent non-executive
Director of Sinotruk (Hong Kong) Limited (Stock Code: 3808) and Zhuzhou
CRRC Times Electric Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 3898), both being companies
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from July 2007 to
December 2015 and from August 2017 to March 2018, respectively,
Shanghai Diesel Engine Company Limited (Stock Code: 600841) (_t/&4E)
BERZ 1D A BR A 7)), a company listed on the Main Board of Shanghai Stock
Exchange, from May 2012 to May 2015, and Chongging Changan
Automobile Company Limited (Stock Code: 000625) (& B & % /78 I
BRAF]), a company listed on the Main Board of Shenzhen Stock
Exchange from May 2012 to March 2016.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENBKEEAS

Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai (2= 7 ), aged 64, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Group. Mr. Lee received a bachelor’s degree in
arts from the Kingston University (formerly known as the Kingston
Polytechnic) in London in July 1980 and obtained his postgraduate
diploma in business from the Curtin University of Technology in Australia in
February 1988. Mr. Lee served as a partner of Ernst & Young for 29 years
until 2009 and had held key leadership positions in the development of
such firm in the PRC. Mr. Lee is a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, the Chartered Accountants, Australia
and New Zealand, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Macau Society
of Registered Accountants. Mr. Lee currently also serves as an independent
non-executive director of West China Cement Limited (Stock Code: 2233),
China Modern Dairy Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1117), GOME Retail
Holdings Limited (Formerly known as GOME Electrical Appliances Holdings
Limited) (Stock Code: 493), Tibet Water Resources Ltd. (Formerly known as
Tibet 5100 Water Resources Holdings Ltd.) (Stock Code: 1115), NVC Lighting
Holding Limited (Stock Code: 2222), Yashili International Holdings Ltd
(Stock Code: 1230), GCL New Energy Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 451),
China Rundong Auto Group Limited (Formerly known as China Greenland
Rundong Auto Group Limited (Stock Code: 1365), WH Group Limited (Stock
Code: 288) and Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 2611), all
being companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since
July 2010, October 2010, March 2011, March 2011, November 2012,
November 2013, May 2014, July 2014, August 2014 and April 2017,
respectively. Mr. Lee also served as an independent non-executive director
of China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 966),
China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1237) and CITIC Securities Company Limited (Stock Code: 6030), all
being companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from
October 2009 to August 2013, from July 2014 to September 2015 and from
November 2011 to May 2016, respectively, and Sino Vanadium Inc. (Stock
Code: SVX), a company listed on the TSX Venture Exchange in Canada, from
October 2009 to December 2011. Mr. Lee was for 10 years a member of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of Hunan Province in
the PRC.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENBKEEAS

Mr. Ng Chi Kit (R E£t), aged 45, was appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Group on 2 December 2010 and was re-designated as an independent
non-executive Director on 10 February 2017. Prior to that, Mr. Ng was the
Group's chief financial officer and company secretary. Mr. Ng holds a bachelor
degree in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is an
Associate Member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a Fellow Member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Prior
to joining our Group, Mr. Ng worked in the Assurance and Advisory Business
Service Department of Ernst & Young. Mr. Ng has over 18 years of experience
in accounting and auditing. Mr. Ng is also currently an independent non-
executive director of Great Wall Motor Company Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 2333) and the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 601633).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Jingning (BR#&E 28 ), aged 45, is the investment director and head
of the new energy division. Mr. Chen graduated from the University of
Science and Technology of China (FR BRI R IT R E) with a bachelor's
degree in Industrial Automation in 1995 and obtained a Master of Business
Administration from University of Science and Technology of China in
2005. Mr. Chen joined the Group in 2003 as assistant to chairman and has
since 2011 held his current position as investment director.

Prof. Chen Tixian (FREE#7), aged 80, is the head of the research and
development department and is responsible for leading the research
activities of the Group. Prof. Chen graduated with a bachelor's degree in
chemistry and physics from Xiamen University (EF9K22) in 1961. Prof.
Chen has over 30 years of experience in the lead-acid battery industry. Prof.
Chen lectured in the chemistry department of Xiamen University between
1961 and 1989 when he retired as a professor. Prof. Chen joined the Group in
April 2004 and has since held his current position as the head of the research
department of the Group.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENBKEEAS

Mr. Pan Xuexiang (B2 %), aged 44, is the marketing director and is
responsible for, among others, marketing planning, brands management
and products planning. Mr. Pan graduated with a bachelor’s degree in
economic management from Hefei University of Technology in Anhui in
June 1997. Mr. Pan joined the Group in 2009 and has held several positions
including deputy director of sales channel department and marketing
director.

Mr. Leung Wai Yip (R1E#), aged 43, was appointed as the Group's chief
financial officer and company secretary (the “Company Secretary”), on 2
December 2010. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Leung was the financial
controller and the company secretary of Tiangong International Company
Limited (X T B BX B R 2 7)) (Stock Code: 826), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from June 2007 to November 2010. Prior to
such appointment, Mr. Leung was an internal auditor of the Swire Group and
was previously a manager with the assurance and advisory business services
department of Ernst & Young, Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Leung
graduated with a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of
Alberta in Canada in 1998 and obtained a Master of Business Administration
degree from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in 2010. He
is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and an
Associate Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Leung currently serves as an independent non-executive director of HPC
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1742), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, since April 2018. He also served as an independent non-
executive director of Miko International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1247), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from December
2013 to February 2016.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

FF*BIEMS

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance. The Company acknowledges the important role of the Board
in providing effective leadership and direction to the Company’s business,
and ensuring transparency and accountability of the Company’s
operations. The Board sets appropriate policies and implements corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of the
Group's business.

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance in the interests of shareholders. The Company has complied
with all code provisions of the CG Code of the Listing Rules throughout the
Year, except for the deviation as stated below.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code requires the roles of chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer to be separated. Mr. Zhou Mingming is
currently both the chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of the
Company. The Board considers that the current arrangement facilitates the
execution of the Group's business strategies and maximizes efficiency of its
operation and is therefore beneficial to the Company and its shareholders
as awhole.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership, control and management of
the Company and oversees the Group's business, strategic decision and
performances in attaining the objective of ensuring effective functioning
and growth of the Group and enhancing value to investors. The Board has
delegated the authority and responsibility for implementing business
strategies and management of the daily operations of the Group's business
to the management. The Board exercises a number of powers which
include:

formulating long-term strategy

approving public announcements

approving financial statements, including interim and annual results
approving major acquisitions, disposal and capital projects
authorising significant changes to the capital structure and material
borrowings

any issue or buy-back of equity securities under the relevant general
mandates

making recommendations and/or declaration of dividend and
reviewing dividend policy

approving appointments to the Board

setting the Group remuneration policy

reviewing operational and financial performance

reviewing the effectiveness of internal control and risk management
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

FF*BIEMS

The Board meets at least 4 times a year and additional meetings are held
when required to discuss significant events and issues. The Company
Secretary assists the chairman of the Board in preparing agenda for Board
meetings. Board meetings are held with at least 14 days’ advance notice,
and all Directors would be served with an agenda with supporting papers
at least 3 days before the Board meetings, so as to ensure that there is
timely access to relevant information. The Group ensures that all the Board
members are informed of the Group's latest developments and thereby
assists them in the discharge of their duties. The Directors may take
independent professional advice as and when appropriate, at the
Company's expenses. Minutes of the Board and Board committees are
taken by the Company Secretary. Such minutes of the Board and the Board
committees, together with supporting papers, are made available for
inspection by any Director following reasonable notice. Draft and final
versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their comment and records.

The Company has arranged directors and officers liability and company
reimbursement insurances for the Directors and senior management of the
Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has developed and reviewed the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance. It includes the review and monitor of
the training and continuous professional development of the Directors and
the senior management of the Group; the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; the
development, review and monitoring of the code of conduct of the
Company's employees and Directors; and review the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

FFRBIBWRS

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors (Mr. Zhou
Mingming, Mr. Zhou Longrui, Ms. Yang Yunfei and Mr. Yang Xinxin), one
non-executive Director (Ms. Fang Jianjun) and four independent non-
executive Directors (Mr. Wang Jigiang, Prof. Ouyang Minggao, Mr. Lee
Conway Kong Wai and Mr. Ng Chi Kit who was re-designated from a non-
executive Director to an independent non-executive Director on 10
February 2017). Among the executive Directors, Mr. Zhou Mingming is the
younger brother of Mr. Yang Xinxin. They are both sons of Mr. Zhou
Longrui and Ms. Yang Yunfei, and Mr. Zhou Longrui is the spouse of Ms.
Yang Yunfei. Also, Ms. Fang Jianjun is the spouse of Mr. Zhou Mingming.
Biographical details of the Directors of the Group as at the date of this
annual report are set out on pages 28 to 33 of this annual report.
Independent non-executive Directors account for more than one-third of
the members of the Board. The independent non-executive Directors
come either from the battery industry or have related professional
background, bringing valuable expertise and experience that promotes the
best interests of the Group and its shareholders. The role of the
independent non-executive Directors is to provide independent and
objective opinions to the Board for its consideration.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the Year, the Board has held a total of four Board meetings for the
main purposes of formulating business development and prospects of the
Group, reviewing and considering the financial and operating
performance.

The attendance of each Director at the Board meetings are set out below:
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Attendance/Number of
Board Meetings

Name of Directors EEEW HERY, EBEEERRK
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Zhou Mingming & AR BR 4 A= 4/4
Mr. Zhou Longrui AR A 4/4
Ms. Yang Yunfei BERLL 4/4
Mr. Yang Xinxin SRR A 4/4
Non-executive Director FHITES

Ms. Fang Jianjun TEFL+ 2/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHITES

Mr. Wang Jigiang T g S 4/4
Prof. Ouyang Minggao Bl 5 A = 2R 4/4
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai =TS 4/4
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REGEE 4/4
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code requires the roles of chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer to be separated. Mr. Zhou Mingming is
currently both the chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of the
Company. The Board considers that the current arrangement facilitates the
execution of the Group's business strategies and maximizes efficiency of its
operation and is therefore beneficial to the Company and its shareholders
as a whole.

INDEPENDENCE OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received confirmation from each independent non-
executive Director about his independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and continues to consider each of them to be independent.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

A person may be appointed as a member of the Board at any time either
by shareholders’ resolutions in general meetings or by resolutions of the
Board. New Directors appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board
during the Year are required to retire at the first general meeting following
their appointments and new Directors appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy during the Year are required to retire at the first general
meeting following their appointments, and in both cases, the acting
Directors will be eligible for re-election at such general meeting. All
Directors are required to retire by rotation at least once every 3 years at the
AGM, subject to re-election by the shareholders. All non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) are appointed
for a term of not more than 3 years.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL BEERESERRETE
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. All Directors are encouraged to  EHIZH|BISEiBR - AR AHBEEELHE
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh  FEE %R UEELEBHEME LK - &
their knowledge and skills. The Directors have been informed of the  FEE BB EE AT STANEX E A6S5 KA 8
requirement under Code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code regarding JHEZERENHRT - KA s TNERESRME L
continuous professional development. The Company updates the Directors ~ TR EBIA N EMEHEE R EN T EER R -
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable  IAMREZETRHFMLEEARTHR » WIEAH
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and ¥ RIFPEEAERNE & -

enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of training 12 & B1Z (M08 - BB R ARE T E S1E3I|00 4

received by the Directors during the Year is as follows: Z00F
Type of Continuous
Professional Development
Programmes
Name of Directors EEEW BESERRETEER
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zhou Mingming [EBAER S A& A B
Mr. Zhou Longrui [EBENR o A B
Ms. Yang Yunfei HBERL LT AB
Mr. Yang Xinxin (R bt A B
Non-executive Director FHITES
Ms. Fang Jianjun HEERL A B
Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHITES
Mr. Wang Jigiang pask L tas A B
Prof. Ouyang Minggao BNS B = 2R AB
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai THRERE AB
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REBERE AB
Notes: Bier
A attending training sessions and/or seminars A: IR R AT e

B: reviewing materials and updates relating to the latest development of the Listing Rules and B: HERIE R _F i # R R B i B & T R A
other applicable regulatory requirements H1F AR
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) for
overseeing the particular aspects of the affairs of the Company. All the
Board committees have been established with defined written terms of
reference, which are posted on the Company’s website “www.chaowei.com.hk”
and the website of the Stock Exchange and are available to the
shareholders upon request. All the Board committees would report to the
Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

All the Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises four independent non-executive Directors
of the Company, namely Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai, Mr. Wang Jigiang, Prof.
Ouyang Minggao and Mr. Ng Chi Kit. Mr. Lee is the chairman of the Audit
Committee. He has professional qualification and experience in accounting
and financial matters.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is mainly responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system and internal control
procedures, reviewing the financial information of the Company and
overseeing the relationship with external auditors. These include reviewing
and recommending for the Board's approval of the interim and the annual
financial statements; reviewing the external auditors’ independence,
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process; and reviewing and
recommending to the Board for approval of the external auditors’
remuneration and reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control and
risk management systems of the Group.
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During the Year, the Directors’ attendance of the meetings of the Audit
Committee is set out as follows:

REE BFRLHEERZESSENBE AN
T

Attendance/Number of

Audit Committee Meetings

Name of Directors EEEE HERY, EREESY
EBERE

Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai TEEEE 2/2
Mr. Wang Jigiang pask Liptas 2/2
Prof. Ouyang Minggao B F5 B = 2 2/2
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REGEE 2/2

The meetings were held together with the external auditors of the
Company and the chief financial officer of the Company, and discussed
auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters which included
the review of the interim and annual financial statements.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive Director, namely
Mr. Zhou Mingming, and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai and Mr. Wang Jigiang. Mr. Lee is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The principal responsibilities of
the Remuneration Committee include making recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and structure and the
remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior management. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure to
ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration, in which remuneration will be
determined by reference to the performance of the individual and the
Company as well as market practice and conditions.
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During the Year, the remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group were reviewed and discussed at the meetings
of the Remuneration Committee. The Directors’ attendance of the
meetings of the Remuneration Committee is set out as follows:

AEE  FHEZEENS LEM LT RAKEE
ELEMEEABNFNGE EFHFEFME
BggdnBrRiEsmT

Attendance/Number of

Remuneration Committee

Meeting

Name of Directors EEEW HERY FHEES
=R

Mr. Zhou Mingming JEFRR & A& /1
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai THRERE /1
Mr. Wang Jigiang AR A /1

Details of the remuneration of each Director of the Company for the Year
are set out in note 12 to the financial statements contained in this annual
report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director, namely Mr.
Zhou Mingming, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai and Mr. Wang Jigiang. Mr. Zhou is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee. The principal responsibilities of the
Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board at least annually and making recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the corporate
strategy. The Nomination Committee is also responsible for identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and selecting or
making recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals
nominated for directorships; assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors; and making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for the Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.
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The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”). The purpose of the Board Diversity Policy is to set out the basic
principles to be followed to ensure that the Board has appropriate balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives necessary to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board and to maintain high standards of corporate
governance. Under the Board Diversity Policy, the selection of the Board
candidates shall be based on a range of diversity perspectives with
reference to the Company’s business model and specific needs, including
but not limited to gender, race, language, cultural background, educational
background, industry experience and professional experience, which are
the measurable objectives for implementing the Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee has primary responsibility for identifying
suitably qualified candidates to become members of the Board and shall
give adequate consideration to the Board Diversity Policy in selection of
the Board candidates. Board nomination and appointments will continue
to be made on merit basis based on its business needs from time to time
while taking into account diversity.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the Board
Diversity Policy, developing and reviewing measurable objectives for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy and monitoring the progress on
achieving these measurable objectives. The review of the Board Diversity
Policy and the measurable objectives shall be carried out at least annually
to ensure the continued effectiveness of the Board.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has considered the Board
Diversity Policy and whether the Board has the appropriate balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives necessary to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board and to maintain high standards of corporate
governance. After due consideration, the Nomination Committee has
concluded that based on the Company'’s existing business model and
specific needs, the current composition of the Board satisfies the Board
Diversity Policy for the Year.

Board nomination policy (the “Board Nomination Policy”) is in place to
ensure that all nominations of Board members are fair and transparent in
order to facilitate the constitution of the Board with a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives that is appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business.
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Nomination procedures: REER
The nomination procedures to select and recommend Board candidates EiE MEEEZE S FEAIRZEFBMAT -
could be summarised as follows:

The Nomination Committee shall consider suitability of an individual
pursuant to the Listing Rules, the Board Nomination Policy and the
Board Diversity Policy, and the independence of an individual for the
position of independent non-executive Director.

The Nomination Committee shall make recommendation to the
Board's for consideration.

The Board shall consider the individual recommended by the
Nomination Committee pursuant to the Listing Rules, the CG Code,
the Board Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy.

For casual vacancy and addition of new Directors, the Board shall
confirm the appointment of the individual and the new Director
shall be subjected to re-election by shareholders of the Company at
the next annual general meeting in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company.

For re-appointment of retiring Directors, the Board shall, based on
the recommendation of the Nomination Committee, recommend
the retiring directors to stand for re-election at the annual general
meeting. The appointment of retiring Directors shall be subjected to
the approval of shareholder at the annual general meeting.

The Board reserves the right to final decide on the matters in relation
to the selection and appointment of Directors.
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Selection criteria:
The factors listed below would be used as reference by the Nomination
Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate:

Reputation for integrity;

Accomplishment and professional knowledge and industry
experience which may be relevant to the Company;

Commitment in respect of available time;

Merit and potential contributions that such candidate could bring to
the Board with reference to the Board Diversity Policy (as adopted
and amended by the Board from time to time), including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, independence, skills, knowledge
and length of service;

In case of a candidate for an independent non-executive Director of
the Company, to assess: (i) the independence of such candidate with
reference to, among other things, the independence criteria as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules; and (ii) the guidance and
requirements relating to independent non-executive directors as set
out in Code Provision A.5.5 of the CG Code and in the “Guidance for
Boards and Directors” published by The Stock Exchange; and

Board succession planning considerations and the long-term needs
of the Company.
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The Nomination Committee has the discretion to consider any other
factors and matters and nominate any person, as it considers appropriate,
subject to the guidance and requirements of the Listing Rules and the CG
Code.
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During the Year, the Directors’ attendance of the meetings of the
Nomination Committee is set out as follows:

AEE EEHFIREZEEEENEALARIIA
T

Attendance/Number of

Nomination Committee

Meeting

Name of Directors EERE HERY, REEESY
= PN

Mr. Zhou Mingming [EIBABA 52 A& 1
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai =Y e A
Mr. Wang Jigiang R A Il

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the Year, which were prepared in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The reporting responsibility of the external auditors of the
Company on the consolidated financial statements of the Group are set
out in the independent auditor's report on pages 72 to 79.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Wai Yip, the Company Secretary, reports to the chairman of the
Board. The details of his biography is set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report. Mr. Leung also
confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours relevant professional
training during the Year .

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board recognises its overall responsibility for the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness in order to safeguard the interest of the Group and the
shareholders, and to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management systems on an ongoing basis to ensure that
the systems in place are adequate.

The Group's risk management and internal control systems are featured
with a defined management structure with limits of authority and well-
rounded policies and procedures, and are designed to facilitate effective
and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to identify and manage
potential risks, and to safeguard assets of the Group. Such systems are
designed to provide reasonable, though not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives.
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The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s systems of risk management and internal
control covering all material controls, including financial, operation,
compliance and internal controls as well as risk management functions.
During the Year, it identified material risks of the Group and formulated
corresponding solutions to manage the risks after taking into account the
risk tolerance of the Group.

The Group has an internal audit department (the “Internal Audit
Department”), which is responsible for the internal audit of the Group,
independent assessment of risks, and internal control procedures and
systems, and reports its findings, with recommendations, to the Audit
Committee. The Internal Audit Department assesses the risks to which the
Group is exposed, and formulates an audit plan on that basis annually, so
as to ensure that the internal audit covers all areas of high risks. The annual
audit plan will be submitted to the Audit Committee for approval. The
scope of audit review is determined based on the risk assessment results and
special reviews will be conducted on matters which are of concern to the
management or the Audit Committee. During the Year, no major issues but
areas for improvement have been identified. All of the recommendations
from the Internal Audit Department will be properly followed up to ensure
that they are implemented within a reasonable period of time.

The Board considered that the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group to be adequate and effective for the Year. The Board
and the Audit Committee also considered that the key areas of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems, including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of our accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting staff, and their training programs and budget, are
reasonably implemented and the Group has fully complied with provisions
of the CG Code regarding risk management and internal control systems in
general for the Year.

The Group strictly follows the requirements of the SFO and the Listing
Rules and ensures that inside information is disclosed to the public as soon
as reasonably practicable. Before inside information is fully disclosed to the
public, such information is kept strictly confidential. The Group has further
enhanced the procedures with the establishment of a continuous
disclosure policy and provided with relevant training to all relevant staff of
the Group. The Board considered that the procedures and measures in
relation to the handling and dissemination of the inside information to be
effective and adequate.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Group's external auditors are Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified
Public Accountants. In order to maintain their independence, objectivity
and effectiveness in performing the audit services, the audit committee
pre-approved all audit services and discussed with Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants the nature and scope of the audit
services.

During the Year, the remuneration paid or payable to Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants in respect of audit services was
RMB2,326,000. The fee paid or payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
Certified Public Accountants for non-audit services, namely review of
unaudited interim results of the Group for the six months ended 30 June
2018, was RMB850,000.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding the
Directors’ dealings in the Company's securities (the “Own Code”) on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Each Director has been
given a copy of the Own Code. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, each of them has confirmed that they have complied with the
Own Code and the Model Code throughout the Year.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished inside information of the Company and/or its securities. No
incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
relevant employees was noted by the Company during the Year. The
Company will notify the Directors and relevant employees of any restricted
period for dealings in the Company’s securities in advance.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Board and the senior management recognise the importance of
communication with the shareholders and accountability to shareholders.
Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive operational and financial
performance information to the shareholders. The senior management also
maintains close communication with investors, analysts and the media by
other channels including roadshows, briefings and individual meetings.
The Group has set up its own website “www.chaowei.com.hk”, which is
updated on a regular basis, as a means to provide updated information on
the Company to investors.
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GENERAL MEETINGS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company’s AGM provides a useful platform for direct communication
between the Board and the shareholders. Separate resolutions are
proposed on each substantially separate issue at the general meetings.

The 2018 AGM was held on 8 June 2018. The attendance record of the
Directors at the 2018 AGM is set out below:

TN
ARANBRRBFASAETCERERRER
RHT—EEANTE - AARMBREERERRE L
WEREE L TRNZEBIR2BIIREER -

T N\FERRBEFARECR_F—\FXH
NBRT - EEFR_T-N\FERRBEFREDN
HERERE T T

Attendance/Number of
General Meeting
Name of Directors BEELE HERE,
BRAERE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Zhou Mingming JERAER S A4 0/1
Mr. Zhou Longrui AR A /1
Ms. Yang Yunfei BERLZ T N
Mr. Yang Xinxin ST T /1
Non-executive Director FHITES
Ms. Fang Jianjun TEEL+ 0/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHITES
Mr. Wang Jigiang T s S 11
Prof. Ouyang Minggao B 5 B = U /1
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai THEFEAE /1
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REBERE /1

The Company's external auditors also attended the 2018 AGM.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “"Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute dividends to
the shareholders of the Company to allow the shareholders to share the
Company's profits and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for
future growth. The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is
subject to the absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final
dividend will be subject to the approval of the shareholders. In proposing
any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into account, inter alia,
retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and each of
the members of the Group; the Group’s liquidity position; the Group's
expected working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements
and future expansion plans; any restrictions on payment of dividends that
may be imposed by the Group's lenders; and any other factors that the
Board deems appropriate.
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The Company'’s ability to pay dividends is also subject to the requirements
of the Listing Rules and all relevant applicable laws, rules and regulations in
the Cayman Islands, Hong Kong and the articles of association of the
Company.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy and reserves the right in its sole
and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or modify the Dividend
Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a
legally binding commitment by the Company that dividends will be paid
in any particular amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders of the
Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the mandatory disclosure
requirement under Paragraph O of the CG Code:

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on requisition
by shareholders

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an
extraordinary general meeting ("EGM") to be called by the Board. The
written requisition must specify the business to be transacted on the
meeting, which shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
at Unit 1308A, 13/F, Lippo Sun Plaza, 28 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary.

If within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the requisition, the Board
fails to proceed to convene an EGM, the shareholder(s) concerned may
themselves convene an EGM, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
shareholder(s) making the requisition as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed by the Company.
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Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose contact details are

as follows:

Address: Unit 1308A, 13/F, Lippo Sun Plaza, 28 Canton Road, Tsim Sha
Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Email: ir@chaowei.com.hk

The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholder(s)" enquiries and
concerns to the Board and/or relevant Board committees of the Company,
where appropriate, to respond to the shareholder(s)’ questions.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by shareholders

Any shareholder of the Company who wish to put forward proposals at
general meetings of the Company shall submit such proposals to the
Board in writing for the Board's consideration not less than 7 days prior to
the date of a general meeting through the Company Secretary of the
Company whose contact details are set out in the paragraph “Procedures
for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the Board” above.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There has been no change in the memorandum and articles of association
of the Company during the Year.
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The Board is pleased to submit this annual report together with the
consolidated financial statements for the Year which have been audited by
the Company’s auditors Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public
Accountants and reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Company.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are manufacturing and sales of
lead-acid motive batteries and other related products. The principal
activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 59 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW
For the business review of the Group for the Year, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Business Review” in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis”.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT
An indication of the future development in the Group's business is shown
on page 21 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the Year and the state of the Company’s and the
Group's affairs as at 31 December 2018 are set out in the financial
statements on pages 80 to 239.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 80.

The Board proposed to declare a final dividend of HK$0.066 per share for
the financial year ended 31 December 2018, which shall be subject to
approval of the shareholders at the AGM of the Company to be held on 12
June 2019. The proposed final dividend is expected to be paid on or
around 11 July 2019.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
Please refer to notes 4, 48 and 49 of the consolidated financial statements
for risks and uncertainties.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
approximately RMB6,192,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES
Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2018, calculated
in accordance with the Companies Law (Cap. 22) (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
approximately RMB746,608,000.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws
of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the Year
are set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhou Mingming

Mr. Zhou Longrui

Ms. Yang Yunfei

Mr. Yang Xinxin

Non-executive Director
Ms. Fang Jianjun

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Jigiang

Prof. Ouyang Minggao

Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai

Mr. Ng Chi Kit

The Directors will retire by rotation in accordance with the requirement of
the articles of association of the Company and the Listing Rules. The non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors are
appointed for periods of 3 years.

A confirmation of independence has been received from each of Mr. Wang
Jigiang, Prof. Ouyang Minggao, Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai and Mr. Ng Chi
Kit and the Company considers each of them as independent pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Article 164 of the Company'’s articles of association provides that the
Directors, secretary and other officers and every auditor for the time being
of the Company and the liquidator or trustees (if any) for the time being
acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company and everyone of
them, and everyone of their heirs, executors and administrators, shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them, their or any of their heirs, executors or
administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or
supposed duty, in their respective offices or trusts; and none of them shall
be answerable for the acts, receipts, neglects or defaults of the other or
others of them or for joining in any receipts for the sake of conformity, or
for any bankers or other persons with whom any moneys or effects
belonging to the Company shall or may be lodged or deposited for safe
custody, or for insufficiency or deficiency of any security upon which any
moneys of or belonging to the Company shall be placed out on or
invested, or for any other loss, misfortune or damage which may happen in
the execution of their respective offices or trusts, or in relation thereto;
PROVIDED THAT this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of
any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of said persons.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests of the Directors and the Company’s
chief executive in the shares (the “Shares”) or debentures of the Company
or associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO,
which will have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and/
or short positions which he/she is taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which will be required, pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein or which will be
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, are set
out below:
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Long positions in the Shares

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding

in the Company/
Associated
Corporations
Number of HRAELE
Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares TR A B IR
EEgE B HntE RHBB BHBEDL
Mr. Zhou MingmingM@e Interest in controlled corporations, 414,534,500 37.42%
("Mr. Zhou") interest in spouse and beneficial owner
JE)BA B 4 A e RErEER  REERRERERA
(Ma%k=ED
Ms. Fang Jianjun® Interest in a controlled corporation, 414,534,500 3742%
FRERLO interest in spouse and beneficial owner
RErEER  KEERLRERERA
Mr. Zhou Longrui© Interest in a controlled corporation, 70,062,500 6.32%
BB E® interest in spouse and beneficial owner
REEEER  IREERRERERA
Ms. Yang Yunfei?” Interest in a controlled corporation, 70,062,500 6.32%
BERZLTO interest in spouse and beneficial owner
R EEERD  EBERREREAA
Mr. Yang Xinxin®® Interest in a controlled corporation 20,850,000 1.88%
GRS E® and beneficial owner
LR REREAA
Mr. Wang Jigiang" Beneficial owner 500,000 0.05%
EHEERTEE EmEAA
Prof. Ouyang Minggao‘'? Beneficial owner 500,000 0.05%
LIS 6l EHEAA
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai™" Beneficial owner 500,000 0.05%
FEEEED EmEAA
Mr. Ng Chi Kit!? Beneficial owner 500,000 0.05%
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Notes:

(1)

@2

3)

)

(5)

(©)

56

Mr. Zhou is interested in the entire issued share capital of Great State Investments Limited
(“Great State”) and is therefore deemed to be interested in the 242,145,000 Shares held by
Great State.

Mr. Zhou is interested in the entire issued share capital of Jolly Pride (PTC) Limited (“Jolly Pride”)
and is therefore deemed to be interested in the 58,942,500 Shares held by Jolly Pride. In
addition, pursuant to a trust deed dated 14 June 2010 and deeds of exclusion of beneficiaries
dated 30 May 2014 and 13 October 2014, entered into between Mr. Zhou and Jolly Pride in
favour of 49 individuals who are employees of the Group (collectively, the “Jolly Pride Trust
Deed"), the economic interest of all the Shares which it holds from time to time shall belong to
the said 49 employees. However, other than the economic interest in the Shares, all other
rights as shareholders (including but not limited to voting rights and right to participate in
shareholders meetings of the Company) shall not be exercisable by the said 49 employees and
shall be exercised by Jolly Pride exclusively. As Mr. Zhou is the sole director of Jolly Pride, Mr.
Zhou also controls the exercise of the shareholders rights (other than economic interest) of all
the Shares held by Jolly Pride by virtue of the terms of the Jolly Pride Trust Deed.

Mr. Zhou directly holds 110,000 Shares. Mr. Zhou is also deemed to be interested in 500,000
Shares and 350,000 Shares which may be issued to him upon the exercise of the share options
granted to him on 4 April 2018 and 21 December 2018, respectively.

Mr. Zhou is the spouse of Ms. Fang Jianjun. Pursuant to the SFO, he is deemed to be interested
in 111,637,000 Shares which Ms. Fang Jianjun is interested by reason of her being the sole
shareholder of Bai Xiang Limited (“Bai Xiang") and 500,000 Shares and 350,000 Shares which
may be issued to her upon the exercise of the share options granted to her on 4 April 2018 and
21 December 2018, respectively.

Ms. Fang Jianjun is interested in the entire issued share capital of Bai Xiang and is therefore
deemed to be interested in the 111,637,000 Shares held by Bai Xiang. Ms. Fang Jianjun is also
deemed to be interested in 500,000 Shares and 350,000 Shares which may be issued to her
upon the exercise of the share options granted to her on 4 April 2018 and 21 December 2018
respectively. In addition, as Ms. Fang Jianjun is the spouse of Mr. Zhou, pursuant to the SFO,
she is deemed to be interested in the 110,000 Shares directly held by Mr. Zhou, and in the
242,145,000 Shares and 58,942,500 Shares which Mr. Zhou is interested by reason of his being
the sole shareholder of Great State and Jolly Pride and 500,000 Shares and 350,000 Shares
which may be issued to him upon the exercise of the share options granted to him on 4 April
2018 and 21 December 2018, respectively.

Mr. Zhou Longrui is interested in the entire issued share capital of High Joy Investments
Limited ("High Joy") and is therefore deemed to be interested in the 32,137,500 Shares held by
High Joy. Mr. Zhou Longrui is also deemed to be interested in 500,000 Shares and 350,000
Shares which may be issued to him upon the exercise of the share options granted to him on
4 April 2018 and 21 December 2018 respectively. In addition, as Mr. Zhou Longrui is the spouse
of Ms. Yang Yuntfei, pursuant to the SFO, he is deemed to be interested in the 36,225,000
Shares which Ms. Yang Yunfei is interested by reason of her being the sole shareholder of
Shiny Century Limited (“Shiny Century”) and 500,000 Shares and 350,000 Shares which may
be issued to her upon the exercise of the share options granted to her on 4 April 2018 and 21
December 2018, respectively.
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7)

@8

©)

(10)

(11)

(12)

Ms. Yang Yunfei is interested in the entire issued share capital of Shiny Century and is therefore
deemed to be interested in the 36,225,000 Shares held by Shiny Century. Ms. Yang Yunfei is
also deemed to be interested in 500,000 Shares and 350,000 Shares which may be issued to
her upon the exercise of the share options granted to her on 4 April 2018 and 21 December
2018 respectively. In addition, as Ms. Yang Yunfei is the spouse of Mr. Zhou Longrui, pursuant
to the SFO, she is also deemed to be interested in the 32,137,500 Shares which Mr. Zhou
Longrui is interested by reason of him being the sole shareholder of High Joy and 500,000
Shares and 350,000 Shares which may be issued to him upon the exercise of the share options
granted to him on 4 April 2018 and 21 December 2018, respectively.

Mr. Yang Xinxin is interested in the entire issued share capital of Tong Sheng Limited (“Tong
Sheng”) and is therefore deemed to be interested in the 20,000,000 Shares held by Tong Sheng.
Mr. Yang Xinxin is also deemed to be interested in 500,000 Shares and 350,000 Shares which
may be issued to him upon the exercise of the share options granted to him on 4 April 2018
and 21 December 2018, respectively.

Mr. Wang Jigiang is deemed to be interested in 250,000 Shares and 250,000 Shares which may
be issued to him upon the exercise of the share options granted to him on 4 April 2018 and 21
December 2018, respectively.

Prof. Quyang Minggao is deemed to be interested in 250,000 Shares and 250,000 Shares
which may be issued to him upon the exercise of the share options granted to him on 4 April
2018 and 21 December 2018, respectively.

Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai is deemed to be interested in 250,000 Shares and 250,000 Shares
which may be issued to him upon the exercise of the share options granted to him on 4 April
2018 and 21 December 2018, respectively.

Mr. Ng Chi Kit is deemed to be interested in 250,000 Shares and 250,000 Shares which may be
issued to him upon the exercise of the share options granted to him on 4 April 2018 and 21
December 2018, respectively.

?)

8)

9

(10)

(11)

(12)

BERLTHEFLPRZEERTRA D - B -
15 LR 2 1 1548 B B 40 BA BT 15 36,225,000 R BR 17 9 1
o BERL T IEBEBESFIR=F—NFHAMA
R-ZFE—NEF+Z A=+ —HAFGRHFEREETE
1 T[] BE 7] 18 3 77 #9 500,000 5% & 350,000 IR fi% 17 # 1 5 #E
o WAN - IR ER L 1+ AR BEN S5 £ RIS - IRIE
BEHERBEED - FEER L AR E—RE - A
W BERLT I ERAREEREEEBT#ER A
32137500 8B R A IR =—FE—NFHAMAR=F
—NF+ZA=+—BAEEHAEREET(E% A5
[E1 1R 7T #9 500,000 B % 350,000 A& R 17 P HE A #E 25

Bt EERIEBR AR ([FE]) 82 5B #THR
Aey#Ea  EUt - 1B EREABES FBHA#
20,000,000 B IR 17 ) #E 75 = 15 2T FT 5E 4 N 442 BAE S BIR
—ZEF-N\FOARAR=F—NF+ZA=+—HRE
1R B BB IR #E HE 7T (E 1% AT BE A 15 B 7T £9500,000 88 K
350000 R IR 17 H R HERS ©

TR EERERESFIIR=FE—NFHAMNAR=F
—N\E+ZF=+— B EREETT(E 1% 7] 5
[E] 6 57T 79 250,000 A% K 250,000 BR AR 17 R HE B 25 ~

BEHEHEFWERES IR =~ NFEMHFMAR=
FE—\F+Z A=+ BAERH O EREETEE T
BEIAI R 21T #9 250,000 B % 250,000 AR R 17 0 HE A #E 25 °

FHEHEERERER R = E—NFHAMAR=ZF
—N\E+ZF=+—HAHRH A ERERETT (1 AT 5
AR Z1T £ 250,000 2 % 250,000 AR & 17 P #E 75 #E 2

REURAERERESFIIR T NFHAMNAR=F
—N\E+ZF=+— B EIREFETT(E 1% 7] 5
[E] 6 7T 79 250,000 A% K 250,000 BR AR 17 R HE B 25 »
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTSANDSHORT T ERFRAATRORHEERALFTH
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF EERXRE

THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, so far as the Directors were aware, the following RZ-ZE—NE+-_A=+—H0 - BEZFH - A
persons have interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares T~ A TG RIEZE A L AEIEFIEXVEE 2 RE3
of the Company which were required to be disclosed to the provisions of 93 2B H{§E X 78 F 1% 75 B9 AN A B B (0 sk A8 BE AR 1
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, directly or indirectly, interested in ~ #Ex58i AR @ SKEE B EHREMEEFNNFE
5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights 15 TRARNEBEMKE RN FIREAE EIREXK
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any member of the  {F {8 BII % 2N F {& 5% 3 LA - A9HEES -

Group.

Approximate

Number of Percentage of

Name Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares Shareholding
=18 B HntE RHEE REMOB DL
Mr. ZhouM@e® Interest in controlled corporations, 414,534,500 (L) 37.42%
B 5 A e interest of spouse and beneficial owner

LR  EBERREREAA
Great State” Beneficial owner 242,145,000 (L) 21.86%
wFO BEREAA
Jolly Pride® Beneficial owner 58,942,500 (L) 5.32%
KEQ EnEAA
Ms. Fang Jianjun® Interest in controlled corporations, 414,534,500 (L) 3742%
FEELZ L interest of spouse and beneficial owner

RErEER  KEEERERERA
Bai Xiang® Beneficial owner 111,637,000 (L) 10.08%
El:d BB A
Mr. Zhou Longrui® Interest in a controlled corporation, 70,062,500 (L) 6.32%
[EBeim L interest of spouse and beneficial owner

RELEER  EBERNEREAA
High Joy® Beneficial owner 32,137,500 (L) 2.90%
SE 3 EmfEA A
Ms. Yang Yunfei”) Interest in a controlled corporation, 70,062,500 (L) 6.32%

BERZL?

58 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /

interest of spouse and beneficial owner

RprEEs KBRS NESERA

Annual Report 2018



DIRECTORS' REPORT

EEWES

Approximate
Number of Percentage of

Name Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares Shareholding

=18 B RmME RHEB REMOB DL

Shiny Century?” Beneficial owner 36,225,000 (L) 3.27%

4RO EnlEEA
FIL Limited® Interest in controlled corporations 90,421,000 (L) 8.16%
LB R

Pandanus Associates Inc.” Interest in controlled corporations 90,335,000 (L) 8.15%
R EE R

Pandanus Partners L.P.1% Interest in controlled corporations 90,335,000 (L) 8.15%
LB R

Tianneng International Investment Interest in a controlled corporation 111,680,000 (L) 10.08%

Holdings Limited?" and beneficial owner

RELERERNEREEA

FIDELITY FUNDS Beneficial owner 55,461,000 (L) 5.01%
BEmiEa A

(L): Long position L) - 2B

Notes: Bt -

(1) Mr. Zhou is interested in the entire issued share capital of Great State and is therefore deemed (1) I EHEBIRIBEEE BT A - EU - L E
to be interested in all the Shares held by Great State. R BB IR 2 ER B R -

2 Mr. Zhou is interested in the entire issued share capital of Jolly Pride and is therefore deemed — (2) Bl E BB R EZHEEITIR A #2 - Bt - FEE
to be interested in the 58,942,500 Shares held by Jolly Pride. In addition, pursuant to the Jolly W AR B A5 58942500 R IR (7 By #E 2 o 5P + 1R
Pride Trust Deed, the economic interest of all the Shares which it holds from time to time shall BREEF 2R - BT 158 8T8 R 17 B4 B F 2 15
belong to the said 49 employees. However, other than the economic interest in the Shares, all BRATIE419FZIES - A1 - BRI B EF I - 1EA
other rights as shareholders (including but not limited to voting rights and right to participate BRI M# e (BIFETRRALFRRASHR
in shareholders meetings of our Company) shall not be exercisable by the said 49 employees ERRBEZKGHET) T A HFT 495 ESTT
and shall be exercised by Jolly Pride exclusively. As Mr. Zhou is the sole director of Jolly Pride, & MEAHRETRE - ARBESELERKENE—ESF
Mr. Zhou also controls the exercise of the shareholders rights (other than economic interest) of REBEREGETRBEBNEA - B LE T HIRE A5 556
all the Shares held by Jolly Pride by virtue of the terms of the Jolly Pride Trust Deed. BRI B9AR RAEF (48 BFza bR I0) BITTIERE -

3) Mr. Zhou directly holds 110,000 Shares. Mr. Zhou is also deemed to be interested in 500,000 (3) BISEEEEFFA 110000 R 17 © JB 76 £ TR BIE D B
Shares and 350,000 Shares which may be issued to him upon the exercise of the share options RZF—-N\FWAMNAR =FE—\F+=ZA=1+—HRA
granted to him on 4 April 2018 and 21 December 2018 respectively. 1’ 1% M 1 i IR #E JE 7T (2 1% F] BE [A] 1§ 3 77 £ 500,000 R K%

350000 R (7 P HE B ##as ©
(4) Mr. Zhou is the spouse of Ms. Fang Jianjun. Pursuant to the SFO, he is also deemed to be  (4) BISEERTEEL TR - IRIFFZEFRAEIKH - A

interested in all the Shares which Ms. Fang Jianjun is interested by reason of her being the sole
shareholder of Bai Xiang and 500,000 Shares and 350,000 Shares which may be issued to her
upon the exercise of the share options granted to her on 4 April 2018 and 21 December 2018
respectively.

FEBELTREHNE—RRE  EUTHEAERTEE
L1 EBEBHDER DR FIR=F—FMANH
RZF-NF+ZF=+—HRAFKRLEEREETE
1 B] BE[AI 1 87T H9500,0008% % 35000088 5% 17 1B 25 ©
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)

(©)

7)

@8

©

(10)

(11)

Ms. Fang Jianjun is interested in the entire issued share capital of Bai Xiang and is therefore
deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Bai Xiang. Ms. Fang Jianjun is also deemed to
be interested in 500,000 Shares and 350,000 Shares which may be issued to her upon the
exercise of the share options granted to her on 4 April 2018 and 21 December 2018
respectively. In addition, as Ms. Fang Jianjun is the spouse of Mr. Zhou, pursuant to the SFO,
she is deemed to be interested in all the Shares directly held by Mr. Zhou, and in all the Shares
which Mr. Zhou is interested by reason of him being the sole shareholder of Great State and
Jolly Pride and 500,000 Shares and 350,000 Shares which may be issued to him upon the
exercise of the share options granted to him on 4 April 2018 and 21 December 2018,
respectively.

Mr. Zhou Longrui is interested in the entire issued share capital of High Joy and is therefore
deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by High Joy. Mr. Zhou Longrui is also deemed to
be interested in 500,000 Shares and 350,000 Shares which may be issued to him upon the
exercise of the share options granted to him on 4 April 2018 and 21 December 2018
respectively. In addition, as Mr. Zhou Longrui is the spouse of Ms. Yang Yunfei, pursuant to the
SFO, he is deemed to be interested in all the Shares which Ms. Yang Yunfei is interested by
reason of her being the sole shareholder of Shiny Century and 500,000 Shares and 350,000
Shares which may be issued to her upon the exercise of the share options granted to her on 4
April 2018 and 21 December 2018, respectively.

Ms. Yang Yunfei is interested in the entire issued share capital of Shiny Century and is therefore
deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Shiny Century. Ms. Yang Yunfei is also
deemed to be interested in 500,000 Shares and 350,000 Shares which may be issued to her
upon the exercise of the share options granted to her on 4 April 2018 and 21 December 2018
respectively. In addition, as Ms. Yang Yunfei is the spouse of Mr. Zhou Longrui, pursuant to the
SFO, she is also deemed to be interested in all the Shares which Mr. Zhou Longrui is interested
by reason of him being the sole shareholder of High Joy and 500,000 Shares and 350,000
Shares which may be issued to him upon the exercise of the share options granted to him on
4 April 2018 and 21 December 2018, respectively.

FIL Limited is interested in an aggregate of 90,421,000 Shares through FIL Investment
Management (Hong Kong) Limited and FIL Investment Management (Singapore) Limited
and the entities controlled by them.

Pandanus Associates Inc. is interested in an aggregate of 90,335,000 Shares through FIL
Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited and FIL Investment Management (Singapore)

Limited and the entities controlled by them.

Pandanus Partners L.P. is interested in an aggregate of 90,335,000 Shares through FIL
Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited and FIL Investment Management (Singapore)
Limited and the entities controlled by them.

Tianneng International Investment Holdings Limited directly holds 56,680,000 Shares and is
interested in 55,000,000 Shares through J¥7;T X B¢ BI#T 1R & & ¥ B IR 2~ &] and the entities
controlled by it.

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /  Annual Report 2018
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(©)

7)

8

)

(10)

(11)

FREXTHEEHN D ERITR A S - AU ®
BAEEE T2 SBROEm - HFEEL T IR
BEAFIR=ZFE—NFHAMAR=FE—NF+=AH
ZF—HRAERH A EREEITEE B[ gE R 1 TR
500,000 % % 350,000 iR iR 17 F HEB #Eas o UES) » IR T HE
FL T BRESEMIE  RIFERRBEED - B A%
LERIRBREZHE—RE - AUt - HFEEL T IHR
ABREGFEEZEIFAENEHROREALEHETEBDHE
SRR R =F—NEMFNAR=F—\F+=
B =+ — HERIR R EIETTIE 14 B] 5E A1 16 7T 1
500,000 A K 350,000 AR fig 17 F HEB Has

JERET L A A B A R B E TR - EU

BB S R B BT 2R mE s o B
T ENWERESFR=FE—NFHAMAR=F
—/\F+ZA=+—HARIR L EREETE % A5
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FIR=ZF—NEFPWAMNAR=F—\F+=A=1+—H
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Pandanus Associates Inc. &8 EER % () HR 2 A%
FIL Investment Management (Singapore) Limited % 1 Z T 15
B B RERE # 90,335,000 RIR 1D FHEB 2

Padlanus Partners L.P.i5 B EER 2 (FE) HR A RFIL
Investment Management (Singapore) Limited % 1 2 B 2 #i
B RER & #£90,335,000 RIR17 P HEF #75 ©
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ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Director of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and the Senior Management are
set out on pages 28 to 33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme on 7 June
2010 (the “Share Option Scheme”), which became effective on 7 July 2010,
for the purpose of giving the eligible persons an opportunity to have a
personal stake in the Group and motivating them to optimize their future
performance and efficiency to the Group and/or to reward them for their
past contributions, attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining on-
going relationships with such eligible persons who are significant to and/
or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the performance, growth
or success of the Group, and in the case of executives, enabling the Group
to attract and retain such individuals with experience and ability and/or to
reward them for their past contributions. As at the date of this annual
report, the Share Option Scheme has a remaining life of approximately 1
year and 3 months.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at 7 July 2010, being the listing date of the
Shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange, being 100,000,000 Shares,
which represented about 9.03% of the total issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this report. No options may be granted to any
participant of the Share Option Scheme such that the total number of
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and to
be granted to that person in any 12-month period up to the date of the
latest grant exceeds 1% of the Company’s issued share capital from time to
time.

WisRHREFN LB

B EXXFriREEE SN - AR A SEAE I B A F K
2 A Ak R B 8 R B AR AN AR (AT B R AR A
SEEFZH  BEARREFAEBEALR
Bl AT A A EE 2 B D S B AR & -

EEREREBEAENEE

i

EENERERABNEEHNE28EEERE ©

B RS

KRN ZZE—ZFFNALBB KRR =
T-TF+ A+ BE/R—IERERER S ([ER
BETE])  BEEMAERATIRENRASEES
EARENKZ  WHBMMEERAEBEY
REBT2EMERINEE B SRESBE
RIE RNV TE8E) - DANRS| e B sk LA Efth 5 = 62
ZEHARBENER HWRIX M IBEZE
R/SEBRAFRSEE TN AEERER
BESKITNEERALEZTIZIENSERE -
SHNMITHAEMS » BEASEERS| KB
BeZHABAEEMALR SHEBENEE
BTRE) - BHEANTFRAS  BREFTINGET
HR BV E3EA -

EITERIBERETE R A S EEMEMETE
REMMEBREMAEEITHRNEE LRE
HITEBB - —ZTF+AtH EAQFBRMHP
R ETMAH) EETRMBE Z210% (8
100,000,000 B f% {7 ) - HE R A A AR AR E B &
BEITIRANBZEL)003% » MBI Z&KE — X REE
feiE B AR 12{E A BT E R T
fRiEsT &2 B E 2 BRI R B 1T RO BT
PESBBARRTREDEITRAZ 1% - BTG
MRZ AT DA -
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Subject to the provisions of the Listing Rules, the Board may in its absolute
discretion when offering the grant of an option impose any conditions,
restrictions or limitations in relation thereto in addition to those set out in
the Share Option Scheme as the Board may think fit, including the time or
period before the right to exercise the option in respect of all or any of the
Shares shall vest, provided that such terms or conditions shall not be
inconsistent with any other terms or conditions of the Share Option
Scheme.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period as determined by the Board
and not exceeding 10 years from the date of the grant under the Share
Option Scheme. There is no minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised. Participants of the Share Option Scheme
are required to pay the Company HK$1.0 upon acceptance of the grant on
or before 28 days after the offer date. The exercise price of the options is
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and shall not be less
than whichever is the highest of:

(@) the nominal value of a Share;

(b)  the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets on the offer date; and

(c)  theaverage closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange'’s
daily quotation sheets for the 5 business days immediately preceding
the offer date.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years from the adoption date, after which no further options will be
granted or offered.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the Year was the Company, or
any of its holding companies or subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
Shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

62 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited  /  Annual Report 2018

REBEEMRUNG  EFERRLBRERR
HRBEZE R A A EE BB 8 PT
FHIAIMOME MR - KRR F] - BETES R
Fft 7 3K (T fa] B £ B oA <2 #E R A 0 57 8 s ] o 4
M - MR T IR IR M NS IR A ST &y ()
HAb R IRFAER -

REESETWHRA - BRERBERRRER
RERT B RFR T LATTE - 1E TS AR BB g
FHEIR B AE 2 B HIERT 105 - BB ETT
FRITRRENFA R - BIETS2EER
REAMRE2AHZFIEABELER - ARAK
RAXMI0BT - BREITEERETS2ED
BEE - ETNSER T =FFNREE

(@ i EE:

) RIRSHBEBIAMEERER EORHD UK
mE: &

© ERREZAHASELXARMRBIME
A#HEXRNFHEHE -

BRI B R B R 10FRAFTR N K&
R BERTEFRE IR EMEAE -

B EatEoN - RAFEEMAERE - NAF - EE
2R X B i A A 2 E AT S E A Rk
SEEEBEBANR RS EMEMERZ K&
KBS M o



DIRECTORS' REPORT
EESRE

Details of the movement of share options granted under the Share Option ~ ARFERIFERET SR DOBERENESFIS
Scheme for the Year are as follows: J(al N
Outstanding Forfeited/ Outstanding
Category and Exercise asat Granted Exercised Lapsed asat
Name of Price per 1 January during during during 31 December
Participants Date of Grant Share 2018 the Year the Year the Year 2018
RZE-N\f RZZ-N\E
—A-H AEEE t-ZA=t+-H
SREFRRNKE REAH BRITHE HATHE AEEERE AFERAE  RKBAX i R AT B
Directors
=
Mr. Zhou Mingming 4 April 2018 4332 - 500,000 - - 500,000
ERAEE —ZE-\FOAMAD
21 December 2018? 3114 - 350,000 - - 350,000
—E-)\&+-A=t+—RH®
Mr. Zhou Longrui 4 April 2018" 4332 - 500,000 - - 500,000
[t ZZ-\FmAEA
21 December 2018% 3114 - 350,000 - - 350,000
—E-\F+=ZA=+—H?
Ms. Yang Yunfei 4 April 2018 4332 - 500,000 - - 500,000
SERLT “E-\FMAMA
21 December 20182 3114 - 350,000 - - 350,000
—F-N\Ft-A=t-AY
Mr. Yang Xinxin 4 April 2018" 4332 - 500,000 - - 500,000
Lk iy e ZE-\FmAEAO
21 December 2018% 3114 - 350,000 - - 350,000
—E-\&+-A=t+—H®
Ms. Fang Jianjun 4 April 2018" 4332 - 500,000 - - 500,000
FRELL —Z-\FmAMAY
21 December 20182 3114 - 350,000 - - 350,000
ZE-\E+ZAZ+—R®
Mr. Wang Jigiang 4 April 2018 4332 - 250,000 - - 250,000
TERTE - \FMmAmA
21 December 2018 3114 - 250,000 - - 250,000
ZE-N\F+ZAZt—R?
Prof. Ouyang Minggao 4 April 2018" 4332 - 250,000 - - 250,000
BIS AR —Z-\FmAEAO
21 December 2018% 3114 - 250,000 - - 250,000
“F-A\FtZAZt-RY
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai 4 April 2018" 4332 - 250,000 - - 250,000
FHELE ZE-\FmAmA
21 December 2018% 3114 - 250,000 - - 250,000
ZE-\F+ZAZ+—R?
Mr. Ng Chi Kit 4 April 2018" 4332 - 250,000 - - 250,000
REGEE —Z-\FmAEAO
21 December 2018% 3114 - 250,000 - - 250,000
AN o e By =
Employees 4 April 2018" 4332 - 29,000,000 - - 29,000,000
&8 ZE-N\FmAMA®
21 December 20182 3114 - 33,000,000 - - 33,000,000
“T-\Ft-A=t-AY
Total
@5t 68,250,000 68,250,000
BEBNIERBRAR / 2018F MW 63




DIRECTORS' REPORT
EESRS

Notes:

(1) Validity period
of the share

options:

Vesting dates of
the share

options:

Performance

target:

(2) Validity period
of the share
options:

Vesting dates of
the share
options:

Performance
target:

The share options granted shall vest in the proposed grantees in
accordance with the timetable below, each with an exercise period

commencing from the relevant vesting date and ending 8 years after the

date of grant.

(a) 10% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest on
4 April 2018

() 20% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest on
4 April 2019

(c) 70% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest on
4 April 2020

Exercise of the share options is conditional upon the achievement of certain
performance targets as set out in the respective offer letters, during the

validity period of the share options.

The share options granted shall vest in the proposed grantees in
accordance with the timetable below, each with an exercise period
commencing from the relevant vesting date and ending 8 years after the

date of grant.

(a) 10% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest on
21 December 2018

) 20% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest on
21 December 2019

(c) 70% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest on

21 December 2020

Exercise of the share options is conditional upon the achievement of certain
performance targets as set out in the respective offer letters, during the
validity period of the share options.

Save as disclosed above, no share options were granted, cancelled or
lapsed during the Year.

The table showing movements in the Company’s share options held by the
Group’s employees (including directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries) and valuation of the share options are also set out in the
section headed “Share-based Payment Transactions” under Note 56 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS, CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a
party, and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a
material interest in, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the Year or at any time during the Year save as disclosed under the sub-
section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” below and “Related
Party Transactions” in note 55 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Continuing Connected Transactions”
below and “Related Party Transactions” in note 55 to the consolidated
financial statements, no Director or controlling shareholder or any of their
respective subsidiaries had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group, to which the
Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a part, during the Year.

During the Year, no contract of significance for the provision of services to
the Group by a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries was made.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which is not
determinable by the employing company within 1 year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SHARES
On 20 February 2018, the Company entered into subscription agreements
(the “Subscription Agreements”) with six individual subscribers, pursuant to
which the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue a total of
132,000,000 shares of the Company at a subscription price of HK$4.48 per
share. The Subscription Agreements have lapsed and ceased to have
further effect after 20 September 2018.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 20 February
2018, 18 May 2018, 22 June 2018 and 20 September 2018 for further details.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares
during the Year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the CG Code
throughout the Year except for the deviation to the code provision A.2.1.
For details, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report on page 34 of
this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee. For details, please
refer to the paragraph headed “Audit Committee” of the Corporate
Governance Report set out on pages 39 to 40 of this annual report.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group emphasises the importance of personal development of
individual employees. The Group has in place remuneration policies to
ensure providing adequate rewards to employees with recognised
experience for the assigned roles and duties. The Group also provides other
benefits including bonuses and shares as incentives.

The Group places high priority on maintaining good relationship with our
customers. The Group always strives to maximize customers satisfaction
and to add value for our customers. The Group identifies areas for
improvement. Customer’s complaints once acknowledged and reported
will be dealt with timely, fairly and diligently.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The information in respect of the Group's sales and purchases attributable
to the major customers and suppliers during the Year is as follows:

4.32%/11.53%
8.46%/37.35%

The largest customer/supplier
Five largest customers/suppliers in aggregate

At no time during the Year had the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital had any interest in
these major customers and suppliers.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
During the Year, the Group achieved 100% cadmium-free production and
has fully applied cadmium-free enclosed battery formulation process.

In parallel with enlarging its economic benefits and continuously enhancing
production technology, the Group has adhered to its environmental
protection philosophy of minimizing consumption of resources, pollution
and emissions. The Group continues to advocate the harmonious and
symbiotic relationship between business and the environment to fulfil its
long-term goal of “green production”. To guide the lead-acid battery industry
towards green, healthy and sustainable development, the Group has united
enterprises both upstream and downstream in a lead-acid battery industry
alliance for promoting green development and recycling during the Year.
Through a series of activities intended to improve the brand image, the
Group has strived to become the top green energy brand in the PRC.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company's
subsidiaries in the PRC. The Group's establishment and operations
accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and
Hong Kong. During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Group has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC in
all material aspects.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, a member of the Group continued to be a party to the
following continuing connected transactions which are subject to
announcements and reporting requirements but exempt from
shareholders” approval under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules by reason of
any of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) being
less than 5% on an annual basis and the annual cap amount exceeding
HK$3,000,000:

Purchase of battery production equipment

Chaowei Power Co., Ltd. ("Chaowei Power”) and Zhejiang Doulan
Intelligence Equipment Co., Ltd (“Zhejiang Doulan”), a connected person of
the Company by virtue of Rule 14A.07(4) of the Listing Rules, entered into a
battery production equipment purchase agreement (the “Battery
Production Equipment Purchase Agreement”) dated 29 December 2015,
by which Zhejiang Doulan has agreed to supply batteries intelligence
manufacturing equipment and ancillary facilities to Chaowei Power for a
term of 3 years from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018, renewable upon
expiry (subject to compliance with the relevant provisions of the Listing
Rules regarding continuing connected transactions). Zhejiang Doulan is
60% owned by Mr. Zhou Mingming and is therefore an associate of Mr.
Zhou and a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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Pursuant to the Battery Production Equipment Purchase Agreement,
Chaowei Power agreed to purchase batteries intelligence manufacturing
equipment and ancillary facilities from Zhejiang Doulan from time to time
at price with reference to actual costs (including labour costs, costs of
materials, technology development costs, rental expenses and
depreciation expenses related to batteries intelligence manufacturing
equipment and ancillary facilities ordered by Chaowei Power) plus
reasonable gross profit margin of Zhejiang Doulan, ranging from 20% to
25%, which is, to the best knowledge the Company, in line with the then
market practice as for the Company engaged in the similar industry and
with the similar scale, which shall not, in any event, be higher than the
prices of the products with comparable nature and scale charged by other
independent third party suppliers. For the purpose of ensuring the
consideration being fair and reasonable, the Company has taken into
account the following factors:

(1) the quotations from independent third parties for similar projects;
and

(2)  the historical price of similar projects procured by the Group.

For the 3 years ending 31 December 2018, the proposed annual cap
amounts for the transactions under the Battery Production Equipment
Purchase Agreement are set at RMB80,000,000, RMB110,000,000 and
RMB150,000,000, respectively (tax excluded).

During the Year, purchase of batteries intelligence manufacturing
equipment and ancillary facilities from Zhejiang Doulan amounted to
approximately RMB27,355,000, which is within the 2018 annual cap of
RMB150,000,000.

Further details of the said transaction was set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 29 December 2015.

On 28 December 2018, Chaowei Power renewed the Battery Production
Equipment Purchase Agreement by entering into another battery
production equipment purchase agreement (the “Battery Production
Equipment Purchase Agreement (2019-2021)") with Zhejiang Doulan for
another term of three years commencing from 1 January 2019 and ending
on 31 December 2021, renewable upon expiry (subject to compliance with
the relevant provisions of the Listing Rules regarding continuing connected
transactions).
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For the 3 years ending 31 December 2021, the proposed annual cap
amounts for the transactions under the Battery Production Equipment
Purchase Agreement (2019-2021) are set at RMB40,000,000, RMB40,000,000
and RMB50,000,000 respectively (tax excluded).

Further details of the said transaction was set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 28 December 2018

REVIEW BY INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions of the Group and have confirmed that
these transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the auditor
of the Company to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group on pages 67 to 69 of this annual report in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided
by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE DEED OF

NON-COMPETITION

Each of Mr. Zhou Mingming, Great State and Jolly Pride (collectively the
“Controlling Shareholders”) has confirmed that for the Year, each of them
has complied with the deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-
competition”) dated 7 June 2010 executed by the Controlling Shareholders
in favour of the Company. There has not been any opportunity in any
restricted business (being business which is or may be in competition with
the business of any member of the Group from time to time) being referred
by the Controlling Shareholders to the Company for the Year. The
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the compliance of
the Deed of Non-competition by the Controlling Shareholders for the Year
and considered the Controlling Shareholders have complied with the Deed
of Non-competition during the Year.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION SUMMARY
A financial information summary of the Group is set out on page 240 of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year, and up to the date of this annual report, none of the
Directors are considered to have interests in any business which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of
the Group, pursuant to the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and/or administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered
into or existed during the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, during the Year
and as at the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.
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AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the Year were audited by Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants who will retire at the
conclusion of the forthcoming AGM of the Company and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Zhou Mingming
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
24 March 2019
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Deloitte.

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHAOWEI POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chaowei Power
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 80 to 239, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (“ISAs”) issued by the IASB. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
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and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

RRELEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMEERTEEFARERSENSG A

Warranty provision

We identified warranty provision as a key audit matter due to
the significance of this provision to the consolidated financial
statements and the management’s estimates involved in
estimating warranty provision at the end of the reporting
period.

Estimated costs related to product warranty are accrued at the
time of sale and are based upon past warranty claims and unit
sales history and adjusted to reflect actual costs incurred, as
information becomes available.

Details of the key estimation uncertainty of warranty provision
are set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Our procedures in relation to warranty provision included:

Evaluating the appropriateness of the methodologies used
by the management for estimating warranty provision;

Testing the underlying data and challenging the
assumptions used by the management based on past
events in estimating warranty provision and changes in
market conditions; and

Comparing actual warranty outflows subsequent to the

end of reporting period, where significant, to those
expected at the end of reporting period.

BAERRFRERBOEFET
AHEEEEGHRERBIRANAREEE ;

REBGEFTRERBOEEEERTRE(CAHEEE
BERBREEEEMARE

BRI E A RRBER B R RE LRSS
ﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁi‘fﬁ,ﬁﬂﬁttﬁ

BEEBNZERERRA / 2018FH 73




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

J& 172 BLEM A S

Key audit matter

HRENER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMEERTEEFARERSENSGE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables as a
key audit matter due to the significance of trade receivables to
the Group’s consolidated financial position and the
involvement of subjective judgement and management
estimates in evaluating the expected credit losses ( “ECL") of
the Group's trade receivables at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's net trade receivables
amounting to approximately RMB2,024,755,000, which
represented approximately 11.4% of total assets of the Group.
As explained in note 2.2 to the consolidated financial
statements, in the current year, the Group adopted
International Financial Reporting Standard 9 “Financial
Instruments” (IFRS 9) and recognised an additional impairment
of approximately RMB30,687,000 as at 1 January 2018 in
accordance with the transitional provisions of IFRS 9.

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
the management of the Group estimates the amount of
lifetime ECL of trade receivables based on provision matrix
through grouping of various debtors that have similar loss
patterns, after considering internal credit ratings of trade
debtors, ageing, repayment history and/or past due status of
respective trade receivables. Estimated loss rates are based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life of the
debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information that
is reasonable and supportable available without undue costs or
effort. In addition, trade debtors with significant financial
difficulty are assessed for ECL individually.

As disclosed in notes 9 and 28 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognised approximately
RMB75,170,000 of impairment of trade receivables for the year
and the Group's lifetime ECL on trade receivables as at 31
December 2018 amounted to approximately RMB285,782,000.
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Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of trade
receivables included:

Understanding key controls on how the management
estimates the loss allowance for trade receivables;

Testing the accuracy of the ECL adjustment made by the
Group as at 1 January 2018 on initial adoption of IFRS 9;

Testing the integrity of information used by management
to develop the provision matrix, including trade receivables
ageing analysis as at 1 January 2018 and 31 December
2018, on a sample basis, by comparing individual items in
the analysis with the relevant sales agreements, sales
invoices and other supporting documents;

Challenging management'’s basis and judgement in
determining credit loss allowance on trade receivables as
at 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018, including the
reasonableness of management'’s grouping of the trade
debtors into different categories in the provision matrix,
and the basis of estimated loss rates applied in each
category in the provision matrix (with reference to
historical default rates and forward-looking information);
and

Evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of trade receivables in note 49 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter

ARELEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

J& 172 BLEM A S

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in
the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs
issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

J 172 BLEM

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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ERGEBENETRE  AEBEEEH
BHRERBEXRER - RMEERE  EENH
TREZ - BMEARERER -

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among  FfIEEIE A /8RB (EP )BT T2I8E -
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant BB ZEE R B AETEEE  BERMAESETE
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that AR 25 51| B9 A 2B BS 52 88 K fR 2k o

we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we P M EE A TER - EERMEFEEESE
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding M |EEEBEEEN  WEEZEEAIEREE

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other &2

REVERMBIMNMEREAREMER

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, LA K iBREP &6 e (L@ A ) ©

and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Tse Ming Fai.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPRERENSIVE INCOME

%m @/\&

For the year ended 31 December 2018
2= \F+ZA=+—RHLFE

Lt MW m T

0 2017
—t5F
Notes 000 RMB'000
Bt EE R ARETT
Revenue WA 5 26,948,237 24,654,011
Cost of sales $HE R AN (23,712,969) (21,731,378)
Gross profit EF 3,235,268 2,922,633
Other income and other gains E A A R B Afth 5 7 274,231 324,982
Distribution and selling expenses SiENEERY (917,817) (884,310)
Administrative expenses THR> (630,693) (546,778)
Research and development expenses R (884,914) (775,849)
Other expenses and other losses HhF > R E A EE 8 (45,865) (65,290)
Impairment losses recognised, net of reversal B R (B 518 (FOBREE E1) 9 (88,126) (83,567)
Finance costs BMEMAK 10 (336,478) (250,636)
Share of result of joint ventures EhEEDEEE (12,132) (767)
Share of result of associates JEILERE N R SEE (15,765) (4,779)
Profit before tax B 25 AT ) 78 1 577,709 635,639
Income tax expense FriSfiF s 14 (200,202) (163,755)
Profit for the year FRFE 377,507 471,884
Other comprehensive income (expense): Ememiizs ()
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to HiZg @B GmEARR
profit or loss: BIIEH :
Exchange differences on translation of financial & /BN EFE B FEIRK
statements of foreign operations RER =2 (1,690) (1,267)
Fair value gain on receivables measured at fair ~ EAFEFAEMEE
value through other comprehensive income Wz ([HEATFERTA
(“FVTOCI") BEmermEkzsl) =
Y FE W R IE Y A (B
Yoz 9,051 -
Other comprehensive income (expense) FRHEMEEYRE (FAX)
for the year, net of income tax RTS8 7,361 (1,267)
Total comprehensive income for the year FAEEKZETE 384,868 470,617
Profit for the year attributable to: AN AT FEGEFEAFE -
Owners of the Company RAEHERB A 412,714 454,816
Non-controlling interests FEIERR RE RS (35,207) 17,068
377,507 471,884
Total comprehensive income for the year AT ATEIEEA
attributable to: ZHEW=ERE
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIEZ 2 =D/ 420,075 453,549
Non-controlling interests JEFE A% M 2 (35,207) 17,068
384,868 470,617
Earnings per share BRAF
— Basic and diluted (RMB) — EAXREE(ARET) 15 0.37 041
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

im0 WIS AR 7%

At 31 December 2018
R=ZE—N\F+=ZH=+—8H

0 2017
—E—tF
Notes 000 RMB'000
B aE 5 ARBT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment ME - WENERE 17 4,991,790 4,540,191
Prepaid lease payments FEHERIE 18 458,976 350,804
Investment properties LB 19 42,327 42,720
Deferred tax assets EEFIBEEE 20 477,286 395,507
Goodwill EES 21 49,447 49,447
Intangible assets EREE 22 294,149 327,066
Interests in joint ventures REERE S 23 191,080 195,652
Interests in associates N /N e 24 131,160 119,905
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 25 - 14,694

Equity instruments at FVTOC| BRATEFAREMER
WESHRERS T A 25 10,722 -
Loan receivables TEE R 26 78,949 204,449
Amounts due from related parties FE UG B S 75 F IR 55 173,085 49,095
Prepayments and other receivables A FRIE K B At MR IR 32 47,433 11,893
Deposits paid for acquisition of land use rights U8 + #h {8 R REFR (3R & - 16,000

Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant WHREMEE - W= Nk
and equipment Frfiz & 140,609 131,652
7,087,013 6,449,075

CURRENT ASSETS REEE

Prepaid lease payments FERHEERIE 18 9,367 7,883
Inventories FE 27 2,163,059 2,308,702
Trade receivables FEME 5 R K 28 2,024,755 1,941,109
Bills receivable W E IR 29 = 1977677

Receivables at FVTOC BATEGF AHEMEER
W2 ) e s kTR 30 634,864 -
Prepayments and other receivables TR FRIE K B At FE MR IR 32 1,226,497 1,540,253
Loan receivables TEE R 26 143,659 12,876
Amounts due from related parties FE UL B S 75 T IR 55 212,406 211,788
Derivative financial instrument PTESRIA 44 - 391

Financial assets at fair value through profit BRATFEFAER
and loss (“FVTPL") (MEAFEFTABE])
e REE 45 66,427 2,321
Restricted bank deposits ZIRBIIRITIFK 33 1,159,844 1,052,383
Bank balances and cash RITREBRNRE 33 2,975,507 1,501,319
10,616,385 10,556,702
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
im0 WIS AR IR 7%

At 31 December 2018
RZZE—N\F+_A=+—H
0 2017
—F—tF
Notes 000 RMB'000
B 5E = ARETIT
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables FERTE S BR K 34 2,057,807 2,293,315
Bills payable ERERE 35 1,145,288 1,041,371
Other payables and accruals H At eI EIE R ST & 36 1,473,255 1,698,552
Amounts due to related parties & <t BB 75 I8 55 29,232 13,748
Tax liabilities HIEaE 151,545 175,733
Warranty provision IR B 38 535,253 483,167
Contract liabilities BHEE 39 578,037 -
Bank borrowings RITEE 40 3,761,691 3,193,586
Obligations under finance leases BMEREBETHET 41 - 75,000
Short-term note MCHAZEHE 42 299,930 -
10,032,038 8,974,472
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFHE 584,347 1,582,230
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EERREBAME 7,671,360 8,031,305
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRREE
Share capital B& 2R 46 74,961 74,961
Reserves b 3,927,707 3,597,653
Equity attributable to owners of the Company NAREA NFE(EREZS 4,002,668 3,672,614
Non-controlling interests FEtEfR e 59 926,162 1,014,826
TOTAL EQUITY R 4,928,830 4,687,440
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FnBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIAEE 20 3,529 1,848
Deferred income EIEW A 37 284,224 275,050
Bank borrowings RITEE 40 1,392,754 2,008,277
Medium-term note R HEAZE 42 646,331 644,298
Corporate bond EES 43 415,692 414,392
2,742,530 3,343,365
7,671,360 8,031,305

FEEFB0OEMBMNGEVERERER_-Z
—NFZA -+ RESESHIERIRETE
WHTHEERERE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 80 to 239 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24 March 2019 and
are signed on its behalf by:

Zhou Mingming Zhou Longrui

JELEL A
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
2 EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
%ﬂ_\/_\}‘l‘\oo/\,\\;ﬂ\ E)]%E

For the year ended 31 December 2018
2= \F+ZA=+—RHLFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

ARAEEAEER
Equity
Statutory Share Exchange attributable to
Share Share surplus option fmod Other translation Retained non-controlling
capital premium reserve reserve Teserve reserves Teserve eamings Subtotal interests Total
BATE
AR
EE BhE  zEks FiEhEs

B&  RbEE  BHRER i B EMRR BBk REEA P S &5t
ABOOD  RMBOOO  RVBOO  RMBODO  RWBOO  RVBON  RMBOO  RVBOIO  RMBOOO  RVBOD  RMBOO
ARHTL  ARETR ARRTT ARETR ARBTR  ARETr ARETR  ARBTT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

(note) (noteii)

((iEa) (HtEn)
At 1 January 2017 RZE-t5-A-A 74961 417301 401667 - - 318466 (1951 2092520 3302964 848457 4151421
Profitfor the year ERFIE - - - - - - - 454816 454816 17,068 471884
Other comprehensive expense for theyear  EREM2ERR - - - - - - (1267) = (1267) = (1.267)
Dividend paid to owners ofthe Company ~ ERARARIEAARS.

(note 16) (K3 16) = = - - - - - (75339) (75339) - (75339)
Dividend paid tonon-controlinginterests i3 RERRE - = = = = - - - (165880) (165380)
Capital contribution from JHERER A

non-controlling interests - - - - - 5266 - - 5266 50021 55287
Acquisiton of additonal interest WENEARME ER

in subsidaries - - - - - (2540) - - (25402) 5756 (19,646)
Disposalof partalinterests in subsidiaries £/ R kIR4IET HiE

withoutlosing control HEATDHES = = = = - 11575 - - 11375 105,286 116861
Acquistion of subsidiaries (note 54) KB AR (Hikse) - - - - - = = = - 154118 134118
Transferto resenves BARE = = 120687 - - - - (120687)

At31 December 2017 R-E—+5+-f=1-A 74,961 47,301 522,354 - - 309,905 (3,218) 2,351,311 3,672,614 1,014,826 4,687,440
Remeasurement of lowance subjectto ~ REBHEESE

expected credit osses (ECL) ([BH=EEE]) EFiE

(seenote2) BlE(ANE) - - - - - - - (23,015) (23,05) - (23,015)
Revaluation reserve (see note 2 EfERE (M) - - - - (16,528) - - - (16,528) - (16,528)
At T January 2018 (restated) RZ%-\F-A-R(LE7) 74,961 417,301 522,354 = (16,528) 309,905 (3,218) 2,328,296 3,633,071 1,014,826 4,647,897
Poftfor e et e - - - - - - - M a4 @7 37
Other comprehensive income fortheyear  ERAM2ERR - = = = 9,051 - (1,690) - 7361 - 7361
Dividend paid to owners ofthe Company ~ ERARARIEAARS.

(note 16) (K3 16) = - - - - - - (68,691) (68,691) - (68,691)
Dividend declared to IEERERERRE

non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - (71,984) (11,984)
Recogniton of equity-setted share ERNRELE A BER

based payments i - - - 21,47 - - - - 21,47 - 21,47
Capital contribution by FARERTE

non-controling nterests - - - - > = = = = 6,038 6,038
Acquisition of additional nterest WENEARME B

in subsiares - - - - - (2:965) = = (2965) 142 (1,543)
Disposal of partialinterests in subsidiaries £/ RkIBHIE T HENS

withoutlosing control NEhiEs - = = = s (69) - - (69) 1,069 1,000
Acquisition of anon-wholly owned W2 ERANHEAA

subsidiary (note 54) (MtzEs4) - - - - - = = = - 9,998 9,998
Transferto resenves BAERE - = 162,722 > = = - (16272) - - -
At31 December 2018 R=E-\E+-R=1-H 74,961 417,301 685,076 21,47 (7,477) 306,871 (4,908) 2,509,597 4,002,668 926,162 4,928,830
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mm

SiERBEER

For the year ended 31 December 2018

:I:—?

Notes:

(i)

(if)

84

E-T—

NF+ZA=+—HILFE

In accordance with the articles of association of all subsidiaries established in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”), those subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of profit after
taxation reported under the relevant accounting policies and financial regulations in the PRC
to the statutory surplus reserve until the reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital. Transfer
to this reserve must be made before distributing dividends to equity owners. The statutory
surplus reserve can be used to make up previous year’s losses, expand the existing operations
or convert into additional capital of the subsidiaries.

Other reserves are mainly arising from (i) the difference between the fair value of the
consideration paid/received and the carrying amount of the net assets acquired from/
disposed to the non-controlling shareholders; (ii) debt waived by a related party; and (iii) paid-
in capital of Chaowei Power Co., Ltd. (‘Chaowei Power”) transferred during the reorganisation
made on 9 March 2010.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

A O\ N e —]
MROIREME R
For the year ended 31 December 2018
2T \Ft+-_A=t+—RHLLFE

0 2017
—E—tF
000 RMB'000
R ARETTT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REED
Profit before tax FR A5 B 577,709 635,639
Adjustments for: FEE
Interest income M BW A (50,909) (38,236)
Finance costs B & R AN 336,478 250,636
Share of result of joint ventures EIRE B DERES 12,132 767
Share of result of associates i NG e 15,765 4,779
Gain on changes in fair value of derivative PTESBTEATFEZFSKE
financial instruments - (391)
Gain on changes in fair value financial BEATEFABRNSREE
assets at FVTPL A EEB) - (143)
Gain on disposal of an associate HE —RKEE QB - (4,900)
Gain arising on contribution from other HAREMIEEE R —KEEE QA
investor to an associate B T E AR - (14,534)
Loss on disposal of property, plant LEWE - WE &KX EEE
and equipment 8,878 20,385
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BENREITE 405,921 386,330
Depreciation of investment property WEMERE 2,832 2,815
Amortisation of intangible assets B A = 32,917 17,162
Prepaid lease payments released to profit FFABZEMNTENEEFIE
or loss 8,558 6,928
Release of government grants from 3 FUE M5 A B 13 T 4 B
deferred income (48,375) (20,2171)
Allowance for credit losses on trade receivables ERE ZERFNEEEERE 75,170 82,679
Allowance for (reversal of) credit losses on B IEN EE B EEE
other receivables (#mEl) 12,956 (7,462)
Allowance for credit losses on loan receivables RUWEREE EERE - 8,350
Reversal of allowance for inventories FEEERRE (5,568) (187)
Share option scheme xR 2l 21,247 -
Operating cash flows before movements in HEEREHINCERERNE
working capital 1,405,711 1,330,406
Decrease in inventories FERD 160,431 73,056
Decrease (increase) in receivables, deposits FEWERIE ~ e RIEFUR
and prepayments A (38 0) 1,465,438 (1,354,308)
(Increase) decrease in amounts due from JiE s R Bg: T k78 (380 ) Rk >
related parties (14,008) 10,010
Increase in payables, deposits received FEfIZRIE - BEUIES RTEIRE A
and accrued charges byl 306,999 716,795
Decrease in contract liabilities EHBERD (129,481) -
Increase in deferred income EIEYASE N - 12,214
Increase (decrease) in provision for warranty (RABERABIE I CRL D) 52,086 (60,782)
Increase in amounts due to related parties JE 1<) B g T SR IEE N 15,484 3,390
Cash generated from operations LIEMSIRE 3,262,660 730,781
Income tax paid BT H (270,181) (154,209)
Net cash from operating activities ST BN TSI £ 558 2,992,479 576,572
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

/O N —]
moIRERE R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
2= \F+ZA=+—RHLFE

0 2017
—E—+F
Note 000 RMB'000
BiaE R ARETTT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZED
Assets-related government grants received BB EREBTHER 57,549 33,761
Interest received B A E 46,721 36,059
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE - BE L& (734,213) (537,371)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant HEWX « HEREE
and equipment FriS 318 38,812 1,794
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant ~ UWEE¥ % - BB M & &
and equipment Nize (140,609) (131,652)
Purchases of investment property BEREMF (2,217) (1,267)
Purchases of intangible assets BEETAE - (142,211)
Addition to prepaid lease payments TET I E R IEIE N (118,214) (20,170)
Deposits paid for acquisition of land use rights U B + 3t FR#EEY 2 1
Be 16,000 (16,000)
Net cash inflow (outflow) on acquisition W EE T B A =R mA
of subsidiaries Oftd) 588 54 153 (54,522)
Cash paid for establishment of joint ventures BUSETLEMNES - (66,000)
Capital contribution to joint ventures G ERFEEE (21,400) =
Capital reduction from a joint venture —REEBREEREIRE 18,240 -
Cash paid for establishment of associates BUBERRMTES (27,020) (62,458)
Purchases of financial assets at FVTPL BEERAFETABR
NEREE (64,106) -
Purchases of available-for-sale investments BEAMHEEREAE - (14,694)
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits REZ R HIERTTIE K 7,072,254 4,189,353
Placement of restricted bank deposits T 2R IR TR (7,179,324) (4,696,053)
Advance of loan receivables U E FRE TR (81,500) (40,552)
Collection of loan receivables B EWE R 9,116 38,811
Loans to associates Bl NEI =& (129,244) (50,474)
Collection of loan to an associate BR—REERNRIER 4,116 BRIz
Advance to related parties ) A Bt 75 #K (18,988) (104,473)
Advance to a shareholder of a joint venture A—RE&hE—%
PRER B - (20,000)
Advance to a former associate [ — SR ATHE = R A E R - (33,000)
Repayment from a former associate —XAIEEE A BlEK 6,600 -
Net cash used in investing activities KEEHTAE S H5E (1,247,274) (1,687,670)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

I\\/—J—\ E% /\_/\ ;”EL % %

For the year ended 31 December 2018
(2 - N\F+_A=+—HILFE

0 2017
—E—+t5F
Note 000 RMB"000
iz R ARBT T
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEED
New bank borrowings raised FERNRTEER 4,443,016 5,112,069
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITEE (4,490,434) (2,981,689)
Repayment of finance lease payables BREMRERE (75,000) (100,000)
Short-term note raised SHENEHEE 300,000 700,000
Payment of issue cost for raising SNEREEHEED
short-term note BATRAR (970) (1,701)
Repayments of short-term note EERBREER - (700,000)
Medium-term notes raised SENFHER - 700,000
Payment of issue cost for raising X T EE T BAREN
medium-term note BATRAR - (6,100)
Repayments of medium-term note EERHER - (50,110)
Repayments of corporate bond EELEES - (182,196)
Interest paid BIHE (336,453) (267,211)
Dividends paid BT S (68,691) (75,338)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest AT IR R AR B (45,640) (165,880)
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary U B — 5% T /& A F1EY
BIME (1,543) (19,646)
Partial disposal of equity interests in subsidiaries £ AT B A TIB 2 5
W 1,000 9,000
Capital contribution by non-controlling interests ~ FEE Sz & 6,038 55,287
Net cash (used in) from financing activities mEES) (FTA) 5
REHER 47 (268,677) 2,027,085
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRFSESEYEM
e 1,476,528 915,987
Cash and cash equivalents FURe RReFED
at beginning of the year 1,501,319 588,439
Effects of exchange rate changes [EREFHT L (2,340) (3,107)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of theyear, FRBEELRELZEY -
represented by bank balances and cash DRITEBRRBASRTE
(note 33) (MtzE33) 2,975,507 1,501,319
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 18 January 2010 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
and its shares have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect
from 7 July 2010. The address of the registered office of the
Company is P.O. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West
Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205 Cayman Islands, and the address
of its principal place of business in the PRCis No. 18, Chengnan Road,
Huaxi Industrial Function Area, Changxing County, Zhejiang
Province, the PRC.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB”), the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group”) operate (the functional currency of the Company and most
of its subsidiaries). The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 59.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to IFRSs

issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”)

for the first time in the current year:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and the
related Amendments

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

Amendments to
IFRS 2

Amendments to
IFRS 4

Amendments to
|AS 28

Amendments to
IAS 40

Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions

Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

As part of the Annual Improvements to IFRS
Standards 2014-2016 Cycle

Transfers of Investment Property

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /  Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group's financial performance and positions for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these

consolidated financial statements.

2.1

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has applied IFRS 15 for the first time in the current
period. IFRS 15 superseded IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied IFRS 15 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying this Standard recognised
at the date of initial application, 1 January 2018. Any difference
at the date of initial application is recognised in the opening
retained earnings (or other components of equity, as
appropriate) and comparative information has not been
restated. Furthermore, in accordance with the transition
provisions in IFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply the
Standard retrospectively only to contracts that are not
completed at 1 January 2018 and has used the practical
expedient for all contract modifications that occurred before
the date of initial application, the aggregate effect of all of the
modifications was reflected at the date of initial application.
Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared under
IAS 18 Revenue.

The Group recognises revenue from sell lead-acid motive
batteries, lithium-ion batteries and other related products to
its customers.

Information about the Group'’s performance obligations and
the accounting policies resulting from application of IFRS 15
are disclosed in notes 3 and 5, respectively.

2.

BRAN T B B B A% IR E R R ASET
A ([EIpR A #3R & 2 A ) (&)

7S 6 [ 38 1l A R A9 R BT B PR B A R S
RAIRAZET 2 (4R)

BRIXEBEEN  RAFEERZEHAE
BB REERRET A REERNEE K
BEFENPBRARMAL,HZELHE
MRV RBELEEAZE

21 ERHMBEEEUBISHRESSNW
%
74 85 80 50 7 B RS 2 P L DS B 75
s 81|55 1557 - BRI B A 4R 5 B
155 B BB @SRRI 1854 -
BB R B 11 LA 4 AR
BiE -

AR BB B W BB B 5 e e 2
155 - MBERXEAZEAN R
BERBERERBH_Z—/N\F—H
—BHER - RBEREABHNERNZ
HOERFNRERN S EENEMAE
poEb D (AE R ) R - BEXEESIL
BRER - 1o RIZER IS RELE
RIS 15 SRV IBIR RS - AR EIEEE
BR_F—N\F—A— BHEARTKH
BREPEAZER - A ARE
REMBHAEENSDERERG
SERE FMAERNERYERE
RIER A BRI - HRLLEE M TIR
EEIFRE T ERF 18RMARE -
it BT AR AR

AEBEERREMNETPHENKS
hE® - EFTFELREMABED
HIHA ©

B A AN 5 [ ) /e R R o 5 i o 22 A

FISHEMEENBORERGTEER
BRI BRI RE3 RS HKEE -
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily

PR A AT B B B A% R o E R R ASET
([ Bt 33 &5 2 Al |) (&)

7S 6 [ 38 11 A 4 A0 T R B PR B A R S

effective for the current year (continued) EUDSECHE NG )
2.1 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 2.1 B EREENFISHEFESHIW
(continued) = (#8)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 15 B K HE 7 BIBR BT 75 R 25 2E I 3 15 S8 A
EEZEZA B
The impact of transition to IFRS 15 arising from the initial AEE TR AEL T XER
application of IFRS 15 on the Group’s major revenue B B2 B 75 R 5 ZE BI85 15 5% PTEE AR 3B
generating operation was insignificant on retained earnings at ERIRE SRS R F 15T EY
1 January 2018. R=ZZE—N\F—A—BHRE B
TERMARE -
The following adjustments were made to the amounts UTFAR-_ZE—N\F— A —BHHERAE
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position B TS AR R P ERH S ZBEL AR -
at 1 January 2018. Line items that were not affected by the NZEBEEFENBE TNBIEEA °
changes have not been included.
Carrying
amounts 3 :
previously amo
reported de
at 31 December
2017 Reclassification 018
H i Ej [SAd Iy
H 5
FERIE 2] % 15 5
R-_T—+tF E—N\4
+=ZA=+—H A—H
HEREE okl kAR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREET T K
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals B ERRIERETER 1,698,552 (707,518) 991,034
Contract liabilities AHEE - 707,518 707,518

As at 1 January 2018, advances from customers of
RMB707,518,000 previously included in other payables and
accruals were reclassified to contract liabilities.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2. ERANETET BRSO A R E R RIS AT
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING A (TERTEREER ] (&)
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily 7R 5 FE 3 4 A R A T 5T B PR B A R A
effective for the current year (continued) Al R A& RT A (#8)
2.1 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 2.1 BRETIEHREEREISHEFSHW
(continued) = (&)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 15 B X FA EIBR B1 7% 3 25 2E R 15 3 A
(continued) EEFZENE ()
The following tables summarise the impacts of applying IFRS TERBEALE B R BR B IS e s 2E BI85 15
15 on the Group's consolidated statement of financial position EHARKEBR_ZE—N\NF+=A
as at 31 December 2018 and its consolidated statement of =+ —HWNGEEUNBEHRARRAFEE
cash flows for the current year for each of the line items HirEReneRPXTEREEN
affected. Line items that were not affected by the changes FE AT ERAENTENIEE TE
have not been included. The impact of applying IFRS 15 on FRIEA - FERABR IS RELERIZE 15
the Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss and other REAREGREERREMEEKE
comprehensive income was insignificant. ROFELBWMTRE -
Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position: BB BRI R E
Amounts
without
application of
As reported  Reclassification IFRS 15
R FE R B
B 75 45 2 A
AR E F ) BHHE FI5HMEHE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBTT ARETT

Current liabilities REAE
Other payables and accruals Hfth FE A~ FRIE R e 5T B 1,473,255 578,037 2,051,292
Contract liabilities EHEE 578,037 (578,037) =
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2. BRAEETEIRR Bt B 3R 5 B RIS ET
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING (BRI R EZER D) (&)
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily 7 6 B2 R 4 A SR T RT B PR B A R A
effective for the current year (continued) EUDSECHE NG )
2.1 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 2.1 BREEREEAFISHREFEFESHIW
(continued) = (%)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 15 B R e BB BY 75 48 & 2B BI 28 15 38 AT
(continued) LR ()
Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows: HiEAReMERNTE -
Amounts
without
application of
As reported  Reclassification IFRS 15
7R P& A B B
B 7 3 & 2 Bl
BN F %) EFOE FB15HMeHE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT ARETT

Increase in payables, deposits FERERIE - BldRE R
received and accrued charges TEIRE A N 306,999 (129,481) 177,518

Decrease in contract liabilities EHaERD (129,481) 129,481 =
2.2 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related 2.2 BREI IS HREERFIOREESMIAR

amendments HEEIEET A

In the current year, the Group has applied IFRS 9 Financial RAEE  ANEEE FE R BRI %R

Instruments, and the related consequential amendments to LB F oSk 2 T A K& H i BB B 1%

other IFRSs. IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for (1) the REEBERBANMEEEE] - BB F S

classification and measurement of financial assets and financial REERFORBENEREEREH

liabilities, (2) expected credit losses (“ECL") for financial assets BENSEETE Q2eRmEERE

and other items. tIg B WBHEEEE(FBHEEE

Bl -

92 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /  Annual Report 2018




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i O W8S i = BV 5

For the year ended 31 December 2018
2 E- ) \F+_A=1t—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2.
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (continued)

2.2 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
amendments (continued)
The Group has applied IFRS 9 in accordance with the transition
provisions set out in IFRS 9. i.e. applied the classification and
measurement requirements (including impairment)
retrospectively to instruments that have not been
derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date of initial application)
and has not applied the requirements to instruments that
have already been derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The
difference between carrying amounts as at 31 December 2017
and the carrying amounts as at 1 January 2018 are recognised
in the opening retained earnings and other components of
equity, without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared under
IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of IFRS 9 are
disclosed in note 3.

BRAN T B B B A% IR E R R ASET
A ([EIpR A #3R & 2 A ) (&)

7N 5 5 ) 25 2K B9 R AT B PR B B R o 2
RAIRAZET 2 (4R)
22 EBRMBHREZENFIREMIARK

MBS A ()
AEBE D RIBERI I REERE R
FAT 3 RO 38 R 15 ST 8 P B R B 5 o o
AIZE o5k - BN _—_ZT—N\F—H—H
(BRERBH) MmARILEEANTA
EPERIBENERE(BERE)
BYEHER-_T—NF—-—A—AK
LEINTAERRABRARE RN=-F
—tEF+t-A=+—BNKREEER
E-NF-A-HONKREEZED
Eﬁﬂimﬁm%ﬂ&%\mﬁm@
PRER D RS - WEBFILL B E R

AR BRER DR EEER & ERE
MEMT A BARAERE R
it BT HEER A LR

PRl R BRI B s i o 2R A1) 56 9 S T+ 3R
BRI M 3 R -
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2. RAFFTERMEREZELREET
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING (B EREAER ) ()
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily AEERE LR TR SRS
effective for the current year (continued) EUDSECHE NG )
2.2 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related 2.2 BB SHREERFIEESMIAR
amendments (continued) HERBIERT A (4E)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 9 BT A JE A BIBR BT 7 4R 2 2E Bl 8 O S T EE
s J:0i73 0
The table below illustrates the classification and measurement TRARAR R BB B 75 3R 5 22 RI 58 9 5%
(including impairment) of financial assets subject to ECL under N et %5 30598 A B X EF B
IFRS 9 and IAS 39 at the date of initial application, 1 January - N\F—A—HAGREREE
2018. EBEENEREENSERE (BFER
(EDIE
Available Equity Tradeand
for-sale  Receivables  instruments bills  Deferred tax FVTOCI Retained
investments atFVToC! atFVTOC! receivable assets reserve earnings
BOTE  RATE ROTE
AR AR EWE S itA
qft 2EREN  2EREN ERR BEHNE Hit2E
HERE ETE BERIE ERZEE BE  WBENEE RERA
Notes RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000

M ARBTT ARETR  ARETR ARMTR ARETRT ARETT ARETR

Closing balance at R=B-t&+=A=1+-H
31 December 2017 — IAS 39 WERES —EREEA
£39% 14694 = = 3918786 395,507 = 2351311

Effect arising from initial application &% & Fi 1B 815 4 & % 8

of IFRS 9: FORHMEENTE
Reclassification EFSE
From available-for-sale investments B A ERE @ (14694) - 14694 - - - -
From loans and receivables BERRERFE (b) - 1977677 - (1977677) = = -
Remeasurement BHiE
Impaiment under ECL model BOREEREEAETHRE © = = = (30687) 7672 - (23015)
From amortised cost to fair value BiREENAEARATE (b) - (22037) - - 5,509 (16,528) -

Opening balanceat 1January 2018 R=ZF-\£—-F—A
WENELR - 1,955,640 14694 1910422 408,688 (16,528) 23282%
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2.
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)
2.2 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
amendments (continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 9
(continued)
(@)  Available-for-sale investments (“AFS")
From AFS equity instruments to FVTOCI

The Group elected to present in other comprehensive
income (“OCI") for the fair value changes of part of its
equity investments previously classified as AFS. These
investments are not held for trading and not expected
to be sold in the foreseeable future. At the date of initial
application of IFRS 9, RMB14,694,000 were reclassified
from AFS to equity instruments at FVTOCI, which were
unquoted equity investments previously measured at
cost less impairment under IAS 39.

(b)  Loans and receivables

As part of the Group's cash flow management, the
Group has the practice of discounting some of the
discounts bills receivable to financial institutions before
the bills are due for payment and derecognises bills
discounted on the basis that the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards to the relevant
counterparties. Accordingly, the Group’s bills receivable
of RMB1,977,677,000 were considered as within the hold
to collect contractual cash flows and to sell business
model, and reclassified to receivables at FVTOCI. The
related fair value losses of RMB16,528,000 (after tax) was
adjusted to FVTOCI reserve as at 1 January 2018.

BRAN T B B B A% IR E R R ASET
A ([EIpR A #3R & 2 A ) (&)

7S 6 [ 38 1l A R A9 R BT B PR B A R S

RAIRAZET 2 (4R)
22 EBRMBHREZENFIREMIARK
MBS RT A (&)

B A JE A BIBR B 7 4R 2 2E Rl 25 9 9 T EE

L ERE (E)

@ AHHERE(AIHEEERE])
A SRR T A SR AT
Bt AHMb 2wk
AEEREFHE LN BEAH
HERENRAREN QT ESE
it AEMEEmRES ([HbEm
W)  ZEREXIEFHEE
& - AW A TEHBR A R igRE
& o B X TE R BIRR B 7 R A 8
BlZEosk=E H » AR 14,694,000
TEAIREEREETHERIR
AN EFAH M 2 E RS EZS
T A - Ty e AR iR B & 5t 2%
BIZE 30 SRR AR R R B R 2 K
FERERARIKRE o

(b) ERREWEIE
EBAEEBE S REEEN—3F
o AEBMEN SR EREIHE
2 Al [ ma A RS AL 3R 205 B IR
WEE R IEERE BRI ER -
W HERAEEE EEANIDR
MO REEEEEIZHTF -
Hit - AEBRHEREEARE
1977677000 LR BB RFA
LB A#R S RE RMELER
E¥BER  TEFOBEERATF
EaT A E b 2 m 4R 5 /9 18 W R
B-R_Z—N\F—HF—H8 #
BHEHBAFLTEEBEARE
16,528,000 7T (PR Fi 18 ) =2 A F
Bt AHMb 2 USRI -
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)
New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)
2.2 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
amendments (continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 9
(continued)
(©)  Impairment under ECL model
The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all trade
receivables. To measure the ECL, trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and aging.

Loss allowances for other financial assets at amortised
cost mainly comprise of other receivables, amounts due
from related parties, loan receivables, restricted bank
deposits and bank balances and cash, are measured on
12-month ECL (“12m ECL") basis and there had been no
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

The Group's receivables instruments at FVTOCI are bills
receivable that are issued by banks with high credit
rating. Therefore, these bills receivables are considered
to be at low credit risk and the loss allowance is
measured on 12m ECL basis.

As at 1 January 2018, the additional credit loss allowance
of RMB23,015,000 (after tax) has been recognised
against retained earnings. The additional loss allowance
is charged against the respective asset.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2. ERANETET BRSO A R E R RIS AT
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING A ([ERPREA A& 2R |) (48)
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily 7R 5 FE 3 4 A R A T 5T B PR B A R A
effective for the current year (continued) AIRAEET A (48)
2.2 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related 2.2 BMEKREENFIFRSMTAR
amendments (continued) MEEIERT A (&)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 9 BT X JE F B RR A7 75 3 25 2E R 28 9 3 P e
(continued) EE R (E)
(©  Impairment under ECL model (continued) © TEHEEEEEAXETHNRE
(&)
All loss allowances for trade receivables as at 31 R-_ZE—+F+-_F=+—8 -
December 2017 reconcile to the opening loss allowance JEUS B 5 BRIRE) BT A B 48 B 1 B
as at 1 January 2018 is as follows: T )\F—A—HOFVERE
BEHERNT -
Trade receivables
FEW B 28R 5K
RMB'000
AREFIT
At 31 December 2017 — IFRS 9 R=-B—tF+=A=+—H— 205,692
B PR B 7 3R 5 2E Rl 22 9 5%
Amounts remeasured through opening KENRBBNENTE 2S5
retained earnings 30,687
At 1 January 2018 R=-ZE—N\F—H—H 236,379
2.3 Impacts on opening consolidated statement of financial 23 EAMEHERBFIFREHBERRT
position arising from the application of all new R E
standards
As a result of the changes in the entity's accounting policies BRI ERSTEREESL F
above, the opening consolidated statement of financial IR M BERRAKBETAET - T&K
position had to be restated. The following table show the IS ERITE B R AE - 1~
adjustments recognised for each individual line item. Line BRAEEFENIEB TNBIEENR °
items that were not affected by the changes have not been
included.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2,
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)
New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily

PR A AT B B B A% R o E R R ASET
([ Bt 33 &5 2 Al |) (&)

7S 6 [ 38 11 A 4 A0 T R B PR B A R S

effective for the current year (continued) EUDSECHE NG )
2.3 Impacts on opening consolidated statement of financial 23 EAMEHERNBFUFREHBERR
position arising from the application of all new RO E(E)
standards (continued)
31 December anua
2017 IFRS 15 IFRS 9 018
—T—tF ERUBRE BEREERE :
+=-B=t+—"H ZRIZE 155 LRIFE 9% A—H
(Audited) Restated
(&%) EE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T ARET T R
Non-current assets FRBEE
AFS AftHERE 14,604 - (14,694) -
Equity instruments at FVTOCI IR ATFAERT AR 2 ElRE
FiEm TR - - 14,694 14,694
Deferred tax assets BRERIAEE 395,507 - 13,181 408,688
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables EKE ZER 1,941,109 - (30,687) 1,910,422
Bill receivable ez 1977677 - (1977,677) -
Receivables at FVTOC| BATEGAEMEERE
#0 I FRIE - - 1,955,640 1,955,640
Current liabilities TEaE
Other payables and accruals ~ EAER FIBRETER 1,698,552 (707,518) = 991,034
Contract liabilities BHEE = 707,518 = 707,518
Capital and reserve EXR#E
Reserves f#fE 3,597,653 - (39,543) 3,558,110

For the purposes of reporting cash flows from operating
activities under indirect method for the year ended 31

December 2018, movements in working capital have been

RBRBHRBZEZERBEEZE T —N\F
T—BEREMFRERE

+=—A=

HEELEHE N EXEE - RIFZ
E—N\F—A—-AZFNFBRREK

e

computed based on opening statement of financial position
as at 1 January 2018 as disclosed above.

The net effects arising from the initial application of IFRS 15
and IFRS 9 on the carrying amount of interests in associates

EERA BRERBRMBHREE
R 5815 5% Ko B BR A 75 3R 5 BRI 6 9 5%
HENEEUBRELBE-_FT N
Ft_A=+—HALFEFRAUNER
RPMBERR RS DERGIRE
BEELENFFERMIRE -

and joint ventures on the opening consolidated financial
statements and the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2018 was insignificant in the opinion
of the Directors.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)
New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective
The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments
to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 16
IFRS 17
IFRIC 23

Amendments to IFRS 3

Leases'

Insurance Contracts®

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Definition of a Business*

Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

and IAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture’

Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material®

and IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement’

Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs

2015-2017 Cycle!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
& Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the

acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning
on or after 1 January 2020

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

2.

BRAN T B B B A% IR E R R ASET
A ([EIpR A #3R & 2 A ) (&)

E SRR B 18] R 4 R AT T 5] B BR Bt B 3R &
ERRAERT A

AREBYW BIRF RN T EEME R RERK
HETR] BB B A R 5 R A B RT AN

\)

BB BaEEE 6% MHE
BRBBRELNS175% REEA

Gl ﬁﬁ‘#&i = FriZ i TR
RESREEBH

BPR B 7 R o 2 B FHEE
F3% (BIIK)

BIPR B e 4R AGBH BRI
F 95 (BFIAR) i

B B 75 R o5 2 B REZ RS A%
F10RREE S BEPRZRNEES
%8I 285% (BT A) BT &

Bl @ ERE 157 BAMEE’

RER g ER

EEVACCHEN)

BIRR @RI 195 A BIEET - R EAEE
CCHEN

BIRR =t 2ER%E 285 REZRRRAELF
CCHES) R

BRI 75 4 e B BN B e —F
(BT%) —hFE-FtFH

HFERHE

! RZZ—NF— B —HRZRRARNFEER

2 RFFEETE A HIsk 2 R FE A

: R-BE——F— A B2 ERABNFEER

! HRBEARA—E_TF - A —HRZRFAEHD

BREFERGEE RN ZRNEBAHREERE
E
: R-BE-TF— A B2 ERABNFEER
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2. BRAETETEIRR B A R E E R RS
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING (BT HHREER ) (&)
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet EEGERNRERNVFITERMERE
effective (continued) ERIRERTA (&)

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs mentioned below, the B T STl AT B R B 7S i 5 2 Bl R AZ BT AR
Directors anticipate that the application of all other new and G - EETEEARE B AT A H i ET B R B A5 =R
amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the SRR RAEET AR A B AR RN LRSI
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future. MRBREATE o

IFRS 16 Leases BRI R EEAE 16 5HE

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of B0 B B S R 5 HE BRI 25 1655 Ak pl B AR A R
lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and HANEELH LG RIESIA—EFRE
lessees. IFRS 16 will supersede IAS 17 Leases and the related = o %‘Iﬁ’%ﬁﬁ%iﬁi‘;ﬁ,ﬁllﬁ 65 R - 1§
interpretations when it becomes effective. EURBIBR 25T 2R 17 55 & M ARRERERE ©
IFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of B B B 7S 3R 5 X BI 58 16 SRAR IR AT sk Bl B EE A2
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. In addition, CTHEEFPEHRESHEERREE L - I
IFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback transactions to be determined AN BIBREA TSRS XER S 1657 AR E SR M
based on the requirements of IFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of RS IBIEBIBR B R 2RISR 1557 A B8
the relevant asset should be accounted as a sale. IFRS 16 also HEEERTCEEAHEE AR B EMmME
includes requirements relating to subleases and lease modifications. JE ° BRI E R 16N BREABES

HEHEEHRRE °

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed for REHHEREEEEEEN  KEHER
lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use REMENZERATEASTTRERKL - IF
asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all BHEABANEHEREAEAREENR
leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of low value HEBEMNERNER -

assets.
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2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially
measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of cash flows,
the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments as
investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and
those classified as investment properties while other operating lease
payments are presented as operating cash flows. Upon application
of IFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be
allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flows by the Group.

Under IAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset and a
related finance lease liability for finance lease arrangement and
prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a
lessee. The application of IFRS 16 may result in potential changes in
classification of these assets depending on whether the Group
presents right-of-use assets separately or within the same line item
at which the corresponding underlying assets would be presented if
they were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable to lessor,
IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in IAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a
lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 16.

2.

BRAN T B B B A% IR E R R ASET
A ([EIpR A #3R & 2 A ) (&)

E BB A E o R 4 SR AR AT B R A B 3R
A RASFT A ()

BB pBREERE 16 7HE (H)
ERREEFREAGTE - MEERIZKA
(Br&E T HISMERIN) BRI E RRERE
APEMEMEEREENAEMAR - M
BRENIEE B HAXNNEERENR

Uk (BB HEEITNFEFELRE -
ARERELEME - AEE B ATHIRATR
NHEERBE2INAFREREEL RS
RREMEENRERSNRE - MEMKLE
HEFHZIA/EERERE - RERABEK
I HmEERNE 1655 - AEEKAHEEE
BENEEREIREZ) ARERERE
BT R B EE D o

BREBEBEERESTENE 175  FA5EEHRE
HERHRR - REEMEHERENER
& ARBEE L (NREEAABEA) BN
HEFA - &R BIFR B H53RE Z2RF 1657 A
EBHRFEEEN B LNEGEES  BUR
RASEERNXEREHREBEERRT
ZEREZYINFE-BE NI IEREEE -

BINERRHEARE TREN - BRFB
SFEAF1H/ABRE BB SHERF

17RAHEASRE - LESRTEHEA

HEENEAKEHEARERE -

AN - BIBREA S IR E SRS 16 58 IR R SKEUR
R HVRE -
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of RMB13,660,000 as disclosed in note 51. A
preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet
the definition of a lease. Upon application of IFRS 16, the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect
of all these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term
leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental deposits
paid of RMB347,000 and refundable rental deposits received of
RMB258,000 as rights and obligations under leases to which IAS 17
applies. Based on the definition of lease payments under IFRS 16,
such deposits are not payments relating to the right to use the
underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such
deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments to
refundable rental deposits paid would be considered as additional
lease payments and included in the carrying amount of right of-use
assets. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits received would be
considered as advance lease payments.

The application of new requirements may result in changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above. The
Group intends to elect the practical expedient to apply IFRS 16 to
contracts that were previously identified as leases applying IAS 17
and IFRIC-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease and not apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease applying IAS 17 and IFRIC-
Int 4. Therefore, the Group will not reassess whether the contracts
are, or contain a lease which already existed prior to the date of
initial application. Furthermore, the Group intends to elect the
modified retrospective approach for the application of IFRS 16 as
lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial application
to opening retained earnings without restating comparative
information.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of IAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in IAS 36
Impairment of Assets.

3.

FTEETHE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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NE+TZA=1+—RHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiary is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group's equity therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's relevant components of equity and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant reserves
between the Group and the non-controlling interests according to
the Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any) are
derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners
of the Company. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
IFRS 9/1AS 39 or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that
deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at
acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at
fair value. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a business
When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do not
constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises the
individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed by
allocating the purchase price first to the financial assets and financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other individual assets and
liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of
purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or
bargain purchase gain.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented separately
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition, which represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not larger than
an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period,
the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).
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Goodwill (continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of the cash-
generating unit within the group of cash-generating units, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of
the amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of
an operation within the cash-generating unit (or a cash-generating
unit within a group of cash-generating units), the amount of
goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of the relative values
of the operation (or the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-generating
units) retained.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate and a joint venture is described below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates and joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets of the
associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate or a joint venture exceeds
the Group's interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost
of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss In the
current year in which the investment is acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the
interest in an associate or a joint venture may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS
36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate or joint venture and the retained
interest is a financial asset within the scope of IFRS 9/IAS 39, the
Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and
the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing the relevant interest in the associate or joint venture
is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate or joint venture on the same basis as would
be required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon
disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate or joint venture.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or
joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of IFRS 15 in accordance with transitions in
note 2)

Under IFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good (or a bundle of goods)
that is distinct or a series of distinct goods that are substantially the
same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time
by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the Group
performs;

the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

the Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.
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Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of IFRS 15 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods to a customer for which the Group has received consideration
(or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

Warranties

If a customer does not have the option to purchase a warranty
separately, the Group accounts for the warranty in accordance with
IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets unless
the warranty provides the customer with a service in addition to the
assurance that the product complies with agreed-upon
specifications (i.e. service-type warranties).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the
Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it would not
have incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would otherwise
have been fully amortised to profit or loss within one year.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities, as described below.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /  Annual Report 2018

3.

FESHBE (&)
EFEHWE(REBME20EEMRX
FE P B R B 35 3R 5 2R R 55 15 58) (AR
BRI WARE P ESER S o A2 F
FER -
BENREREAKRECD B EPHERARE (FHK
EBELBEIH)  MARTFERERMNAT -

RS

HWEPTEEEEBEE —HER ~AKE
RRBR ST EAE 7 REE  AAEBER
HAREEANRYER - BRIFFERER TIREE
m & 15 E M RIEINS T PR — R AR (A
ARFSELE(R) ©

ESaHNEERA
ERAMEENAEARENEEFEH
PIELRKA - MABSZEH  RITSE
EERRA

HZER R E—FATHEHEED - Bl
AEBKEBAITEREDE  XHEMAKE
RALEREL -

BAER(R=F—N\FE—-A—HA)
WAZE W ERRENRFENE - =R
AEEKAETHERRMEKNSHE I
HORRITHA S SHEARBETA

WAREEE SATE  RREER =
/JHJ)\Z’KE@jZ')ﬁ;/:\TXFﬁ NCSETES

I *E ET TR o

E@JE’J

HEEMNBRARRMTE @
TR o

KEZHAER

ARTS W AN ER A AR 7% s AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i O W5 ¥ MY 5F

N

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Deposits received from customers prior to meeting the above
criteria for revenue recognition are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under current liabilities.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes other than construction in progress are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment other than construction in progress over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment in
the course of construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However, when there
is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the
end of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the
lease term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in profit or loss In the current year in which the item is
derecognised.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of investment
properties over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss In the current
year in which the item is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at costs
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

3.

FTEEBEER (8)

BYEE

EBRBNETEE
BERUERAREERFHCELEE &
PR R ET# R AE R REDRERIBARR ©
ARECERFRNETLEERERN G ARE
RERRERER - At A A FH R E
RN B ME AR T UARE - E T2
PNTEAREEALR

ERAHTRBNEREE
EGaMHTPRBNELEERDE D MR
R RN ERNE BB R ERER (R
TEELRCAR)

MNFHERIK  EBAHPUBNABRFERE
REMNETEERESINCWBETEE
RIARRIEZE - $ Ak AR R AT 5H X AT A R 5T
BB ETIE R

B EENHERNBFERANEEZEE
3 48 R SRS F a2 S BUR FERR. - BUBRER &
WEEMELZ KW MEE  RZEEZH
EMSRRFRERARAECEEAE &
BEIVHEERRNBEER

BEBHZERERAR / 20184®% 117




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RO M R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2018
2= \F+ZA=+—RHLFE

IR

118

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible assets are
estimated individually, when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating unit, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset (or cash generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above) (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs.
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses In the current years in
which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease
term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease is
classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the entire consideration
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between
the land and the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leasing (continued)

Leasehold land and building (continued)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, whilst the building element is classified as property, plant
and equipment or investment property, as appropriate, interest in
leasehold land is accounted for as an operating lease and presented
as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. When the payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the leasehold land and building elements, the entire property is
generally classified as if the leasehold land is under finance lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities,
transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss In the current year in which they arise, except for exchange
differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a
foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely
to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign
operation), which are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or
partial disposal of the Group's interests in associates/joint ventures.
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E-F - N\F+ZA=1+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e., RMB)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of exchange fluctuation reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Government grants (continued)

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Government grants related to depreciable assets are recognised as
deferred income in the consolidated statement of financial position
and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis
over the useful lives of the related assets. Other government grants
are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them
with the costs for which they are intended to compensate, on a
systematic basis.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the current year in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits schemes,
including state-managed retirement benefits schemes in the PRC
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another IFRS requires or permits
the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any
amount already paid.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration all
non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of equity
instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserve). At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-market
vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve. For share
options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of
the share options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in share options reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share options reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expenses that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, and
interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply In the current year in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of each reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when
it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and the
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively. When current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect
is included in the accounting for the business combination.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense In the
current year in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project) is
recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been
demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it;

the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its development.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss In the
current year in which it is incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable, directs labour
costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less all estimated costs to completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations under the
relevant sale of goods legislation are recognised at the date of sale
of the relevant products, at the Directors’ best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the Group's obligation.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with IFRS 15
since 1 January 2018. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest/dividend income are derived from the Group's ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of IFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at FVTOCI:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
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130

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of I[FRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL, except
that at the date of initial application/initial recognition of a financial
asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in OCI if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon

application of IFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(continued)

(i)

(ii)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and receivables subsequently measured at
FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk
on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the determination
that the asset is no longer credit impaired.

Receivables classified as at FVTOC|

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for receivables
classified as at FVTOCI as a result of interest income calculated
using the effective interest method are recognised in profit or
loss. All other changes in the carrying amount of these
receivables are recognised in OCl and accumulated under the
heading of FVTOCI reserve. Impairment allowances are
recognised in profit or loss with corresponding adjustment to
OCI without reducing the carrying amounts of these
receivables. The amounts that are recognised in profit or loss
are the same as the amounts that would have been
recognised in profit or loss if these receivables had been
measured at amortised cost. When these receivables are
derecognised, the cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of IFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(continued)

(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in OCl and accumulated in
the FVTOCI reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified
to profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments, and will
be transferred to retained earnings.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income” line item in profit
orloss.

(iv)  Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other income and other
gains” line item.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with transitions
in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets
which are subject to impairment under IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /  Annual Report 2018

3.

FESHBER (&)

SRIA(E)

ERMEE (&)
EHMEESBRAKE (RIEAGL 2898
TG A B B 75 28 e 2 R 3 9 5% ) (#B)

(i) FEAEAFEFAEMEZEEIEH
- =
BAFEFAELM AR 2R T
BEREDHBEATEFE  HARQ
FEEHHMEEZ RS REEREM
2HEME PR TRIRAFETA
Hib2mRSrET Rt BATMHU
BETE - BERRFREREETS
REERARLEREHDEETIER
BERERERT -

BB WA B 2 AR - %
ERATAREZBRBHRIBRAE
R RIFEHEKEPARBNIRNE
WmEzEBoRA - BREFtABEAZ
[EAY AL IHE -

vy BAFEFABZNSREE
YA EBRBHEKNARIRZ A FETA
Hti 2P Gt ENeREE K
BERBRATFEFAEMEBE KR
TREE  HRATEFABRE -

BAFEFABSNEREER S|
SHREQATVEFE  ERERALF
Bl EREENBRER - RBRE
ROBRHERFR(BEEEREE
FREVEE I A B3 B A [ Bk
AR E MWz | THE e

TR EERE (RIRH T 2 89 18 15 X &
BIfR 51 i 3R & 2B R 9 5E)
AEERRIEEREMEREERIEIHRAT
BENSREENTRBEEBRERESRR
B BHEEERSENSHRERMESN
LA BR B VIR6 FERR A SR B0 15 B o b

2 HRBEEERENERTARBFHRA
EENMAARRNEHMERNEBENER
B8 - EIEARY - A ARBEEEEER
HINHRER MR 2EARNFREEENEROE
HRABHN S 2HRBEEERE - FHER
BAKEREEEEHRERET  YWREE
BARERE  BESERIUARRERER
HRSH S AR BRI S0 FRBI O R4 T 1 L

/% -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%= /A\§

N

R 15 i % B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BHE_Z—

3.

NE+TZA=1+—RHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with transitions
in accordance with note 2) (continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The
ECL on trade receivables are assessed individually for debtors with
significant balances and/or collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. FESHBE(E)
Financial instruments (continued) SRT A (&)
Financial assets (continued) EREE (H)

134

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with transitions

in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(i)

(if)

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by the
Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. FESEEEK(E)

Financial instruments (continued) ST HE(E

Financial assets (continued) SREE (F)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with transitions 2 B A E B (1R 15 B 5t 2 49 28 1R X fE
in accordance with note 2) (continued) EIRR 51 75 3R 22 Rl ZE 9 9% ) (48

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets (i) EERESREE

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events SREELE BN FENSEH(EZ

of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated SREEMGFTRKIBE REEKTF]

future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. HEVBREREREEREBE - SREE

Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes HREERENEEEREEA TS

observable data about the following events: Ry ] B AR EUE ¢

@  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the @ BITAREBRANERTR
borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event; b) EBREYH(WELDHSGEEIEH) ;

(© the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or © ERANERARSEBERADS
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial M A& A A BB mAE KA
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a HHERATE BITEENE
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise BTG
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter d) ERABAREE AR E sk H b Bt
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or FEH sk

()  the disappearance of an active market for that financial e ZerBEERGRTSEMEM
asset because of financial difficulties. =B
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with transitions

in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(iv)

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in
the case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over one
year past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the respective risks
of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with transitions

in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases
where evidence at the individual instrument level may not yet
be available, the financial instruments are grouped on the
following basis:

Nature of financial instruments

Past-due status;

Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated based on
amortised cost of the financial asset.

Except for receivables that are measured at FVTOC|, the Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with
the exception of trade receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance account.
For receivables that are measured at FVTOCI, the loss
allowance is recognised in OCl and accumulated in the FVTOCI
reserve without reducing the carrying amount of these
receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before
application of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

The Group's financial assets are classified as financial assets at FVTPL,
loans and receivables and AFS financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is
held for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets and is included in the other
income and other gains line item. Fair value is determined in the
manner described in Note 49(e).

Loan and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade receivables, bills receivable, other receivables, loan receivables,
amounts due from related parties, restricted bank deposits and bank
balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on loans and
receivables below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before
application of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (continued)

Loan and receivables (continued)

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables when the effect of discounting is
immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a) loans and
receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c) financial assets at
FVTPL.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of the reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets (before application of IFRS 9 on 1
January 2018)

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the security below its cost is considered to be objective
evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment could include:
significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; or
it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy

or financial re-organisation or disappearance of an active
market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before
application of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of IFRS 9 on 1
January 2018) (continued)

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
The Group’s financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including bank borrowings, trade and other
payables, amounts due to related parties and obligations under
financial leases are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in
accordance with the terms of a receivable. Financial guarantee
contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair values. It is
subsequently measured at the higher of:

the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance
with IFRS 9 (since 1 January 2018)/IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets (before application of IFRS 9 on
1 January 2018); and

the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee
period.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the current year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the current year of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Warranty provision

The Group provides a warranty up to fifteen months on all lead-acid
motive battery products. Under the terms of warranty, the Group
undertakes to repair or replace the battery free of charge in the
event of any malfunctioning within the warranty period.

Estimated costs related to product warranty are accrued at the time
of sale and are based upon past warranty claims and unit sales
history and adjusted as required to reflect actual costs incurred, as
information becomes available. As at 31 December 2018, the Group
recognised provision for warranty amounted to RMB535,253,000
(2017: RMB483,167,000) and details are disclosed in note 38.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The management of the Group estimates the amount of lifetime ECL
of trade receivables based on provision matrix through grouping of
various debtors that have similar loss patterns, after considering
internal credit ratings of trade debtors, ageing, repayment history
and/or past due status of respective trade receivables. Estimated loss
rates are based on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable available without
undue costs or effort. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered. In addition, trade debtors with
significant financial difficulty are assessed for ECL individually.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision of ECL for trade receivables (continued)

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables are
disclosed in notes 49 and 28 respectively.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2018, the carrying amount of goodwill was RMB49,447,000 (2017:
RMB49,447,000). Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in note 21.

4.

ARSI HERET TEEREN
FERR (&)

AT REERZENEZERIR (&)

EWE ZIRRNEREEEERE (E)
B EEBEREHHTES LA B
BEBEEBERAEERKE SEFTNE
B BIRAMI 3£ 40 I 28 Hi FE ©

HERE
ErmEettBlRERE BT E iEE
FIRESEABVNFEREE- -tEFRER
TEASEGBESEESMBHELNE
RIBERE  UWRARTERENGBEITR
Ko HERAKRRETERTBE D - BIFTAE
EXfEARESE - R=E—\F+=-A
=+—H " BHEKREEASARK49447,000
T(ZZE—+F: AR¥494470007T) © B
B e SRRt BB 2 FE -

BEBHZERAERAR / 201843:®k 145




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RO M R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2018
2= \F+ZA=+—RHLFE

N

146

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Recognition of deferred tax assets

As at 31 December 2018, deferred tax assets of RMB477,286,000
(2017: RMB395,507,000) in relation to allowances for ECL and
inventories, deferred income, accrual and provision, tax losses and
other temporary differences have been recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the unused tax losses of
RMB814,228,000 (2017: RMB510,068,000) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. The realisation of the deferred tax assets
mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits will be available
in the future. In cases where the actual future profits generated are
more or less than expected, a material adjustment of deferred tax
assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which such an adjustment takes place. Details of deferred
taxation are disclosed in note 20.

Useful lives and residual value of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines the residual value, useful lives
and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment, as disclosed in note 17. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual residual value and useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. It
could change significantly as a result of technical innovations and
keen competitions from competitors. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where residual value or useful lives are less than
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete assets.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Useful lives of intangible assets

The licensed technology and trademark are amortised on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives. The Group’s management
determines the useful lives of these intangible assets to be 10 years.
The Group assesses annually the useful lives of these intangible
assets and if the expectation differs from the original estimate due to
changes in the expected level of usage and/or technological
developments, such difference will impact the amortisation charge
in the year in which such estimate is changed.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment being lower
than its carrying amount. No impairment loss of property, plant and
equipment has been recognised in current year.

Impairment of intangible assets

Intangible assets are allocated to respective cash-generating unit for
the purpose of impairment testing whenever there is indication that
the intangible assets may be impaired. The recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit has been determined based on value in
use calculation. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. No impairment loss
of intangible assets has been recognised in current year.
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 E_T—\F+_A=+—HLLFE
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE 5. ZEERREA
A. Forthe year ended 31 December 2018 A. BE-E-N\Ft+Z-HA=+—HL
FE
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with (i) EFEHRADF
customers
D
D00
Types of goods EmE5l
Lead-acid motive batteries THBEE) 1B
Electric bike battery BEFHEITESE) 19,417,251
Electric vehicle battery and special-purpose BE)EE M NMEKRAS
electric vehicle battery BEEHE) 5,199,516
Li-ion batteries EBET B 790,840
Materials include lead and active additives MEH B RE RE D) 1,540,630
Total st 26,948,237
D
D00
Timing of revenue recognition T R U B Bp
A point in time H—R5E 26,948,237
(i) Performance obligations for contracts with (i) BFEFEAHAZBHERE
customers
The Group sells lead-acid motive batteries, lithium-ion AEERRBEHEWEE NE
batteries and other related products to customers. e EEEFEM R EMIEEE
Revenue is recognised when control of the goods has m e WARE mpiEflEe &3
transferred, being when the goods have been delivered R EREEXERFTE
to the customers’ specific locations (delivery). Following TE B HEBG (B2f)) © RIS TERKTE -
the delivery, the customers have full discretion over the EFEAZEMBEAEEERRAKR
manner of distribution and price to sell the goods, have EmEE TREEHERRZE
the primary responsibility when on selling the goods ZEAEREMMEBERELZR
and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation B o REE—RMAR FHCEER I
to the goods. The Group generally allows a credit period WRSGEFREISENEER -
of 15 days to its trade customers with good trading BRIHENIRGETT ©
history, or otherwise sales on cash terms are required.
All contracts with customers are for periods of one year FTEEEANEE—F AT -
or less. As permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction price 12 B PR B 75 R S 22 BI 2B 15 5R P
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed. B WAWBEOREZEARET
BT ZERE -
148  Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /  Annual Report 2018
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE 5. oHBERKRKA (F&)
(continued)
B. Fortheyear ended 31 December 2017 B. BE-—FT—tF+-A=+—HL
FE
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as follows: ZFEEREEBRADHIOT :
2017
—E—tF
RMB'000
ARETIT
Lead-acid motive batteries EHEEE) B
Electric bike battery BEFHTESES 18,100,485
Electric vehicle battery and special-purpose electric BENE T MR EKRER
vehicle battery BEEEM 4,491,602
Li-ion batteries EEETEM 231,763
Materials include lead and active additives Wk R iEE MO YD) 1,830,161
Total st 24,654,011
OPERATING SEGMENTS 6. K&

Information reported to the chief executive officer, being the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM”), for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment focuses on revenue analysis by products.
No other discrete financial information is provided other than the
Group's results and financial position as a whole. Accordingly, only
entity-wide disclosures, major customers and geographic
information are presented. No segment assets and liabilities, and
related other segment information were presented as no such
discrete financial information is provided to the CODM.

Geographical information

Most of the external revenues of the Group during the year are from
customers established in the PRC, the place of domicile of the
Group's operating entities. Most of the Group’s non-current assets
are located in the PRC.

Information about major customers
No single customer contributed 10% or more of the total revenue of
the Group during the both years.
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7. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS 7. HHEWARHEMKE
018 2017
T —tF
B'000 RMB’000
S ARETTT
Government grants T B
— grants related to income (note) — BT A B BRI B () 96,306 161,840
— grants related to assets (note 37) — HEESBAmEE (FE37) 48,375 20,211
Interest income on bank deposits HRITIE KA A B A 37,191 22,628
Interest income on loan receivables U E ZR R F B A 9,434 13,431
Interest income on loan to an associate Al —RE &R B EFREF S YA 4,284 1,373
Interest income on consideration receivable on  H & — 5B & A & & W A(E /Y
disposal of an associate B WA = 804
Rental income HEWA 35,722 18,654
Sales of scrap materials SHE RER 21,202 15,283
Change in fair value of derivative TAESRITEATFEES
financial instruments - 391
Gain on disposal of derivative HETEL R T Ak
financial instruments 3,310 24,890
Change in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL 2 AF(EF AB NS mEE
Z N EEE) = 143
Gain on disposal of an associate & — K& A Rl A E - 4,900
Gain arising on contribution from other investor F 7 E 1% & # 1) — KB 2 A 7
to an associate B T E A R R Es - 14,534
Others Hifb 18,407 25,900
274,231 324,982
Note: Bzt
Government grants mainly include various government subsidies received by the Company’s BT B = B 615 Z B T B 71 2K 2 a1 /B 2 Bl %M
subsidiaries from relevant government bodies in connection with enterprise expansion, BES B> RERE - LRI BRIE LN ESE
technology advancement, environmental protection measures enhancement and product HEZIEMTHA R NER—_T—+F+=H
development. There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these grants =1 —H ZEFHBRGEI S REKAF A
and subsidies as at 31 December 2018 and 2017. IEH °
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2= \F+ZA=+—RHLFE

8. OTHEREXPENSES AND OTHER LOSSES 8. HMFXRHMER
018 2017
—E—+F
B’000 RMB’000
FS ARETTT
Depreciation of investment properties KEYENITE 2,832 2,815
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% « B MRBELEHE S
generate rental income AT E 16,001 6,581
Donations =k 6,192 9,663
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWME - BE RRENEE
and equipment (note) (FftzE) 8,878 20,385
Net foreign exchange losses HINGE T4 R 5 2,376 4,551
Others Hfth 9,586 21,295
45,865 65,290
Note:

it -

RZMF » RRAE TFHIE R A AH EER K EX
ERE  MEBEHEERE RAELENE - FUt - 186
HYBEES J AR 16 1 5 0 LA BT 85 R AR IR AC » BEEE

During the both years, certain of the Company’s subsidiaries upgraded their production
facilities to expand production capacity, relocate to new production plants and improve

production efficiency and hence, relevant machinery and equipment were disposed of and

replaced by new machinery and equipment, resulting in loss on disposal of certain machinery HHEE THEERBIERES
and equipment.
9. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES, NET OF REVERSAL 9. RERE (HREE)
0 2017
—T—+F
000 RMB'000
R ARETIT
Impairment losses recognised THEEE®R(E8E) 2
(reversed) on: EEE
— trade receivables — BUE SRR 75,170 82,679
— other receivables — E b GRIE 12,956 (7,462)
— loan receivables — B ER = 8350
88,126 83,567

Details of impairment assessment for the year ended 31 December

2018 are set out in note 49(c).

HRERT A R IE S M 49(0) ©

fBEEE—T—N\F+_A=+—HItFE
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10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BEERA
018 2017
—E—+F
B'000 RMB’000
== ARETTT
Interest expenses on: MERX :
Bank borrowings RITEE 253,291 179,036
Short-term note HHERE 15,483 28,146
Medium-term note FEIEE 51,033 10,577
Corporate bond PEESH 34,923 42,087
Finance lease MERE 1,791 10,275
Total borrowing costs BEKAHEE 356,521 270,121
Less: amounts capitalised in construction in B RERTIERENM e
progress (20,043) (19,485)
336,478 250,636
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended 31 December HE-_ZT—\F+_A=T—BItFE - &
2018 arose on the general borrowing pool and are calculated by REARZIEERAHRE —RIEEEE - iR
applying a capitalisation rate of 5.22% per annum (2017: 4.66% per EEREERS S 2% (ZF—CF : FEL
annum) to expenditure on qualifying assets. K 466%) ENMCEELETE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
2= \F+ZA=+—RHLFE

11.

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 1

Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

1. BRB{AT R

BuATAEE R GHA) THI&E

018 2017
—T—+tF
3000 RMB'000
R ARBTFT
Salaries and other benefits costs e REMBFK A 1,152,299 964,647
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIREAFT B 42,863 39,007
Labour cost (note) BT R AN (B sE) 209,791 198,965
Share-based payments LARK 1 B EERE RS 3R 21,247 =
Total staff costs (including directors’ BTIMALE(BIEESHE)
emoluments) 1,426,200 1,202,619
Less: amounts capitalised in inventories B REEERNE R (989,865) (801,147)
436,335 401,472
Amortisation of intangible assets AT E Y 32,917 17,162
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% « = MR IETE 405,921 386,330
Total depreciation and amortisation WE LA 438,838 403,492
Less: amounts capitalised in inventories W RN FEENMLERE (279,188) (283,148)
159,650 120,344
Depreciation of investment properties WEMERE 2,832 2,815
Prepaid lease payments released to FTABEMTEMEERIE
profit or loss 8,558 6,928
Gross rental income from investment FEYHEBSBIRA
properties (4,253) (4,403)
Less: NEE
direct operating expenses arising from EAXWRAREMERBNEE
investment properties generate income S 1,863 2,080
direct operating expenses arising from PEAWAZE BN
investment properties not BEELERY
generate income 9 14
(2,381) (2,309)
Auditors' remuneration Z SR 5 7,655 7,153
Research and development costs recognised as #2458 X2 BYAF 35 A AN
an expense 884,914 775,849
Cost of inventories recognised as expense BRAERTNFEEKA 23,217,375 21,491,406

Note:  The Group has entered into labour dispatch agreements with several service
organisations which have provided labour service to the Group.

Hifet - AN 2 5 5 A R E 1R (7 55 T IR A IR 5 e 1
FT 85 TRE 7% ©
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

154

EMOLUMENTS

12. EERTHRAENE

Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the Directors during the

year are as follows:

AEBERFARNEENOMESFBENT

Contribution

Salariesand to retirement

Share-based other benefits- benefits
payments Fees in-kind scheme Total
DR & HERHEM RIKER
ERNAR ik ENER HE 5 CHS
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARBTR
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE_Z-\E+-A=t-HLEE
Executive directors: HITES :
Mr. Zhou Mingming (note) [EIBRRA S 4 (PffEE) 327 = 1,216 7 1,550
Mr. Zhou Longrui B3y 327 - 366 - 693
Ms. Yang Yunfei BERZL 327 - 366 - 693
Mr. Yang Xinxin L ik iy 327 - 1,940 7 2,274
Non-executive director: FHITES :
Ms. Fang Jianjun HEELL 327 350 - 7 684
Independent non-executive directors:  BUFHTES :
Mr. Wang Jigiang T s 163 350 - - 513
Prof. Ouyang Minggao ENGL A6 163 350 - - 513
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai FRELAE 163 350 - = 513
Mr.Ng Chi Kit REHEE 163 350 - - 513
Total st 2,287 1,750 3,888 21 7,946
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-E-t5+t-A=t—HLEE
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Zhou Mingming (note) JE AR AR 5 A (FifeE) - - 1939 7 1946
Mr. Zhou Longrui B3k = = 377 - 377
Ms. Yang Yunfei BERZ LT - - 394 - 394
Mr. Yang Xinxin AT R - - 1,789 7 179
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Ms. Fang Jianjun FEERL = 357 = = 357
Independent non-executive directors: BUFHITEE :
Mr. Wang Jigiang TR - - 350 - - 350
Prof. Ouyang Minggao ENGEEISE 6 - 350 - - 350
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai FHELE - 350 - - 350
Mr. Ng ChiKit REMEE - 350 - - 350
Total @5t - 1757 4,499 14 6,270
Note: /W?}_'\' P

Mr. Zhou Mingming is also the chief executive officer of the Company and his emoluments

disclosed above also include those for services rendered by him as the chief executive officer.
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HE_Z-N\F+ZA=1+—HLFE

12.

13.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

The executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were paid for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company and the Group. The non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services as Directors.

During the year, certain Directors were granted share options, in
respect of their services to the Group under the share option scheme
of the Company. Details of the share option scheme are set out in
note 56 to these consolidated financial statements.

EMOLUMENTS OF THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year
included two Directors (2017: three Directors), details of their
emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the remaining

12.

13.

EERTHRARMNE (&)

EXFRBTESHERREFREETELAR
BINMASREEHE 2 BRGNS o EXFT
RERTESTRBUFATETHENES
BEEE=BHMmMIA -

FR - ETESAREFNRAEENRBRIEZ
RRT B SRR ERE - ARABK
AT BN BRN AR A MMM FE 56 ©

LEBREHFALTHHE
FR - ARENAEREFALTCERAE

F(CE—tF: =2EF) HMa#HEH
REX - FR - BTI=BAL(ZT—1LF:

three individuals for the year (2017: two individuals) are as follows: mBEAL)HMENT
018 2017
T —tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
=t ARET T
Salaries and other allowances e M E A ERE 8,660 1,697
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIREFIEF IR 7 7
Share-based payments PARR {7 23 EERE 15 5k 262 =
8,929 1,704
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13.

14.

156

EMOLUMENTS OF THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

The above employees’ emoluments were within the following
bands:

13. AEBREHFALTHME (F)

bBiiEEMESHEATSEE :

Number of individuals

ANLTEE
018 2017
—T—+F
Nil to Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD") 1,000,000 21,000,000 7T ([T ) = 1
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 & 75 2 2,000,000 78 7T - 1
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 7 7T 2 3,000,000 77T 1 =
HKD3,000,001 to HKD3,500,000 3,000,001 7 7T 2 3,500,000 77T 1 =
HKD3,500,001 to HKD4,000,000 3,500,001 7 7T & 4,000,000 75 7T 1 =

During the year, certain non-director highest paid employees were
granted share options, in respect of their services to the Group under
the share option scheme of the Company. Details of the share option
scheme are set out in note 56 to these consolidated financial
statements.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the directors waived any emoluments during the year.

FR BTUHEENSZSFTALIREER
REBARGRIEARRQ R 2 BIRET B8R
BBARHE - AAERET SN BN LGRS
BF 75 2R ffI 5 56 ©

FRARBYEBEAEFTRAEZESFTAL
SIS - YERINASIR IIA AN SR B 6 #2
Bk ERERAH(E - £ - BIBESNEEM

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14. FIEHEX
018 2017
g —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
R ARKETT
Current tax: BIHARR IE -
— PRC enterprise income tax — BTSN 259,562 200,025
Under provision in prior years BEFERETR
— PRC enterprise income tax — R EFEH 10,574 6,129
Deferred tax credit (note 20) EIERIEH R (KI7E 20) (69,934) (42,399)
200,202 163,755

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law")
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25%. In accordance with the “Notice of the State
Tax Bureau of the Ministry of Finance Regarding Certain Preferential
Treatment Policies on Enterprise Income Tax”, New and High
Technical Enterprise is subject to income tax at a preferential tax rate
of 15%. Certain subsidiaries of the Company were recognised as New
and High Technical Enterprises in accordance with the applicable EIT
Law of the PRC and are subject to income tax at a preferential tax
rate of 15%.
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2T \F+_A=+—HLLFE

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 14. FRIBHBAX (&)

Other subsidiaries established in the PRC were subject to income tax
rate of 25% for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: 25%). The
Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI"), Germany, Hong Kong and other countries had no
assessable profits during the year (2017: nil).

The EIT Law provides that qualified dividend income between two
“resident enterprises” that have a direct investment relationship is
exempted from income tax. Otherwise, such dividends will be
subject to a 5% to 10% withholding tax under the tax treaty or the
domestic law. The Group is currently subject to withholding tax at
10%. During the year ended 31 December 2018, withholding tax on
intra-group dividend amounting to RMB37,346,129 (2017:
RMB18,280,702) was paid by the Group to relevant tax authorities.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

HE - N\F+-_A=t+—BIFE K
REKZHAEMH B RARINTEHRHREA
250 (Z B —+ 4 : 25%) « ARFE R HRNE
BHBRRHS((ABHERRHS]) &R -
BEEMEMEREMAZHKEAR @ £
WEERRAE (=T —HF : &) o

TEMSTERE  MREEEEREBEK
MIERGE] ZHNEERKEWRA - &
FAERPTISHL o BRULLASN - ARIRTH IR &KLY = B
RIERE - REABFIRN F5%ZE 10% S FH B
KEMTENFL c B AT - ANEEZEZ 10%MF
REMBEBNF - HE2-_FT—\F+_A
=+—HIFE AEEEHREEANRTME
BEMBBAEEKEINEMNHEAREK
37,346,129 7L (ZZF—t4F : AR¥ 18,280,702
JL) °

FAMGRAX AIZREE BE M EMEEK
SmRPERBATFEERDT

018 2017
5 —E—+F
000 RMB’000
R ARBT T
Profit before tax A5 AT AR 577,709 635,639
Tax at the applicable income tax rate of 25%  #%3# FA ET 5 81 B 3R 25% s+ & M £ 18 144,427 158,910
Tax effect of income tax deduction granted to ~ [AIFI /B A &l3% AU 35 FA X AT 18 %%
subsidiaries in research IR R A5 s 28
and development expenditure (90,040) (94,811)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TR AZ R E 3,634 1,838
Effect of preferential tax rates on income of BEMREEETHBRARMA
certain subsidiaries 0= 15,779 (19,957)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERTHEEEBRNFH B E 76,006 91,978
Utilisation of tax losses previously B 2 BIARTER < IR &8
not recognised (4,498) -
Tax effect of share of result of associates FEMRERE R R FEENTIATE 3,941 1,195
Tax effect of share of result of joint ventures BhEEPEXBENTMIATE 3,033 192
Withholding tax on undistributed profits of FLAEKT B A R RS EBRFER
PRC subsidiaries TamHIEA 37,346 18,281
Under provision in prior years BEFERETR 10,574 6,129
Income tax expense for the year FRAEHAX 200,202 163,755

The details of deferred tax for the year are set out in note 20.

BEBNZERERAR / 2018FH

FREER BTSRRI 20 ©

157




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RO M R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2018
2= \F+ZA=+—RHLFE

15.

158

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the following
data:

15. BRER

ARBER ARG ERERR#E SR T
RIBATEIEAE

018 2017
—T—+fF
B’000 RMB’000
R ARKETT
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings per gt & AR E A2 7 = 89 2 5
share (profit for the year attributable to (RAREE ABIEFEAFE)
owners of the Company) 412,714 454816
018 2017
e
000 000
iR TR
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose of  FLEIKEARZ T = HY
basic earnings per share Eaalie = 1,107,912 1,107,912

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the current year
does not assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share
options as the exercise price of these options was higher than the
average market price for the shares during the outstanding period.
The Group did not have any other dilutive potential ordinary shares
in issue during the current year.

The Group did not have dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue
during the prior year.
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16.

17.

DIVIDEND

16.

Dividends declared for distribution

during the year:

2017 final dividend — RMB0.062 per share

2016 final dividend — RMB0.068 per share

FRAEMRERIKRS

—EEFRARKRE —
AR 0.0627C

“E-RERPARE — R

AR¥0.068 7T

e
018 2017
—E—tF
B'000 RMB' 000
S AREFIT

%

68,691 -
= 75,338

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 of HK$0.066
(equivalent to RMB0.056) (2017: final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2017 of RMB0.062) per ordinary share, in an
aggregate amount of HK$73,122,000 (equivalent to RMB62,388,000)
(2017: RMB68,691,000), has been proposed by the Directors and is
subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming general

RRERR  EEEBHEE=—Z—\F
+ZA=+—HLEFERMNRAREFR
0.066 BT (HHER AR 00567L) (ZF—+
FpBEE_T—+tF+_A=+—ALF
EIR KRR E SR AR 00627T) © R%E
473,122,000/ 7T (FEE R AR #62,388,0007T )

—E—+tF: AR#68691,0007T) %2

meeting. RATEERFAFRE ELRRERE -
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y%  BMERRE
Furniture,
Plantand Motor fixturesand Construction
Buildings machinery vehicles  equipment  inprogress Total
& BE
BF BERES RE  EERZE HREIRE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR AR®Tr ARETr ARETR
cosT R
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—+%—F—H 1,877,009 2,080,716 209,008 203310 932,440 5302483
Additions NE 28,762 223,601 65,616 32,543 265,684 616,206
Acquisition of subsidiaries Weas A a) (Fisks4)

(Note 54) 19171 50,753 233 - 193,755 263912
Transfers ER 103,984 05,770 1,835 575 (172,164) -
Disposals HE (8459 (57,605) (9528) (8,110) - (83,702)
At 31 December 2017 R-Z—+4F

+-A=+—H 2,020,467 2,363,235 267,164 228318 1,219,715 6,098,899
Additions NE 64,090 269,502 71,243 30,925 469,100 904,860
Acquisition of subsidiaries WiEER B AR (Fi5Es4)

(Note 54) - 350 - - - 350
Transfers B 218,843 184,962 2,601 1115 (407,521) -
Eliminated on disposals HERHH - (47,126) (16,069) (5532) - (68727)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\§

+-A=+—H 2,303,400 2770923 324,939 254826 1,281,294 6,935,382
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

160

NF+ZA=+—HILFE

17. W% - BFE K& ()

Furniture,
Plant and Motor  fixturesand Construction
Buildings ~ machinery vehicles  equipment in progress Total
i BE
BT BERESE RE RERRE ERIE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETE ARETT ARETT AR®TR
DEPRECIATION AND FERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2017 RZE—tE—HA—-H 366,601 622,665 117,984 113,770 - 1,221,110
Provided for the year FREE 99,713 220909 37,712 27,9% - 386,330
Eliminated on disposals HER (8513) (24,569) (8150) (7,500) - 48732)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F
+-A=1+-8 457891 819,005 147,546 134,266 - 1,558,708
Provided for the year FREE 120657 242722 30,075 12467 - 405,921
Eliminated on disposals HER - (17,080) (867) (3,090) - (21,037)
At 31 December 2018 R=Z— )\
+-A=t+-8 578548 1,044,647 176,754 143643 - 1,943,592
CARRYING AMOUNT BEE
At 31 December 2018 RZZ—\E
+-A=t-H 1724852 1,726,276 148,185 111,183 1,281,294 4,991,790
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F
+-A=1+-8 1,562,576 1,544,230 119618 94,052 1219715 4540,191

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated after taking into account of
their estimated residual values on a straight-line basis at the
following rates per annum:

Buildings 4.75%-9.5%
Plant and machinery 9.5%
Motor vehicles 19%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 9.5%-19%
As at 31 December 2018, no plant and machinery (2017: plant and
machinery with net book value of RMB146,667,000) was held under
finance leases.

Details of property, plant and equipment pledged are set out in note
50.
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18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18. FAMNHEERIE
018 2017
i Sl S
B’000 RMB’000
B ARETTT
Prepaid lease payments related to land use 78 B8+ 306 B M AN E 718
rights analysed for reporting purposes as: RMENBE DA
— Current assets — RBEE 9,367 7,883
— Non-current assets — ERBEE 458,976 350,804
468,343 358,687
Details of land use rights pledged are set out in note 50. 28 0 1 3 {55 P B SIS B B R 50 ©
19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. REY=
RMB"000
ARBT T
cosT R
At 1 January 2017 R=ZE—tF—H—H 50,823
Addition NE 1,267
Exchange realignment ME i, Fg K 2,810
At 31 December 2017 R—ZE—+tF+=-_A=+—8H 54,900
Addition INE 2217
Exchange realignment PE H, % 256
At 31 December 2018 R_ZE—N\F+_A=+—8© 57373
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—H—H 9,008
Provided for the year FANEE 2815
Exchange realignment DE 5 R 357
At 31 December 2017 R=ZE—+F+=-HA=+—H 12,180
Provided for the year FARAE 2,832
Exchange realignment T H, B 34
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F+=—_A=+—H 15,046
CARRYING VALUES ARMEE
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F+=—_A=+—H 42,327
At 31 December 2017 R=ZE—+tF+=-HA=+—8” 42,720
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IR

19.

162

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31 December
2018 was RMB61,053,000 (2017: RMB65,550,000). The fair values of
the commercial properties located in the PRC and Germany have
been arrived at based on valuations carried out by two independent
and professional qualified valuers not connected with the Group at
31 December 2018, respectively. The two professional valuers have
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation for the
property located in the PRC were determined by direct comparison
method based on market observable transactions of similar
properties and adjusted to reflect the locations and conditions of the
subject properties. The valuation for the properties located in
Germany were determined by capitalisation of net income method,
where the market rentals of all lettable units of the properties are
assessed by reference to the rentals achieved in the lettable units as
well as other lettings of similar properties in the neighborhood. The
capitalisation rate adopted is estimated by considering mortgage
and equity return requirements, the age and condition of the
respective properties, market conditions, and an overall rate as
shown in the general real estate market in the local areas. There has
been no change from the valuation technique used in the prior year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use.
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19. REWX (F)

AREFBREWER_ZT—N\F+_A=1—
B AFEAEARKEG61,053000T(ZF—+
& : AR®655500007T) ° frpA A B K 1=
ZERMEAFEIDHBEMREEAEER
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 19. REW ()
Details of the Group's investment properties and information of the REBEER @ REBREMENFBRAF
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period are as BEERAMNERDET
follows:
0 De D
O D18
5
% Hl 18 =|
D00 D00
Commercial property unit located in the PRC 77 H B 4 2 BB W 22 B8 i1 3,345 25,819
Commercial property units located in Germany oz 722 B 1 72 FB 1) 22 B8 fir 38,982 35,234
Level 3

fair value as at
Carrying 31 December

amount 2017
FE3k
RZE—+4F
+=-A=+—8
BREE AT E
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
Commercial property unit located in the PRC Az A B H) 5 R ¥ 2E B8 (L 4,093 29,503
Commercial property units located in Germany 77128 B 1 74 F ¥ 3£ B8 iz 38,627 36,047
The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line i B Y E A B R IEZ A TN F R
basis at the following rates per annum: £
Commercial property units located in the PRC 6.33% 2P B A P Y S BB L 6.33%
Commercial property units located in Germany 5.60% R EBR R R B 5.60%
There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year. FRIWEE A B FE 3R -
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20. DEFERRED TAXATION 20. EEHIE
The deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised by the Group and the NEBNEXNERNELERBEE (AE) R
movements thereon, during the year are as follows: HEEZFHMT :
Allowance for Fair value
credit losses Deferred Accrual/ Tax  adjustment
and inventories income provision losses on assets Others Total
REFR i HE EEH
REERHE BERA /BE HEgE  ATERE Heh @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTRT ARETT AR%ETR  ARETR  AREBTR  ARET:
At 1 January 2017 W-E—+&-Hf—-H 83471 41,305 208366 24814 (4,384) 2312 351,260
Credit (charge) to profitorloss 5 A (318 )18 17,79 340 (10909) 33,644 0 1327 42399
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+&
+-A=1+-H 101,266 41,645 197457 58458 (4182) (985) 393,659
Remeasurement ofalowance  E#3t BFRHEE
subject to ECL (Note 2) ERmAE(hE2) 7672 - - - - - 7672

Remeasurement of bills [ERZERE R
receivable from amortised MERATEER

cost to fair value (Note 2.2) H2 (H22) _ _ _ _ 5509 _ 5509
At1 January 2018 (restated)  W=ZE—/\E—A—H
(EE5]) 108,938 41,645 197,457 58458 1327 (985) 406,840
Credit (charge) to profitorloss A (318185 15398 303 (17,659) 70667 (1,171) 2392 69934
Charge to other reserve NEEhEE - - - - (3017) - (3017)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\&
+-A=+-H 124336 41,948 179802 129125 (2,861) 1407 473,757
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial AR At EhE B B/EH B EE R IE 4565
reporting purposes: AT -
018 2017
—E—+F
B’000 RMB’000
B ARKETFT
Deferred tax assets EEFIBEE 477,286 395,507
Deferred tax liabilities FEETIEA & (3,529) (1,848)
473,757 393,659
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20. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

Details of the Group's unused tax losses are as follows:

EAERTE ()
AEBARBANRABEEFBNOT

018 2017
—+tF
B’000 RMB’000
R AREBTFT

Tax losses already recognised as deferred ERERAELERIBEENTIBEE
tax assets 730,204 319,195
Tax losses unrecognised for deferred tax assets ¥ fE 5 18 & 725 8 K HE 7257 18 5 18 753,423 510,068

The unrecognised tax losses will be expired in the following years:

REROTIRBEEAGRIA T FERNE -

018 2017
—+tF
B’000 RMB"000
B ARBTT
31 December 2019 —E-NFt+_A=+—8H 50,458 53,835
31 December 2020 —E-EF+-_A=+—H 13,020 23,137
31 December 2021 T4+ HA=+—H 47,978 65,182
31 December 2022 B F+ZA=1+—H 171,258 367914
Expire on and after 31 December 2023 R-EBE-_=F+—-"HA=+—H
KN E & 25 470,709 -
Total st 753,423 510,068
No deferred tax assets have been recognised in relation to certain EEEA*AHE:EU*KE’]%TWUP\E - E B ERL E
tax losses as shown above due to the unpredictability of future profit ETHIEBERERELHIBEE -

streams.

The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
undistributed earnings of PRC subsidiaries for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised was approximately
RMB2,769,168,000 as at 31 December 2018. No deferred tax liability
has been recognised in respect of these differences because the
Group is in a position to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that such differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

FEBARWRERELEHIBEENERS

KRBT ETNRREEERAEA T —N\F
TZA=T—HHR/ARY2769,1680007T °
FR A 7N 5% [5] I] 42 1) B e 2= 5B A9 485 [21 B5 ] ]2 7

AREKBEBERAIRE T GRELD - T ER
ﬁt%%gﬁﬁgu/u E%RIE\’E\1E °
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21. GOODWILL 21. BHE
018 2017
—E—+F
RMB'000 RMB'000
R ARETTT
cosT A
At beginning and end of the year RE RFL 49,447 49,447
Goodwill of the Group resulted from the acquisition of the AEBNRFETRENBEEFERWE T
subsidiaries below in the past few years: B Aa :
018 2017
Z : —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
R ARETFT
Anhui Chaowei (as defined in note 59) R R (& R MR 59) 14,956 14,956
Anhui Yongheng (as defined in note 59) ZRKIE (B R HFE59) 9,342 9,342
Zhejiang Changxing Jintaiyang LIRS KNG (ExRMEES9)

(as defined in note 59) 576 576
Jiangsu Yongda (as defined in note 59) LR KE (ERRMEES9) 23,524 23,524
Qinyang Libiao (as defined in note 59) W AZ (& R EE59) 295 295
Huzhou Changguang Haotian Power Co, Ltd. I RES X EIRA R A & 754 754
Total 5t 49,447 49447
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill set out above has RETRENHR - EIEEESEEE SN
been allocated to a group of Cash Generated Unit (“CGU") R EB) HE ek E) B A FRLER T
comprising six acquired subsidiaries all engaged in manufacturing of WEMNB AR s —HAeEESEM([REE
motive batteries or accessories of motive batteries. During the year KB RBE_Z—N\Ft+_A=1+—
ended 31 December 2018, management of the Group determines HIEFE AEEEEEETZREELSE
that there is no impairment of its CGU. The basis of the estimation of A7 FR(E o (HET L3R & E A B AL A U E
the recoverable amount of the above CGU and the major underlying SFEMEEL T EHHBERESMINT o
assumptions are summarised below.
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N

21.

22.

GOODWILL (continued)

The recoverable amount has been determined based on a value-in-
use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the management of the Group
covering a 5-year period, and discount rate of 13% (2017:13%). The
CGU's cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a
steady 2% (2017: 2%) growth rate in revenue. The growth rate used
is based on management’s best estimation on growth forecasts and
does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
markets. Other key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations
relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include
budgeted sales and gross margin. Such estimation is based on the
CGU'’s past performance and management’s expectations for the
market development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of the CGU to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount.

21. BHE(H)

AR ESEEBRTEFREEMETE ° %
HirBFRERAEEEEEMERER
FHENYREEMSHNRSRERA - m
T AR R A5136( =T — £ F:
13%) c ZIREELEMAFIAZBRENIRE
REAREBTEN 2% (= —+F : 2%) KA
WRRES o FIRAMG R RS 51
RIEANSEGBTAKE - BXTHBERHE
MHENTFHREERER - A EFEHEENE
EZRFERSHA TR HOGET (BT
BEHEREMNER)EHE - BEMGFTENZ
HEEFBEMNRATREREEREEMEERE
WBH - BEEER A  TAZERENEE
AT ESHREEAEMNRARE
FRBAI IR BB HE o

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 22, BEEE
Yangzhou
Moll GE SCPS Huaxiang Total
Moll GE SCPS BMER @5t
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETT ARE®ETT ARETT AR®TT AR%ET:
(note i) (note i) (note i) (note iii)
CiED) (FizEii) (FizE i) (FzEiii)
CosT D%
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—t%—-HA-H 23758 - - - 23,758
Additions RE - 94,776 47435 - 142,211
Acquisition of subsidiaries =NGR!
(Note 54) - - - 184,199 184199
At 31 December 2017 and 2018 RZE—tFR=E—N\F
+=fp=+—H 23,758 94,776 47435 184,199 350,168
AMORTISATION HiH
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+&—HA—-H 5940 - - - 5,940
Provided for the year EREE 2376 4,739 2372 7675 17,162
At 31 December 2017 RZE—t&+-A=1—H 8316 4,739 2372 7675 23,102
Provided for the year EREE 2376 9,477 4,743 16,321 32917
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E+ZA=1—H 10,692 14216 7115 23,99 56,019
CARRYING AMOUNT REE
At 31 December 2017 R-BE—+E+-A=1—H 15442 90,037 45063 176,524 327,066
At 31 December 2018 R_E-N\F+-A=1+—H 13,066 80,560 40320 160,203 294,149
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BILEE (&)
RZE-—N\FR_ZE—+tF+t_A=+—
B AEBEEEESR :

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group's intangible assets

22.

comprise:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

the specific technologies and know-how relating to the
production of start-and-stop batteries for automotive
industries and a licence right to use the brand name of MOLL
(as defined in note 24) in the start-and-stop batteries to be
produced by the Group;

the specific technologies and know-how relating to the
battery technology and a licence right to use the patents and
know-how from two independent third parties, Societe de
Conseil et de Prospective Scientifique (“SCPS”), a French
company and GE Technology Development Inc. (“GE"), an
American company, respectively; and

a licence for lead-acid battery recycling and lead production
through acquisition of a subsidiary, further details of which are
set out in note 54.

The useful life of 10 years is used in the calculation of amortisation of

(i)

(if)

(iif)

MEERREENEEZBREERM
REBEZEHMDZ  ARAEERBELE
RMEEMEAMOLLREEHE(EZR
BYRE 24) Z FFaTAE

2 B3R B M 4 % 3 8 = 5 Societe de
Conseil et de Prospective Scientifique
(fscpshH( — R & B & A ) RGE
Technology Development Inc. ([GEl) (—
KEBQE]) M EMRME AR E R
R BEME - URERAZEENR
BEEMBAEIE R

BEWE KBRS ERDW
R R AEEMMER] C BEEE
BHAHIFES4S o

S EEVEE 2B 0FAIERFRAE -

these intangible assets.

23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23. REEDENES
Details of the Group's investments in joint ventures are as follows: AEBREECEMBREFBOT ¢
0 2017
—E—+tF
000 RMB’000
S ARETT
Cost of unlisted investments FEEMIRE R 203,060 195,500
Share of post-acquisition profit U B 12 FE {5 71 (11,980) 152
191,080 195,652
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23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 23.
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, details of the Group's material
joint ventures are as follows:
Country of
establishment
Name of entity and operation Registered capital
RIREE )
(B2 frEax AR
Changxing Kewei Venture Capital Investment LLP PRC RMB100,000,000
(‘Changxing Kewer') e AR 1000000007
REMBAZREARLE (RENR])
Zhejiang Pulangte Electric Vehicle Co, Ltd. PRC RMB150,000,000
(‘Zhejiang Pulangte’) T AR 15000000070
MIEREESEERAR (HIEHE])
Changshu Huaxing Chuang Yi Technology Co,, Ltd. PRC RMB100,000,000
BRERR - HMERRBEARAR Gl AR 1000000007C
Zhejiang Tulante Energy Storage Technology Co, Ltd. ~ PRC RMB40,000,000
T ERE RN RERAR Gl AR 400000007

The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in

these consolidated financial statements.

REELENER (&)
RZBE-NEFERZZ—+tF+A=+—

B AEENEXRE

Proportion of nominal
value of registered capital
and voting power
held by the Group as at
31 December

RtZRA=1t-B%&KHE

ERZFBOT

Principal activity

FisEMEANAER
iR RN LA TEEH
018 2017
EtE
% %
57 57 Venture capital investment
BIREERE
48.33 4833 Technical service of
new energy vehicles
MR E RITRT
56 56 Manufacture of new energy
vehicles batteries
BERRREEN
57 57 Manufacture of
Storage batteries
HEREYE)

BECEURREF ARG MBTREK -

BREBNERERARF / 2018 FR
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23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)
The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
material joint ventures is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the material joint

23. REELENER (H)
BERARBENERS ELENRIKETEER
FHAT o TR BEEE 5 E AR RIEE
R BREEARHOEAR LEEM B R

venture's financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs. RETRHEEEE -
Changxing Kewei RERR
018 2017
—E—+F
B’'000 RMB'000
S ARETTT
Current assets MENE E 4,231 17,057
Non-current assets EmEEE 90,180 90,180
Current liabilities mEIAE 21,000 =
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following: thEERBESESENTER
Cash and cash equivalents He MBS EEY 370 3,057
D18 2017
A —E—tF
B'000 RMB'000
S ARETTT
Revenue A 2,111 7,945
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive FAR(ER)MEREE
(expense) income for the year () WAL (1,826) 5718
Dividends received from Changxing Kewei F YRR B R B AL S
during the year = =
Capital reduction = ZNE D 32,000 =
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23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 23. REEBLENESR (&)
Changxing Kewei (continued) RER R (&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the il B RS A R B B K AR A B RS R R PR RR

carrying amount of the interest in Changxing Kewei recognised in

these consolidated financial statements:

AR B M 428 i O P T L

0 2017
- —EFE—+tF
000 RMB'000
R ARETT
Net assets of Changxing Kewei R EBIE B & EFE 73,411 107,237
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in - Z8 8= &5 & B} gL &)
Changxing Kewei WAL 57% 57%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in ARE E R R ER B R R Y
Changxing Kewei REE 41,844 61,125
Zhejiang Pulangte AL E BA %
0 2017
] —F—+F
000 RMB’000
R ARBT T
Current assets mENEE 98,673 74,917
Non-current assets IERBHEE 209,413 186,969
Current liabilities mENRE 236,285 186,607
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following: T EERBESERENATIEAR ¢
Cash and cash equivalents BHEREEEED 11,901 12,649
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and jRE & Bt A E (TEFEENE S
other payables and provisions) BR SR B H A JE < SRIB AN ) 5,000 5,000

BB NIZERER AR
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23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 23. REELENER (F)
Zhejiang Pulangte (continued) T E B4 (&)
018 2017
=+
B’000 RMB’000
R ARETT
Revenue A 74,386 36,142
Loss and total comprehensive expense FHRNBEELEARS B
for the year (3,478) (8331)
Dividends received from Zhejiang Pulangte F NUEUHTT & B R AR B
during the year - -
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the i B R E R B AR AR S B IS SR FTRERR
carrying amount of the interest in Zhejiang Pulangte recognised in PO E R AR 2 MO BR T (B S0 BR -
these consolidated financial statements:
018 2017
—E—+F
B’000 RMB’000
R ARETIT
Net assets of Zhejiang Pulangte AL E B B EE A 71,801 75279
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in - N5 B{5 47T I BA % HY
Zhejiang Pulangte BB RELL ] 48.33% 48.33%
Other adjustments (note) H fth FHE (BT 5E) 32,145 32,145
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in ARE BRI E BB A
Zhejiang Pulangte s 1 ARE B 66,846 68,527
Note:  Other adjustments represent the capital contribution from Chaowei Power while the Kiat - BEMAZABEE RN LTE  MAMKREER =
other investor's capital contribution has not yet completed as at 31 December 2018 E-—NFR-_F—+FF+_A=1+—HEKRTZK

and 2017. EE e
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23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 23. REELENER ()
Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not BERMSAFTEANSELXERERE

individually material

018 2017
—E—+F
RMB’000 RMB"000
R ARBTT
The Group's share of loss and total FAREEE(REER

comprehensive expense for the year HEMAX AT (9,410) -
D18 2017
A —EFE—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
R ARETTT

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's REERZEEERERN
interests in these joint ventures EmIREERRE 82,390 66,000

24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 24. PE QTR

018 2017
—T—+F
RMB’000 RMB"000
R ARBT T
Cost/deemed capital contribution KA RIEEE 161,922 139,122
Share of post-acquisition loss eyl =i (30,762) (19217)
131,160 119,905
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24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 24. RELE NAIRREZ ()
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, details of the Group’s material R-ZEBE—NER_T—+tFE+=-_A=1+—
associates are as follows: H AEBEHNERBERAZFBOT :
Proportion of nominal
value of registered capital
Country of and voting power
incorporation Fully paid-up/ held by the Group
Name of entity and operation registered capital asat 31 December Principal activity
BET-A=t-A%EE
ALK st REANEER
RRAE EEEX #R/imEs Fis RN A IERH
018 2017
i 3
%
Akkumulatorenfabrik MOLL GmbH & Co.KG (‘MOLL) Germany EUR3,966,000 34.46 3446 Manufacture of start-and-stop
Akkumulatorenfabrik MOLL GmbH & Co. KG ([MOLLI) {2E 3,966,000 (7T batteries
RENRE)
Zhejiang Yuanli Power Technology Co, Ltd. PRC RMBS50,000,000 45 45 Manufacture of new energy
MLRNERRRERAT i AR 500000007 storage system
REMRRERRR
Riyue Huixin (Hengain) Financial Holdings Limited PRC RMB100,000,000 40 40 Equityinvestment
HAER (RE) cRABARAA hE AR 1000000007 RERE
Zhejiang Shidarui Electric Vehicle Co, Ltd PRC RMBB6,000,000 3721 3121 Manufacture of electric vehicle
I EREHEARAR hE AR 860000007 REEHE
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24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 24, REEE DT RER (&)

The associates of the Group are accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group'’s
material associate is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the material
associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs.

AR B R E 2 R AR SRS ARG B 75
| -

BRAARSEEZ ML QR B 5 E R
I o IR B ERRKRRIESR
BRI REERRENER L QR 5H
RFTREEEE -

MOLL MOLL
018 2017
—E—+F
B’000 RMB’000
Sic AREFIT
Current assets TRENEE 123,079 161,121
Non-current assets IERFEE 94,651 84,630
Current liabilities wREAE 150,787 139,299
018 2017
—E—+F
B’000 RMB’000
S AREFIT
Revenue WA 535,599 585,851

(Loss) profit and total comprehensive (expense) N (E518 ) FE &

income for the year 2HE(AX)RALRE (38,440) 428
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24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in MOLL recognised in these

24. REHE RTINS (F)
AR RS B 75 B R B AR AR A B TS R P HERR
PMOLL By #E z HO BR M 9 B

consolidated financial statements:

0 2017

—T—+fF

000 RMB’000

= AREFTT

Net assets of MOLL MOLLH & EFE 66,943 106,452
Proportion of the Group's ownership ZRER E(E MOLL Hy#E A #E L 11

interest in MOLL 34.46% 34.46%

Goodwill = 8,666 8,666
Carrying amount of the Group's interest REERMOLL S REE

in MOLL 31,735 45,349

Aggregate information of associates that are not

individually material

BRMSERERNBE R TAEREE

0 2017
A :%—ti
000 RMB'000
R ARETT
The Group's share of loss and total FAREEEEBER

comprehensive expense for the year S*HEAS B (2,519) (4,595)
0 2017
—T—+tF
000 RMB"000
R ARETFT

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's REBRZER E R AR
interests in these associates e ARE B 99,425 74,556
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25. AFS/EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI 25. A ERE RAFEFAHAM
TEHKENESRTIA
AFS AHHERE
The AFS as at 31 December 2017 represent equity interests in certain R-ZE—+F+-_A=1+—HB2ZrAHEER
unlisted entities established in the PRC and the United States of BIREPPBEEERK IS TIELETEER
America. As the Group has no power to govern or participate in the fRiE e AN AEEEEAETNREZETE
decision of the financial operating policies of the entities so as to MBS S BB R AREILE HESHEEAR
obtain benefits from their activities and does not intend to trade for @ BTN RARRHNEETES  WESE
short-term profit, the Directors designated these unlisted interests as EZEELMERAAHREEREA -
AFS.
The AFS are measured at cost less impairment as at 31 December AR HEHERENSE A LEGTHEE
2017 because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so K BERETRASZGFEEANFE @R
significant that the Directors are of the opinion that their fair values —E—tF A=+ AERAHRRE
cannot be reliably measured. A=
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BRAFEFAHMEEKRENERTA
The amount represents the Group's equity interests in certain CREEASERPB REBKIZAE TIEL
unlisted entities established in the PRC and the United States of MEEBAREE  EFRKARBERS
America previously measured at cost less impairment was reclassified A6 FE A B BR B i 5 B RISE o5 & H R
from AFS to equity instruments at FVTOC! at the date of initial AHHEREEFT D EAZAFET AR
application of IFRS 9. ZHNEAERTH o
26. LOAN RECEIVABLES 26. BRER
Summary of the loan receivables are set out below: EWEFRBAEAT
018 2017
—T—tF
B’000 RMB’000
= ARETTT
Chisen Electric Entrusted Loan (note a) EREREZLER(MizEa) 75,174 112,000
Jiangxi Changxin Entrusted Loan (note b) IARFEZFEER (D) 20,808 50,000
Entrusted loan granted to governmentanda R FEF N —KBE B D EH
state-owned company (note c) ZEEF(fEo 78,949 42,449
Other loan receivables (note d) Hab W ER (MiaEd) 56,027 21,226
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RIREE (8,350) (8,350)
222,608 217,325
Analysis for reporting purposes as: REWME R 2D -
Current assets MBNE E 143,659 12,876
Non-current assets IEmEEE 78,949 204,449
222,608 217,325
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26. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) 26. BWER (&)
Movements in allowance for loan receivables during the year ended HE_Z—tF+-_A=1+—"HILFEARE
31 December 2017: Uy B 2 3% 4

2017

—E—+F

RMB'000

ARETT

At beginning of the year REA] =

Provided for the year FARHE 8,350

At end of the year RER 8,350
As at 31 December 2018, an debtor of loan receivable with carrying RZE—/\F+-A=+—H8 —ZERAE
amount of RMB8,350,000 (2017: RMB8,350,000) is in severe financial BAR®ES35000T(ZEE—+F: ARK
difficult and therefore loss allowance of RMB8,350,000 (2017: 8,350,000 7T ) A & U & SR & 75 A T B Bk 25 B
RMBS8,350,000) is charged against the balance. Details of impairment BRE - AILE Bxz&sgiNkERREAR
assessment of loan receivables for the year ended 31 December #£8350,000 T(ZE—+tF : ARH®8350,000
2018 are set out in note 49. T)eHE—E—N\E+-_HA=+—HI&E

BREEFRER G 2 BRI 549

(@  The amounts represent a loan to Chisen Electric Jiangsu Co., @ SEHEERBEEZITERHZEAETEE
Ltd (“Chisen Electric”) under entrusted loan arrangement EREEAT([REEENETE
through CITIC Trust Co,, Ltd. (“CITIC Trust”). The entrusted loan BRERIHERAG(EERER]H
is secured by property, plant and equipment and inventories BR - EEEFTUEERER/LMNIE
held by Chisen Electric and Zhejiang Chisen Electric Co., Ltd. BRERKRARAR(NIER] EKE
(“Zhejiang Chisen’”, the immediate holding company of Chisen RHEBHEEAR)BENYE  ME
Electric), 98% equity interest in Chisen Electric and 100% LEERTFE  ERTERSWFER
equity interest in Zhejiang Chisen, and guaranteed by the WL B B 100% A HE(EHE 4R - W B B%
ultimate beneficial owner of Chisen Electric, carrying fixed TR RREREAS AMEER - 12E
interest rate of 8% per annum, and is repayable in December EFFESUETE  WARZZT—NEF
2019. TZREER-
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26. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)

(@)

(continued)

Other commitments of Chisen Electric

Chisen Electric has also agreed that, during the term of the
Chisen Electric Entrusted Loan:

(i) it shall not increase its registered capital or total
investment in any form unless agreed by Chaowei
Power in writing, except for investment into Chisen
Electric made by Chaowei Power;

(i) it shall accept investment proposals from Chaowei
Power;

(i)  Chaowei Power shall have the right to appoint one
director to the board of directors of Chisen Electric; and

(iv) it shall amend its articles of association to confirm the
director appointment by Chaowei Power.

The aforesaid other commitments undertaken by Chisen
Electric only give Chaowei Power protective rights rather than
significant influence over Chisen Electric. As such, Chaowei
Power does not account for Chisen Electric as an associate.

The amounts represent a loan to Jiangxi Changxin Power Co.,
Ltd. (“Jiangxi Changxin”) under entrusted loan arrangement
through CITIC Trust. The entrusted loan is secured by property,
plant and equipment and inventories held by Jiangxi
Changxin and guaranteed by the ultimate beneficial owner of
Jiangxi Changxin (together with his spouse), carrying fixed
interest rate of 7.2% per annum, and is repayable in November
2019.

. BRER (&)

(a)

(&)
ERERNHEAMEAE
ERERNMCAE  RERERER
ESRHRA

) BIFERERAZTESIARE
BRIENE LMET"H/EU‘?JDE.E
MEASBIRER  HEBERER
Al S A ERMEHORERIERI

(i) HEEZMNBERERELOKES
(i) HEEREEZE— %%?DDA
ERTEIANEETS :

(v HAGFTEESSEAA - AW
REBERHEENRE -

i ERERAFZNEMAEES
RIEBEEIRNEN  BREIRES
BRERITBEANTE - Ft - BE
ERIWIEERTERMNIEE A -

CHEEREZTER M EE BT ERE
AETFTIARTERAERAR((IA
EHOER - EEERUIARH
HENYE - BEKEERTEER
B YHIARTOEKRERES A
M ERBIEER &Imiﬂﬁn%
e WEAR-—Z—NLF+—AEE
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26. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)

180

(@)

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /

The amounts consist of:

(i)

(i)

As at 31 December 2018, RMB75,449,000 (2017:
RMB38,949,000) represent a long-term loan to Qinyang
City Construction Investment and Development Co.,
Ltd. (a company as to 49% owned by State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
("SASAC") of Qinyang City). The loan is unsecured and
guaranteed by Qinyang Qinbei Construction Investment
Co., Ltd., a company wholly-owned by SASAC of
Qinyang City at a floating rate based on the borrowing
rate announced by the People’s Bank of China, and is
repayable on a five-year annual instalment basis from
2016 to 2020.

As at 31 December 2018, RMB3,500,000 (2017:
RMB3,500,000) represent a long-term loan to
government of Gangchen Town, Ningyang County
("Ningyang Government”). The loan is unsecured and
guaranteed by Ningyang County Jincai Investment Co,,
Ltd., a company as to 40% by the government of
Ningyang County and 60% by another state-owned
entity, at a floating rate based on the borrowing rate
announced by the People’s Bank of China, and is
repayable on a five-year annual instalment basis from
2016 to 2020.

As at 31 December 2018, except for loan receivables of
RMB19,000,000 are interest-free, unsecured and with maturity
less than three months, other loan receivables are carrying

interest rate ranging from 6% to 8% per annum, unsecured

and with maturity ranging from 3 to 12 months.

Annual Report 2018

26. EWER (&)
TREERE

(@]

0]

(i)

ﬁ___

RZZE—NFEF+=A=+—H -
A R 8754490000 ( = & — +
F: AR#389490007T) HE&X T
WETTH M ERIREERERA

ARG TREEEEEEE
Zae((WETREZDHSE
4% )M REER - BEXA
Eii: 73 N A= DA A D S e
BERAROMETRHELZZE
BEEHRQR) EER - FlEiZkS
Bl ARBITAME)FBEEF =X

T RZE—RFEZZE=ZT
FIEhFHPRFEEESHE
8o

R=_E—N\FE+=-_A=+—8"
AR #53,50000070 (ZZ—+4F ¢
A R #3,500,0007T ) I8 & T 2[5
SRR BN ([ZESBT D &
HER - BRAEIKE - WhE
% e MIEEER AR (AERS
ZEBNES—EHEERBO %S
40% K. 60%) YEHELR o F 2= E
)\Efﬁﬁf‘%ﬁmiﬁmﬁﬁ%lwﬁ

TRIB-RFE_ZT-ZTF
iﬁiﬁﬁiﬁi&% E"Hﬂfé-ja

NE+TZA=+—B KA

R #19,000,000 T FER E = ﬁ%

LN =E A RENEH - H
W B 3% F F E 6% = 8% T B
HERR=

‘?ﬁ%&
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27. INVENTORIES 27. #&

018 2017

i Sl S

B’000 RMB’000

R ARETTT

Raw materials B 466,804 454,073
Work in progress =R 1,097,119 1,358,107
Finished goods RUAK T 599,136 496,522
2,163,059 2,308,702

28. TRADE RECEIVABLES 28. EINE 5 R

018 2017

—E—+tF

B’000 RMB"000

R ARBTT

Trade receivables JEUE F BRI 2,310,537 2,146,801
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B SRR (285,782) (205,692)
2,024,755 1,941,109
The Group generally allows a credit period of 15 days (2017: 15 days) AEB—BRARZFTLHRINRHEFIRME
to its trade customers with good trading history, or otherwise sales 5E(ZZ2—tF  15H)MEEH - FAIH
on cash terms are required. The credit period provided to customers BB SET - MEFREMNEEBRE
may vary based on a number of factors, including the Group's ZBEAEZMBMES  BEASEERFH
relationship with the customer, the customer’s credit profile and R EENEEMRRRARGEE  BE4

payment history, total contract value and market conditions. BE RSN
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28. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
The aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful
debts presented based on the goods delivery date, which is the
same as revenue recognition date, at the end of the reporting period

28. FEWE Z R ()

R E IR - HBEREREBROBYWE
2R BR ik D TR X 8 B H (B A TR
RHED) 25T -

is as follows:
018 2017
—T—+tF
B'000 RMB'000
S ARETTT
0-15 days 0-15 H 422,162 670,034
16-90 days 16-90 H 896,668 442,068
91-180 days 91-180 H 409,937 385,734
181-365 days 181-365 H 240,876 425,831
Over 1 year 81 F 55,112 17,442
2,024,755 1,941,109

Before accepting any new customer, the Group internally assesses
the credit quality of the potential customer and define appropriate
credit limits. Management closely monitors the credit quality of trade
receivables and considers the trade receivables that are neither past
due nor impaired to be of a good credit quality.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables which are past
due but not impaired:

EERMEAFHEER  ARES NN EZ
BEEFPHEEER  UBEEANEER
B BEERETERRURESIRINEEE
= RBARIBRBENEEEZESEE
REFWEREER -

AT RAERHMERBEN R E SRR R
BT

2017
—F—+tF

RMB'000
ARETT

16-90 days 16-90 H
91-180 days 91-180 H
181-365 days 181-365 H
Over 1 year 1 F

442,068
385,734
425,831

17,442

1,271,075
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28. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 28. BWE SR (&)
The Group does not hold any collateral over those balances which REEEZED BB RBERN AR EF
are past due but not impaired. BEAERR -
Impairment for trade receivables over credit period are provided for REBLREZBERRLEE R BERBEZE
based on estimated irrecoverable amounts from the sale of goods, HRGHTHEHEE RN r] Y e IE - pLids
determined by reference to past default experience and objective ZEHNEWE IR GHRMER M -

evidences of impairment.

Movements in allowance for trade receivables during the year ended B Z—tF+-_A=1+—HIFEAE
31 December 2017: W& Z R
2017
—F—tF
RMB'000
ARET T
At beginning of the year =) 144,991
Provided for the year FNEAE 82,679
Written off during the year F A (21,978)
Atend of the year R 205,692
In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the Group EEREWE ZERNAIREIERE @ RNEEH
reassesses the credit quality of the trade receivables since the credit B HAREEEREERE HAEREN
was granted and up to the end of the reporting period. Based on the KRB SEREEEER - BREAEEMNBE
historical experience of the Group, the Directors believe that no K EERAETIELE—TRE -

further allowance is required.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for the year BHEBZEZE—_ZT—N\GFTA=T—HIEFE
ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 49. FEUE 5 IR FRA BB R (G 2 SE I SR MY 5
49 o
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29.

30.

184

BILLS RECEIVABLE
The aged analysis of bills receivable presented based on the issue
date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

29.

R RE
RS A RE - BIRERIZE N ANk
e

2017
—ET—+tF

RMB' 000
ARETT

0-90 days
91-180 days

0-90 H
91-180 H

1,009,560
968,117

1,977,677

All the bills receivable are of trading nature and will mature within six
months from the issue date.

Details of pledge of bills receivable for the Group's secured bank
borrowings are set out in note 50.

RECEIVABLES AT FVTOCI

The balance represents bills receivables held by the Group which is
measured at FVTOCI since initial adoption of IFRS 9 on 1 January
2018, since the bills are held within the business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets, and the contractual cash flows are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Details of pledge of bills receivable for the Group’s secured bank
borrowings are set out in note 50.
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IAERKEEHIBR S IEE L K5 H B H
FEET7NE A REH -

AEEEEIFRITEENREKZIRIEFFE
AT EE 50 °

BAFEFAHMGEZEKENVER
IR

BREARERENEKER BTN
F-A-BBEREABERMBHRELERIE9
SEZEAFEFARMCEERENE - RE
RAERBREEBRBMAENATRE R
CeRMEEZIARNEBEATHE M
ZANASREERAERHREELER
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N

31.

TRANSFER OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group has discounted certain bills receivable to banks and
transferred certain bills receivables to its suppliers to settle its
payables through endorsing the bills to its suppliers, both with full
recourse basis. The Group has derecognised these bills receivable
and the payables to suppliers in their entirety as in the opinion of the
Directors, the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of these bills and has discharged its obligation
of the payables to its suppliers under the relevant PRC practice, rule
and regulations. In the opinion of the Directors, the Group has
limited exposure in respect of the settlement obligation of these bills
receivable under relevant PRC rules and regulations should the
issuing banks fail to settle the bills on maturity date. The Directors
considered the issuing banks of the bills are of good credit quality
and the non-settlement of these bills by the issuing banks on
maturity is not probable.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s maximum exposure to loss
and cash outflow, which is same as the amount payable by the
Group to collecting banks or the suppliers in respect of the bank
issued bills discounted and bank issued bills endorsed, should the
issuing banks fail to settle the bills on maturity date, of which
amounted to RMB214,300,000 and RMB547,285,000 (2017:
RMB525,044,000 and RMB232,288,000), respectively. All the bills
receivable discounted to banks or endorsed to suppliers of the
Group have a maturity date of less than six months from the end of
the reporting period.

1. EZSREE

AEBECRARTINAE T RERENEBR
HtEmEERERnEHERERE TRIK
SBRUNEEMANIE  MEFEEZEER
o AEEE 2R IERARTRERER
BNHERTR  RETRA/ANKECDEER
ZEZBRRAIONRARRE®R - WERE
HETEER  RAERAEHEEETT
NSRBI EE - EFRR - WMBEITRITAR
R BAENZERE - AREBREME
AP BRI ERENZFREREBNRE
MARZNERER - EERRATRENHE
TRTHEARIERELER - BRFHITRT
T TRENZEZBZEREM -

RZZE—N\F+ZA=1+—H ' RZERT
REBEEREEERE  AEBEXEH
BEESRENEAESZRNAER AIRTT
BITHE AR ME B EREIR S E R BGK
RITHIHEFENRERDEBARE
214,300,000 7T K A R #547,285,00070 ( = &
—+F: AR ¥5250440007T & A R
232,288,0007T) ° R EHIR - AKEMELR
BRIRAIRITHE S ETHERNEKREE 2
EHIEE PR 6 EA o

BEBHZERARAR / 201843:® 185




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RO R 15 i =Y 5

For the year ended 31 December 2018
2= \F+ZA=+—RHLFE

32. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 32. EANRIERAEMEWRKE
An analysis of prepayments and other receivables is as follows: TR FIE R E A EUGRIBE DAL T
018 2017
A —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
R ARETIT
Other receivables H b fE U FkB 750,570 945,324
Less: allowance for doubtful debts on A ‘rﬁlﬁguﬁl K I
other receivables REEB A (39,381) (26,425)
711,189 918,899
Prepayments to suppliers TE S i FE P A SR IE 562,741 633,247
1,273,930 1,552,146
An analysis of other receivables is as follows: HAb U HRIBAITAT -
018 2017
q —EF—+ i
B’000 RMB'000
[ ARETIT
Value-added tax recoverable EEE Y 438,690 628,784
Income tax recoverable EIRLdEEEy 14,207 40,842
Interest receivable JE U B 2,535 2,631
Prepayments to employees m{E BB FIA 39,002 54,151
Prepaid service fee AT ARG & 25,620 37,956
Deposits for other borrowings (note i) Hinfgpige (i) 45,802 =
Other deposits Eize 29,699 17,934
Receivable from disposal of an associate & —REEE A R R IR
(note ii) (KF=Eii) - 11,800
Amount due from a shareholder of a joint JEN—REETCE—FZRR
venture (note iii) TR (M =Eiin) 20,000 20,000
Amount due from a former associate FEJ%Z KA & A B A (M aEiv)
(note iv) 26,400 33,000
Others Hith 108,615 98,226
750,570 945,324
Notes: HfaE -
() The amount represents the deposits placed in the independent financial institutions (i) DERIEFHRE L IR RS - RBRAK
to secure bank borrowings from these financial institutions. HEIBIE IR TIE B IEHEIR ©
(ii) The receivable from disposal of an associate is unsecured, bears interest at a rate of (ii) [HE — KB & Al A FEMG B B A PR - LAF 7
5.25% per annum and has been settled in full in April 2018. E525%518  ER=ZF—NFEMALLEE -
(i) Theamount is unsecured, carrying interest rate of 4.7% per annum and with maturity (i)  HEREEA  BFFIE47%58 - BET =1
of 12 months. H e
(iv)  Theamount is secured by the associate’s property, plant and equipment, interest-free (v) HREUBERANYE  BERIEELHR &
and repayable on demand. B RIAEZFKEE -
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N

32.

33.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 32. FAYRRIE R HAbFEWCRTE (&)
(continued)
Analysed for financial reporting purposes: M EHREB DT ¢
018 2017
9 —E2—+F
RMB’000 RMB"000
R ARETTT
Non-current JEBNER 47,433 11,893
Current BNHA 1,226,497 1,540,253
1,273,930 1,552,146
Movements in allowance for other receivables during the year ended HE-_Z—+H+t-A=1+—HILFERAL
31 December 2017: b P LA =k T 1 4 o
2017
—F—tF
RMB"000
ARBTT
At beginning of the year )| 33,887
Reversal for the year (note) FREE (M) (7,462)
At end of the year FI 26,425
Note:  Reversal for the year ended 31 December 2017 are mainly due to settlement in full of Wit : B —F—+&FE+=-A=+—HHEANEEEE
other receivables with carrying amount of RMB7,740,000. BREEEREEAA R 7740000 7T B it ENK 2
=
Details of impairment assessment of other receivables for the year BRABE T \F+t-_A=+—HILFE
ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 49. H i fE W R IE 2 BB R 2 SR IB SR BT 5
49
RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK 33. SRFBITERRBITEREES

BALANCES AND CASH

Restricted bank deposits represent the Group’s bank deposits
pledged to banks to secure certain facilities granted to the Group by
banks.

The restricted bank deposits carry market interest rate of 0.30% per
annum (2017: 0.30% per annum) as at 31 December 2018.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less which are held with
banks and carry interest at prevailing market rate.

Most of the Group's bank balances and cash and restricted bank
deposits are denominated in RMB which is not freely convertible
currency in the international market. The exchange of RMB is
determined by the Government of the PRC and the remittance of
these funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restriction
imposed by the Government of the PRC.

RBHIRITFFIE AR EE T T IRITAYIRTT
T AERIRITAARER LS TREE
& °

RZB—N\FE+_A=1+—H  ZRHIFT
FRIRTIBENK030% (ZB—+4F : F5
R030%) 58 °

RITESREBE RS RRIHALS=EAH
AR RS AT KA - BT SR U R
17 RERHSNERGTE -

REDAEENRITESR LTS - ARER
HETEREIZUAREE MARER
TAIRERTIZ EERLBNER  Hik
HTBERAEE  MERESELTEA
P BB B e A0 SN R Il P A5 88 o
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34. TRADE PAYABLES 34. ENEZRN
Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade ENESEREREZEERMNORZFER LT
purchases and ongoing costs. The Group normally settles its trade BN - RSB —MPA B IRE R ER308 (=
payables within 30 days (2017: 30 days) from the goods receipt date. T—tF:308) NFEENE SRR -
The aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the goods R BAAERE - BN E SRR E HE
receipt date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: RBREE DATZAT ¢
018 2017
—E—tF
B'000 RMB' 000
FS 5 ARETT
0-30 days 0-30H 979,624 1,119,268
31-90 days 31-90 H 591,483 512613
91-180 days 91-180 H 317,701 533,133
181-365 days 181-365 H 116,996 56,913
1-2 years 1-24F 21,172 57,400
Over 2 years B2 F 30,831 13,988
2,057,807 2,293,315
35. BILLS PAYABLE 35. BNRE
The aged analysis of bills payable presented based on the issue date RS HIAE RIS - ENZHRIRE L H N
at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BT :
018 2017
—T—+tF
B'000 RMB'000
FS 5 ARETFT
0-90 days 0-90 A 98,370 426,474
91-180 days 91-180 B 1,046,918 614,897
1,145,288 1,041,371
All the bills payable are of trading nature and will mature within six IAERNZREHEBR S EE L K3 H B H
months from the issue date. REENEAREH
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36. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 36.

An analysis of other payables is as follows:

Hitt BN REARETER
HAREHEA NN -

0 2017
—E—+F
000 RMB’000
=S AREFT
Advance from customers TEW = F k1A - 707,518
Accrued payroll and welfare EstE e REF 168,868 139,930
Other tax payables H fth fE S H1 18 476,286 182,705

Dividend payable to a non-controlling B —RMB AR —%
shareholder of a subsidiary FEFEE A% A% R A9 R% B 26,344 -
Interest payable JEASFILE 45,211 29,375
Deposits received from distributors and others £ 95 §85 78 & E 4th 75 E W EX A & 233,812 166,799
Accrued commission EsHRS 109,637 135,041
Accrued transportation cost FEFT 3P AR 78,103 56,555
Accrued utilities EEtkKEE 63,659 40,742
Accrued other expenses Bt EMFA 246,164 233,070
Other Hih 25,171 6,817
1,473,255 1,698,552

37. DEFERRED INCOME 37. ELEWA

Government
grants
BT B
RMB’000
ARETTT
At 1 January 2017 R-_ZE—+F—H—H 249,286
Additions NE 45975
Released to income (note 7) T AMA (FFE7) (20,211)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+-_A=+—H 275,050
Additions NE 57,549
Released to income (note 7) FTAMA (FF5E7) (48,375)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-—N\F+-HA=+—H 284,224

KB ERATHE B IR FE WA SE L IE A A B
T A B RO {5 A S R A P S RO IR
FRRRE - RERE MBI R AR R EER
A WEABARER T AR 2 HEA R A
B R {58 AR 4F HET AR -

Deferred income arising from government grants represents the
government subsidies obtained in relation to the acquisition of land
use right or equipment of certain subsidiaries of the Company,
which were included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as deferred income and credited to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term of the land use right or the
useful life of the equipment.
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38. WARRANTY PROVISION

38. RERE

0 2017

—E—tF

000 RMB'000

R ARETT

At beginning of year F 1) 483,167 543,949
Provision for the year FNEE 535,600 564,572
Utilisation of provision FRRE (483,514) (625,354)
At end of year FIR 535,253 483,167

The warranty provision represents management'’s best estimate of
the Group's liability within fifteen months’ warranty granted on
motive battery products, based on prior experience for defective

FRERBEEN BT AR  AKEEE
EBHE N EMEm e+ I A REPTRSE
B ERMSEMG -

products.
39. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 39. EWAE
R At
Decembe 1 January
018 2018*
R N\F
= = _)E] J— EI *
RMB’000 RMB"000
K% ARETIT
Current; BNER :
lead-acid motive batteries, lithium-ion SHEEE) DM BB T E &
batteries and other related products Hu AR E S 578,037 707,518

WA S A AR B R ERE 155 kB
priBeE -

*The amounts in this column are after the adjustments from the application of IFRS 15.

Revenue of RMB707,518,000 recognised in the current year relates to
carried-forward contract liabilities, which was included in the
contract liability balance at the beginning of the year. No revenue

N [ R UL A A R 707,518,000 7T £2 4%
HANBERE SFAFUENEERR -
EAFERERNRALRBEPBMEEMN
JB#)E THHRS -

recognised in the current year relates to performance obligations
that were satisfied in prior periods.
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39. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued) 39. EXNEE(E)
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract HEZANANABESEAEYEN MR MIF
liabilities recognised are as follow: AT
lead-acid motive batteries, lithium-ion batteries and SEREN D E M - $EEE 7 =t & H b 4H
other related products Em
The Group sells lead-acid motive batteries, lithium-ion batteries and AEERFFIHEMBRE TN BB TS
other related products to customers. The Group generally allows a R EMBREER o NEBE—ARER Feik
credit period of 15 days to its trade customers with good trading RBIFNRZEFPREISENEEL - T84
history, or otherwise sales on cash terms are required. In addition, EPIIRESETT o I REBKERETE
the Group may require certain customers to pay deposits in advance FPIREI MRS MR RERIR E & RS
and to fully settle the remaining balance before or upon delivery. Eft&Ees -
40. BANK BORROWINGS 40. SRITRE
018 2017
A :%—tﬁi
B’000 RMB’000
53 AREFIT
Secured bank borrowings (note i) BEARITEE (D 2,155,613 2,197,498
Unsecured bank borrowings KRS EE 2,998,832 3,004,365
5,154,445 5,201,863
The borrowings are repayable as ARATFEEENEE
follows (note ii): (F=Eii) :
Within one year —ER 3,555,691 3,193,586
More than one year but not exceeding —FE L B BBMRE
two years 807,754 1,112,192
More than two years but not exceeding MDA BT EBBE A F
five years 791,000 896,085
5,154,445 5,201,863
Less: Amount due for settlement within B AR —FRNEEILZ5
one year and shown under current KRB B &R FRIE (M%)
liabilities (note iii) (3,761,691) (3,193,586)
Amount due after one year —F & E| A FRIE 1,392,754 2,008,277
Total borrowings BEE
— at fixed rates —EBE 3,753,253 3,657,867
— at floating rates — 2B 1,401,192 1,543,996
5,154,445 5,201,863
Notes: Htat -
() The secured borrowings of RMB60,990,000 are also guaranteed by the non- 0] A # 60,990,000 7T £/ L #1E B IR 8 2K 22 mIfTE
controlling shareholders of the subsidiaries of the Company. RELZ IFFERIRRAELR -
(if) The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan (ii) & B EIH) H A B 5 a5 AT # Y FEE B H B2E »
agreemem&
(i) As at 31 December 2018, borrowings of RMB206,000,000 contain a repayment on (i) RZ=ZF-—NFE+ZA=14+—H' ARK¥
demand clause and therefore are presented as current liabilities. 206,000,000 7T F9 15 54 2 12 JE Z K (E 32 2 1550 - B
2SI RTEEE -
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N

40.

41.

192

BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

Fixed interest rate borrowings were charged at the rates ranging
from 3.40% to 6.90% per annum (2017: from 3.11% to 9.09% per
annum) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Interest on RMB borrowings at floating rates is calculated based on
the borrowing rates announced by the People’s Bank of China.
Interest on HKD borrowings at floating rates is charged at 2.75% over
3 months Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate. Floating interest rate
borrowings were charged at the rates ranging from 4.75% to 5.23%
per annum (2017: from 4.35% to 5.80% per annum) for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Details of pledge of assets for the Group’s secured bank borrowings
are set out in note 50.

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

The Group has entered into a finance lease of certain machineries
with an independent third party. In accordance with the lease
agreement, the term of the lease was 3 years at a floating rate
calculated based on the borrowing rates announced by the People’s
Bank of China and the Group has an option to purchase the assets at
a nominal consideration upon the end of the lease term.

The outstanding balance of RMB75,000,000 as at 31 December 2017
and the relevant finance charge of RMB1,791,000 have been fully
repaid during the current year.
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40. SRITHE(A)

41.

BE_T- )\ +-_A=+—HUEE" T
BEERNF340%E690% (=T —tF:
FFIEANF3.11% 5 9.09%) B F KL -

FEARBEENHEZRTEARRITAM
MEERNRTHE - ZEETEENF BRI
BABBRITRAZERBM275%TE - HE
T )\FEF+A=+—HBLFE  FEE
ERNF475% 52 523%( — T —+F : F£7|

RANF-435% Z 5.80%) I EFZREHE o

AEBAERKIFRITEENEERRFBTIR
MisE 50 ©

MERESEE

AEECDHE-BBIFE = A THEFTL
MEHE - REMEEHS RHR=F %
BRPBEARBITAMHMEERNRGTE - M
AEEANEMZEREENBRERERE

R-ZE—+F+-A=+—BHRENNELE
AR ¥ 75000000t X ABERE E R AR
1,791,000 TE R AR FEREEE -
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42.

SHORT-TERM NOTE AND MEDIUM-TERM NOTE
Short-term Note

On 26 April 2018, Chaowei Power issued a unsecured short-term
note in the PRC with a principal amount of RMB300,000,000 and a
term of 270 days. The coupon rate of the short-term note is 7.00%
per annum and the effective interest rate is 7.46% per annum.

As at 31 December 2018, an aggregate amount of arrangement fee
totaling RMB435,000 was included in the balance of short-term note,
and will be released to profit or loss as finance costs using the
effective interest method over the note period.

Medium-term Note

During 2017, Chaowei Power registered its medium-term note with
an aggregate principal amount of RMB1,400,000,000 in the National
Association of Financial Market Institutional Investors of the PRC. On
16 October 2017, Chaowei Power issued a unsecured three-year
medium-term note with a principal amount of RMB700,000,000. The
coupon rate of the medium-term note is 7.00% per annum and the
effective interest rate is 7.34% per annum.

As at 31 December 2018, an aggregate amount of arrangement fee
totaling RMB3,558,000 (2017: RMB5,592,000) was included in the
balance of medium-term note, and will be released to profit or loss
as finance costs using the effective interest method over the note
period.

42, =Y

EBRTHERE

EHEE

R-ZEE—NFNUA=—+/<8  BHERET
B 217 A © 58 A A R 300,000,000 7T B £ 1K
FIEHIZEY - AHI270K - EHZEENER
FIRABEFF700%  MERFEEZF746% °

RZE—N\F+-_A=1+—H EHEEE
HEES X AREKA435000t 2 ZHEE B2
o WEREERERERF XL W%
BB R AET AJE 2 o

PHIE

AZE—+F  BEEREPRHBITETES
RymameadaMAsBEAEARE
1,400,000000 T HF HARIE - R=ZZ—+4F
+A+AB BEBERETASEAARE
700,000,000 7T B X = FHAFR EA R 4% - AR
HEENZEAAE BT F700%  MmEERF
RETF734% o

RZZB—N\F+_A=1+—H  HHZELE
BAEIES AR 3558000 (ZE—+H4F
AR®ES55920007) 2L HEB AL i
REEHARERAERREE  (ERREKAE
FFABES ©
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43.

194

CORPORATE BOND

On 14 August 2014, Chaowei Power issued a six-year term corporate
bond (the “Corporate Bond”) in the PRC with a principal amount of
RMB600,000,000. The interest rate of the Corporate Bond is 7.98%
per annum for the first three years up to 13 August 2017. At the end
of the third year, on 13 August 2017, the bonds holders have a right
to redeem all or part of the Corporate Bond to Chaowei Power at its
face value and Chaowei Power has a right to adjust upward the
interest rate of the Corporate Bond from a range of 1-100 basis
points (both fingers inclusive). The Company has provided an
irrevocable guarantee on the entire principal amount and interest of
the Corporate Bond. On 13 August 2017, the Corporate Bond holders
have decided to redeem part of the Corporate Bond from Chaowei
Power amounting to RMB182,196,000. The remaining portion of the
Corporate Bond keeps at the same interest rate and will mature on
13 August 2020.

As at 31 December 2018, an aggregate amount of arrangement fee
totaling RMB2,112,000 (2017: RMB3,413,000) was included in the
balance of Corporate Bond, and will be released to profit or loss as
finance costs using the effective interest method over the bond
period.
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RZZF—MFNA+EA - BEERRF
BT RS EE A AR 600,000,000 7T .2 75 F £
TEGH((ERFF])  CEBEFE=FH
EMRETRY BE_E—+F)N\A+=
Hit - REBE=FFK R-T—tFNA+=
B E5FEAGRERAERBEESRER
2D TEES - MBHEREGE LA
EBEHFHFIE - UNF1-100 22 (B2IEH
BEF)ABR - ARRIEMEEBEHZEY
A& EE R F BIRERATRE 2 R - RZ=F
—+tENA+TZH ' CEBEHFEBEEARER
BRERELISDLEES  ABRARE
182,196,000 7T ° R EEHH AT D 45 HEE
FMREER-_ZE-_ZTFEN\A+=HFH -

RIZE—NFE+-A=+—8  CEEHE
BEIES AR 2112000 (ZFE—+4F :
AR¥341300070) 2 ZHEE A ARE - i
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44,

45.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT 44,
The Group uses commodity derivative contracts (standard lead
forward contracts in Shanghai Futures Exchange) to manage its
exposure against lead price fluctuations. This arrangement is
designated to address significant fluctuations in the price of lead
concentrate and lead related products which move in line with the

price of lead. However, this arrangement is not accounted for under

hedge accounting according to the Group'’s accounting policies.

The Group does not hold any standard lead forward contracts as at
31 December 2018.

PTESMIA
AEBEABRITETIAEGN(LEHER
SR ERESREHN) ERRERDER -
AR R RSt NI E mEREREX
fERE - AT - REARESHER L%
PR EIR AR G EEARR

AEER —ZF—\F+_A=+—BLEHF
BRENERMEL -

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 45. BAFEFABBENERMEE
018 2017
i Sl S
B’000 RMB’000
5fae ARETTT
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong — EEB LETMRRAES 6,427 2,321
— Unlisted managed investment fund —FLMERREES 60,000 =
66,427 2,321

The unlisted managed investment fund is measured at fair value on
a recurring basis, details of which are set out in note 49(e).

FEMERREESREBEFHEEZ QT
BT E - BRAFBENHE496)
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46.

196

SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY 46. KX FRA

The details of the Company’s share capital are as follows: RABKREAFFEBAOT :

Number of shares

Shares capital

R EE [N
UsD'000
FET
Authorised: EE -
Ordinary shares of USD0.01 each Fh% 001 ETH LR
At 1January 2017, 31 December 2017 ~ R-_ZT—+F—HF—H -
and 31 December 2018 —E—tFF+ZA=FT—AK
- \F+=ZA=+—H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHRE :
Ordinary shares of USD0.01 each %001 ETH T AR
At 1January 2017, 31 December 2017 R Z-ZZE—+F—HF—1H -
and 31 December 2018 —T—+F+_A=+—HK
—E-N\F+=ZA=1+—A1 1,107,911,979 11,079
RMB'000
ARET T
Presented at 31 December 2017 and RZZFE—+F+A=1+—HK
31 December 2018 —E2-N\F+=ZA=1+—H
HER 74,961
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47. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 47. RMEEBFECEBZHE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from TRFVIAEBERETEMEAZAGB(E
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash liabilities HBIREMIERCEE)EE - B EZETE
arising financing activities are those for which cash flows were or ERNBEEREMEBIARBEREFEAR
future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated EBGERERERT O EARME TEE
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities. HEeEnENaE -
) dends to A
A 0 0 0 0 0 ) b
0 0 O 0 0
= H 16 2 = po B [t H H
B 000 RVIB'000 RVIB'000 B'000 RVIB'000
Bank borrowings RITEE 5,201,863 (47,418) - - 5,154,445
Finance lease BEME 75,000 (75,000) - = =
Short-term note ySEIES - 299,030 - 900 299,930
Medium-term note mEIZE 644,298 - - 2,033 646,331
Corporate Bond =g 414,392 - - 1,300 415,692
Dividend payable to a E—ZHBAR—%
non-controlling shareholder FIERRE 2 2
of a subsidiary - (45,640) 71,984 - 26,344
At 31 December 2018 RZE—\F
+-A=+—H 6,335,553 130,972 71,984 4,233 6,542,742
At 1 January Financing Acquisition At 31 December
2017 cash flows Others (note) of subsidiaries 2017
RZE—tF BHE Hith WE  RIZE+F
-fB—A Beng (M3E) WBAR +-A=t+-H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT ARETT ARETFT ARETT ARETT
Bank borrowings RS 2930483 2,130380 - 141,000 5,201,863
Finance lease HEME 175,000 (100,000) - - 75,000
Short-term note BHEE - (1,101) 1,101 - -
Corporate Bond xR 595,287 (182,196) 1,301 - 414392
Medium-term note hEZE = 643,790 508 = 644298
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+F
+-A=+—H 3,700,770 2490873 2910 141,000 6,335,553
Note: Htat -
Others represent the amortisation of front-end fee of short-term financing note, Corporate E g gl & F1R - (DR EHRPHER D0 B8 #
Bond and medium-term note. o
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48.

198

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which mainly
comprises bank borrowings, corporate bond, medium-term note,
short-term note, derivative financial instrument, obligations under
finance leases, net of restricted bank deposits and bank balances and
cash, and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis. As part
of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of
the Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt.
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

49, £@ITH

Categories of financial instruments (@ £MIAEH
018 2017
—E—+F
B'000 RMB’000
R AREBTT
Financial assets SEEE
Fair value through profit or loss BAFEFAER
— Mandatorily measured at FVTPL — Rl A FER ABR 66,427 2,321
Derivative financial instrument PTESmIA - 391
Financial assets at amortised cost BB HEN AT EN S REE 7,026,497 =
Equity instruments at FVTOC| BAHEAEREMEE
Wkt T A 10,722 -
Receivables at FVTOCI BAFEGFAEMEE
W 25 ) e s kTR 634,864 -
Loans and receivables ERRERFIE(PERe R
(including cash and cash equivalents) HEEEBY) - 7,199,969
AFS AHEERE - 14,694
7,738,510 7,217,375
Financial liabilities = N=Li
Amortised cost: BEEHPR AN 10,550,482 10,352,386
Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) EREAMREEBNREER

The Group's major financial instruments include equity and

receivables, borrowings, trade receivables, trade payables,

Corporate Bond and notes. Details of the financial instruments

are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with

these financial instruments include market risk (foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.

The management manages and monitors these exposures to

ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely

and effective manner.

AEEZT2oRTABERANE

WHIE - BE BREZERR BN
BHEF  CEEHFLRER - BT

EMFBEREMEFL -  BZESH
T AAEMRRERET SRR (SMNER
pRMERER)  EERREAIBDES
R\ o B BRE % 5 R B (R
mr-EEEEERERAEAR

FEfRIE IR M A M B b & M5 b ©
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 49. TR T A (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) £ERIEREEBNREE(E)
(continued)
Market risk s E
The Group's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks AREBRER T EmEGREINEER
of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates R K inEE B MBS R R
and lead prices.
There has been no change to the Group's exposure to market AEE AT SRR E SR MG
risks, nor the manner in which it manages and measures the ERRHFAREARNEEE) o
risk during the year.
(i) Foreign currency risk management () SMNEREEREE
The Group has certain foreign currency bank balances, AEBERETUET =T &
cash and bank borrowings denominated in HKD, USD TT R INE R TTEHERINE SR 1T 45
and EUR and CAD, which expose the Group to foreign % IRERBITEE  SAEE
currency risk. The Group currently does not have a T HNE BB o AN B B A &
foreign currency hedging policy. However, FIETONES PR - AT » BB
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and [BEERAONE IR - WaENE ER
will consider hedging significant foreign currency EREREAINER K
exposure should the need arise.
The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency R BA4E SRS - ANEE E AN
denominated monetary assets at the end of the FEMNEBEEREMEZYW
reporting period are as follows: T
018 2017
—T—t5F
B’000 RMB’000
G A ARETTT
Assets BE
HKD BT
Bank balances and cash RITHSBR LIRS 26,443 23,850
Amount due from related parties ek BEESE 75 FRIE - 569
UsD e
Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 9,320 34,757
Amount due from related parties JE Uk BE B 7 FR0E - 39,601
EUR BT
Bank balances and cash RITHSBR LIRS 1,948 10,637
Amount due from related parties JFE U RaBs 5 2R TE 19,209 22,712
Loan receivables FEME K 4,608 4,608
Liabilities =R
HKD BT
Bank borrowings RITHEE 67,474 160,824
CAD MERTT
Bank borrowings IRITEE 14,910 -

200  Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /  Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& A\
i

R 15 i % B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HILFE

49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(b)

(i)

Foreign currency risk management (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation in HKD,
USD, CAD and EUR against RMB.

The Directors’ assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rate is 5%, 5%, 5% and 5%
for RMB against HKD, USD, CAD and EUR respectively
(2017: 5%, 5% and 5% for RMB against HKD, USD and
EUR respectively), which is also the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel.

For a 5% (2017: 5%) weakening of RMB against HKD,
there will be a decrease in the post-tax profit for the
year of RMB1,539,000 (2017: Decrease RMB5,137,000 in
the post-tax profit) and there would be an equal but
opposite impact on the post-tax profit and the other
equity for the year for a 5% (2017: 5%) strengthen of
RMB against HKD.

For a 5% (2017: 5%) weakening of RMB against USD,
there will be an increase in the post-tax profit for the
year of RMB350,000 (2017: increase RMB1,303,000 in the
post-tax profit) and there would be an equal but
opposite impact on the post-tax profit and the other
equity for the year for a 5% (2017: 5%) strengthen of
RMB against USD.

49. TR T A (&)
TEEREER M RBE (&)

(b)

™ 35 B ()
) SMNEEBREE(E)

BURE DT
AEBETEMEHET - X5 M0
EATEBITAARE KB

LA
a0
ZoN

o

ARER BT ET MEKRTT
KBIT D Bl A 5% 5% 5% K 5%
—E—tF: ARBEBT -
ETLREITD BIAS5% © 5% K% 5%)
TEEHIINEERAIREEHIENE
BEEHNTE - TARFTEZEEE
A B REB 2 FRIMNE [ 00 SRR E
L= o

MAREEBTRER(ZF
—EF 1 5%)  FRRFR%ZFE
158 > A R #1,539000 (==
—tF  BEEFBRDOARKE
5,137,0007C) : W AR BT
Es5n (=T —tF :5%) R
BRE AR EMmERRE R
HEERANTE -

WMAREEETREN(ZE
—EF 1 5%) © FRBRTEFE
5 12 hn A R #350,0007C( = &
—tF  REEFEEMARK
1,303,0007T) : f AR HZETTH
Bin(ZF—+tF :5%)  FR
BB AR R EtiERA e R
HEERRNTE -
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) £ETH(E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) £ERIEREEBNREE(E)

(continued)

Market risk (continued) iz Ak ()

(i) Foreign currency risk management (continued) () SMNEREEREFE(4E)
Sensitivity analysis (continued) BRRE DT ()
For a 5% (2017: 5%) weakening of RMB against EUR, M ARELBRTREN(ZE
there will be an increase in the post-tax profit and other —+tF :5%) + FARTEFE
comprehensive income for the year of RMB966,000 and 1538 N A R#E 966,000 7T + HM 2
RMB960,000 respectively (2017: increase RMB1,089,000 M U 2= BI 38 40 A R # 960,000 7T
in the post-tax profit) and there would be an equal but —E—+F: BEREFEEM
opposite impact on the post-tax profit and the other AR #1,0890007C) : i AR
equity for the year for a 5% (2017: 5%) strengthen of HERTAEN(ZFT -+
RMB against EUR. 5%) + FRKREE %‘J/F'zﬁ& L A 1

mAlEHRASERRANZE

For a 5% weakening of RMB against CAD, there will be a i AR R IS R T R E5%
decrease in the post-tax profit for the year of FRBHREANEERDARE
RMB559,000 and there would be an equal but opposite 559,000 7T : AR S & XTH
impact on the post-tax profit for the year for a 5% B5% @ FARKRBEFBEA S
strengthen of RMB against CAD. REFERMAZE

(i) Interest rate risk management (i) FEE R E EE
The Group's fair value interest rate risk relates primarily ZSE @E’]’Aﬂzfﬁﬂfﬂ e 7
to its fixed-rate loan receivable, loan to associates, fixed- EESEREN  MBEAFE

rate bank borrowings, Corporate Bond and medium-
term note. The cash flow interest rate risk of the Group
relates primarily to the restricted bank deposits, bank
balances and cash and variable-rate bank borrowings.
The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
However, management will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial
assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity
risk management section of this note. The Group’s cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of borrowing rates announced by the
People’s Bank of China arising from the Group's RMB
denominated borrowings.
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(b)

(if)

Interest rate risk management (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for financial
instruments at the end of the reporting period. For
restricted bank deposits and bank balances and cash
and variable-rate bank borrowings, the analysis is
prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 10 basis points
increase or decrease in interest rate on restricted bank
deposits and bank balances and cash and a 27 basis
points increase or decrease in interest rate on variable-
rate bank borrowings are used which represent
management's assessment of the reasonably possible
changes in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points higher/lower
for restricted bank deposits and bank balances and cash
with all other variables were held constant, the Group's
post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2018
would increase/decrease by RMB3,101,000 (2017:
RMB1,915,000).

If interest rates had been 27 basis points higher/lower
for variable-rate bank borrowings with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year
ended December 31, 2018 would decrease/increase by
approximately RMB2,706,000 (2017: RMB2,901,000).

49. TR T A (&)
TEEREER M RBE (&)

(b)
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(i)  FIEEREE(E)
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

204

(c)

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2018, other than those financial assets
whose carrying amounts best represent the maximum
exposure to credit risk, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group
include:

(i) issuing banks fail to settle the bills transferred to
collecting banks or suppliers through discounting the
bills to collecting banks or endorsing the bills to
suppliers with full recourse as described in note 31; and

(i) the amount of contingent liability in relation to financial
guarantee issued by the Group as disclosed in note 53,
if any.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its
financial assets, except that the credit risks associated with
loan receivables is mitigated because most of them are
secured over equipment’s and/or inventories as well as
guaranteed by third parties as disclosed in note 26.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks. However, the credit
risk on bank balances (including restricted bank deposit) are
limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit
rating and good reputation.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on
trade receivables, with exposure spread over a large number
of counter parties and customers.

Group’s exposure to credit risk after adoption of IFRS 9

After the adoption of the IFRS 9, in addition to the credit risk
limit management and other mitigation measures as
described above, the Group monitors all financial assets,
except for trade receivables of which ECL is assessed based on
simplified approach, that are subject to impairment
requirements to assess whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If there has been
a significant increase in credit risk, the Group will measure the
loss allowance based on lifetime rather than 12m ECL.
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals, and develop/maintain the
Group's credit risk grading to categorise exposures according
to their degree of risk of default. In this regard, the Directors
consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit rating information is supplied by independent
rating agencies where available and, if not available, the Group
uses other publicly available financial information and the
Group's own trading records to rate its major customers and
other debtors. The Group's exposure and the credit ratings of
its counterparties are continuously monitored and the
aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst
approved counterparties.

The management of the Group estimates the amount of
lifetime ECL of trade receivables based on provision matrix
through grouping of various debtors that have similar loss
patterns, after considering internal credit ratings of trade
debtors, ageing, repayment history and/or past due status of
respective trade receivables. Estimated loss rates are based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life of the
debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information that
is reasonable and supportable available without undue costs
or effort. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-
looking information are considered. In addition, trade debtors
with significant financial difficulty are assessed for ECL
individually.
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 49.

206

(c)

(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers

(continued)

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises
the following categories:

SRTH(E)

(0 FERBRKBETME(E)

EFENEENERE S R (&)

AEBEZREEER

THIFER

o RS EE

Other financial assets/

Internal creditrating  Description Trade receivables other items
ABEETR H# LLEE) HitemEE HiER
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and Lifetime ECL — 12-month ECL
the contractual payments are not past due or within Not credit-impaired
a reasonable period since due dates
¥zl XHUNENERE - BAONFAIPRE PHREGESHE - REARMEEESA
BH B R EHRER BEERE
Fair risk There have been significant increases in credit risk Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
since initial recognition through information Not credit-impaired Not credit-impaired
developed internally or external resources
hEREBR BB RIMIERASERGHEE PHRREEEE -  2URBEEEE—
B M ERE AR E BEERE BEEHE
Substantial risk There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired ~ Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired credit-impaired
EDNENS BFREBTEECEERNE PHRREERE -  2HRBEEEE—
EEERE EEERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in Amount is written off Amount is written off
severe financial difficulty and the Group has
no realistic prospect of recovery
fiisH REBBNEBABARENR  mAKEE 1S B A 1S B A

EREeRmTR
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 49. ST H (&)
() Creditrisk and impairment assessment () EERENXBETG(E)
(continued)
Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers EEEAEENERE SRR (E)
(continued)
The following table provides information about the exposure TRIEERE2HBEHEESFEEA (R =
to credit risk for trade receivables which are assessed based on Z-—NF+ A=+ —HIBBEEEE
provision matrix as at 31 December 2018 within lifetime ECL: fE T ) R E U E 5 BR s B R R 4E
AR :
Average Gross Impairment
default carrying loss
Customer grouping Internal credit rating rate amounts allowance Net amount
EFNE RBEETR THENE BEREE RESERE FE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

Customer Group A Low risk 121% 1,266,957 15330 1,251,627
ZEAERIA {iNEL
Customer Group B Fair risk 11.57% 811,957 93,941 718016
X PHRIB hERBR
Customer Group C Substantial risk 71.16% 191,103 135,991 55,112
BFHRIC EDNENS
Total 2,270,017 245,262 2,024,755
st
In addition, as at 31 December 2018, debtors of trade s - RZE—-NF+ZA=+—H -
receivables with carrying amount of RMB40,520,000 are St BE T {E 8 A R ¥ 40,520,000 7 2 FE U

assessed for ECL individually and loss allowance of

= E ERIFEH LB E B &
RMB40,520,000 is charged against the balance. HABA R A AR EEAERE

B YEZEHRTIEBERRBEARE
40,520,000 7T
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(c) Creditrisk and impairment assessment
(continued)
Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers
(continued)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that
has been recognised for trade receivables under the simplified

INANCIAL STATEMENTS

49, W T A (1)
(0 EERRKBETMG(E)

EFEHNELENERE SRR (H)

BEERMAREEHERZEE -

approach.
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired)  (credit-impaired) Total
2HREH 2 HEH
FEER FEBR
(BREERE) (BEERE) @5t
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET R ARET R ARET R
Asat 1January 2018 — R=B-NF-A-B—
As restated RED 83,137 153,241 236378
Changes due to financial instruments  R—A—BHER&#MIE
recognised as at 1 January: FEEE :
— transfer to credit-impairment —EREEEERA (72:459) 72459 -
— impairment losses recognised — ERAREER - 1,761 1761
— impairment losses reversed — BRERERSE (10,678) (25,184) (35,862)
— write-off — 8 - (25,766) (25,766)
New financial assets originated HEBRENSREE 109,271 - 109,271
As at 31 December 2018 R=B-N\FE+=BA=1+—-H 109,271 176,511 285,782
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(c) Creditrisk and impairment assessment
(continued)
Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers
(continued)
Changes in the loss allowance for trade receivables are mainly
due to:

49. TR T A (&)
(0 FERBRKBETME(E)

EFENELENERE SR (&)

FEWE BB RBEESHERHR -

Trade debtor with a gross carrying amount #2BRTE{E A A ¥ 127,570,000 TCHY
B2EBARZE—NE
+ZA=+—HEBEN W ER

of RMB127,570,000 defaulted and

transferred to credit-impaired as at

31 December 2018 ZEEERE

Settlement in full of trade debtors with
a gross carrying amount of
RMB25,184,000

#BRTH B & A R 25,184,000 TTH)
B 5 EBANBHEERA

(72,459) 72,459

- (25,184)

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings. The Group has taken
legal action against the debtors to recover the amount due.

Other financial assets subject to ECL assessment

For other receivables and amounts due from related parties,
the Group has applied the general approach in IFRS 9 to
measure the loss allowance approximate to such at 12m ECL,
since the Directors did not expect any significant increase in
credit risk. The ECL on other receivables are assessed
individually based on the counterparties’ past due history,
current past due exposure and taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or effort.

EEMBTEBARRBEEY KN ME

BR[O AT ERS - BN E RS A BB
HEEABERF  AEESHMEE

W 5 8RR o AR BB RER AR
ERTEIBMEIRIR -

AMERMFESENEtERMEE
S Lt 8 M5 R TR e R K B B 05 SR IR T
5 AKECERBRY KRS ER
FoWH —REE - HEBRBERE
REAEHEEEBREFE  RE
REETAMEMEERRAEE N
BIEM - Bt YRR TEREEE
BNERXZHTNBHESL « Ry
BHER WERABAAIXE &
EH T BE KA LS S B AT IR
HEERHEMEBIFE
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

210

(c)

(d)

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Other financial assets subject to ECL assessment
(continued)

For loan receivables, except for the loan receivable with
carrying amount of RMB8,350,000 that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and was fully provided for ECL, most of the
other loan receivables are secured over equipment’s and/or
inventories as well as guaranteed by third parties, the Directors
considered the credit risk of the other loan receivables is
insignificant and no impairment was provided on these items
at the year end.

For structured bank deposits, restricted bank balances and
cash, since they deposited with reputable banks of good
credit quality, the Directors considered the credit risk of these
items is insignificant and no impairment was provided on
these items at the year end.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining a level of
cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings from time to time.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the end
of reporting period.
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 49. SRIT A ()
(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d) RBELEKE(E)
Weighted otal und
average ounted ota
interest 0 6 mo 6 a arrying
rate demand orle 0 ea e 0 amo
W@é 68 F BtIHIE 4
THFIR WERIE : 6-1218 A g & EAH YN
% B B0O RMB000 BOOO  RMB RMB RMBO0O
At31December 2018 RZE-N&
tZB=t-H
Non-derivative financial HiEeRaE
liabilities
Fiveckrate bank borrowings EERIREE 550 - 2109910 1041918 474258 251374 3877460 3,753,253
Variblerate bank borowings —~ FBSR{TEE 497 206000 326023 254914 398529 300470 1485936 1,401,192
Trade payables ERBSEN - 483,013 1,574,794 - - - 2,057,807 2,057,807
Bills payable ERRE - - 1,145,288 - - - 1145288 1,145,288
Other payables AERZE - 60614 529204 211,849 - - 801757 801,757
Amounts due to related parties  JERTEE R - 29,232 - - - - 29232 29,232
Short-term note ol e 746 - 301,388 - - - 301,388 299,930
Corporate bond %65 831 - - 19365 451,145 - 470510 415,69
Medium-term note LS 734 - - 3,149 695500 - 728649 646331
778859 5986697 1561195 2019432 551,844 10,898,027 10,550,482

At31 December 2017 RIB-tE
t-A=1-R
Non-derivative financial FiEEREE
liabilities

Fixed-rate bank borrowings TERIEE 453 - 214960 576037 724368 25467 3708832 3657867
Variableate bankborowings S BR{TES 485 - 254243 339,704 38727 657103 1689777 15439%
Trade payables ERBZEH - P08 1798455 63378 76,105 14531 2293315 2093315
Bills payable ERZE - S K7 - - -3 3T
Other payables HAtEMFE - 61589 356813 249997 - = 663399 668399
Amounts due to related parties  JEFTERE R - 13,748 - - - - 13,748 13,748
Corporate bond b2E5 831 - - 19,365 3341 451,145 503851 41439
Mediur-term note R 734 - - 3543 45500 695,500 776432 644298
Obligations underfinance leases  RAHEE(E 475 - 75000 - - - 75000 75,000
Financial quarantees SRER - - 8000 - - - 8000 -

306,183 5676842 1283913 1318041 2193746 10778725 1035238
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

212

(d)

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /

Liquidity risk (continued)

Variable-rate bank borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the “on demand” time band in the
above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2018, the
aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of these bank
borrowings amounted to RMB206,000,000 (2017: nil). Taking
into account the Group's financial position, the management
of the Group does not believe that it is probable that the
banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The management believes that such
bank borrowings will be repaid after the end of the reporting
period in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements and accordingly, the aggregate
principal and interest cash outflows of these bank borrowings
will amount to RMB231,744,000 (2017: nil), details of which are
set out in the table below:

Weighted
average
interest 0
fate demand
it
T
% RMB'000
At31 December 2018 R=F-NfF
TZB=t+-A
Non-derivative financial HrESREE
liabilities
Variable-ate bank borowings with & EEXEE K7
arepaymentondemand cause ¥ ST 497 =

4137

49, €W T A (&)

(d)

177,489

REBES RS (&)
BREZEREZBERIMNZBRITEER
FHBIE ORI A [EERKEE ]| 2
FEM RZZE—N\F+A=+—
B ZSRITEENREREASESD
585 AR #206,0000007T( — T —+4 ¢
) o LEERNEBZHBARN - A&
EEEERARITHITEEENEK
B ERNEeRE - EREHEES
MIRTTEESNREPREIRER R
HTEMTETERBHESZ At
ZERITEENEA S KA BHEER
BRI A AN R85 231,744000 0 ( = F
—+tF :T) FRERKNTRES

50,118 - 231,744 206,000

The amounts included above for variable interest rate non-
derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if changes
in interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2017, the amounts included above for
financial guarantee contracts were the maximum amounts the
Group could be required to settle under the arrangement for
the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. The financial guarantees were
released during the current year.
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair value of certain financial assets.

Some of the Group's financial instruments are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes. The management of
the Company has delegated a team, which is headed up by
the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, to determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-observable
data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group engages third party qualified valuers to
perform the valuation. The management of the Company
works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model.
The Chief Financial Officer reports findings to the board of
Directors every quarter to explain the cause of fluctuations in
the fair value.

49. TR T A (&)

(e)

SRIBENDFENE
W ERAEENAEES TE/mE
ENATEREER -

AEEBETeMIARATENE
MEB &R - ARBIERED
RIRAARBMBAERENEE
NEE T EAFENEE HERM R
BARE -

AEBER AT RGN TS A BRHEA
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 49. €RIT A (&)
(e) Fair value measurements of financial instruments (e) EMIAMNAFEE(E)
(continued)
Fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial BEKEMHEERAFLETENEE
EtREERESRAEBBENAFE

liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring

basis
Fair value as at
RATREZATE
Financial assets December 2018 31 December 2017 Fair value hierarchy  Valuation technique and key inputs
- /\§ “E2tf
SBAE ERl  foAST-8 APERR  HEREREZEANE
Financial assets at fair value Listed securities: Listed securities: ~ Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market
through profitor loss RMB6,427,000 RVB2321000  E— EETEHENTE
RAVESARENEREE s s
A% 6,427,000 70 AR 232100070
Financial assets at fair value through Unlisted managed NA  Level2 Quoted prices in the over-the-counter markets
profit orloss investment fund: TER 22 o TEREE
BATESABENEREE RMB60,000,000
FLmER
REEs:
A K% 60,000,000 7T
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 49. €RIT A (%)
(e) Fair value measurements of financial instruments (e) ZMIEMNATEE(E)
(continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial BEKEMHEERATFENENAEAE
EemEERSRMAGNATE (FE)

liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (continued)

Fair value as at
RATREZATE
31 December 2017
“E-tE
T-A=t-F

Financial assets December 2018 Fair value hierarchy - Valuation technique and key inputs

THEE A=+-H NYEER CIUBEEEIN

Unlisted entities: N/A  Level3
RMB10,722,000 TER £=4
¥LTER:
AR¥10,722,000 7

Equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

BAHEF AR 2 ERENEETA

These investments are not publicly traded in an
open market. Therefore, the fair value of these
investments were determined with reference to 1)
the issue prices for recentlyissued shares of each
investment and 2) discounted cash flow method,
taking into consideration any adjustment factors
between the date of recent issuance and 31
December 2018.
FERAVRERRTERS - Bl #ER
BMATERSZ ) RRERRE T RAE
ETER)ERAEREE  BEROHEL
ABEZ-T-\ETZA=1—-AHRERT
fRERZERE

Aslightly increase in the adjustment factors would
resultin a significant increase in the fair value
measurement of these investments, and vice versa.
AERZEM L ARCAERE A TEHE
RELH  R2TA -

Receivables at FVTOCI: NA  Level2
RMB634,864,000 AER 228

Receivables at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Discounted cash flow method was used to capture
the present value of the expected future economic

BAHEF AR 2 EREN YRR

Future contracts classified as derivatives
financial assets

NERITESRARNARAN

BAVEF AR
SARENERFE
AR 634,864,000 7T

N/A Derivative
TER financial assets:
RMB391,000
ESREE
ARE3910007C

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during 2018

and 2017.

Level 1

i

benefits to be derived from the ownership of these
receivables at FVTOCI,
DERRETEFNERAZERATEIA
A2 EhE BRI EE MR ARRE
BHEHE

Quoted bid prices in an active market

REMENEAGE

NP N\ER-F—LF F—R
BB 2B -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
2= \F+ZA=+—RHLFE

49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(e) Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements:

49, W T A (1)
(e) SRMITEMDFEE (H)

F=BAFEFEZHE:

Unlisted equity investments
classified as equity

instruments at FVTOCI

PERRATFETA

Hith 2w

BHEIAEZ

FETRAERE

RMB’ 000

ARETR

At 31 December 2017 RZB—t&F+-_HA=+—H N/A N &
From AFS equity instruments to mAEREESETAZEAFETA

equity instruments at FVTOCI (note 1) Hib2mKexmiEss T A (FE1) 14,694

At 1 January 2018 — As restated RZZE-—NF—HA—HB —KE7 14,694

Transfer to interest in joint venture (note 2) B ENA S A (FisE2) (4,400)

Exchange realignment PE 5 % 428

At 31 December 2018 RZE—NF+=ZA=+—H 10,722

Note 1: The amount represents the Group’s equity interests in certain unlisted entities
previously measured at cost less impairment was reclassified from available-
for-sale investments to equity instruments at FVTOCI at the date of initial
application of IFRS 9.

Note 2: Pursuant to the agreement entered into during the current year, the Group
obtained joint control over an entity that previously account for as equity
instruments at FVTOC, therefore the relevant amount was transferred to

interest in joint venture.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
2= \F+ZA=+—RHLFE

49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 49. ST H (&)
(e) Fair value measurements of financial instruments (e) EWMIEMAFEE(E)
(continued)
Fair value of the Group's financial instruments that are WHBRBLCEMEERZAFLETEN
not measured at fair value on a recurring basis (but fair AEBELBMTIENAFE(EEAREAD
value disclosure are required) EE)
Except as detailed in the following table, the Directors BRTIRTEFLEN EERE 586
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and BB ERPERRNECREENS /R
financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial BENREEEEAFERS
statements approximate their fair values:
f December 2018 At 31 December 2017
z RN+ FE - A=1+—H
g Carrying
amo air value amount Fair value
iR {5 E REE AE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB"000 RMB"000
S i ARETIT ARETT
Financial liabilities TRIBE
Corporate bond and PEELHR
interest payable FETFI S 429,667 454,427 428,367 440,782
Medium-term note and FREISEE &
interest payable FERE R & 695,332 694,897 654,367 656,633
Short-term financing notes 55 High & Z# &
and interest payable JEASFE 315,018 319,346 - -
50. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 50. EEEK
At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group's assets were RBERERE - KEBERBSE TEEES
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. The RITR T AKERITRENER - REWE
aggregate carrying amount of the assets of the Group pledged at B R AEBBEEHREERNARKREAEND
the end of each of the reporting periods is as follows: T
D18 2017
4 —T—tF
B’000 RMB’000
R ARBTFT
Buildings EF 765,414 600,056
Land use rights o s A 336,094 212,408
Plant and machinery R 5 % 1 23 = 255,283
Construction in progress EETRE 60,288 -
Other receivables H UL GRIB 45,802 =
Bills receivable R R & = 1,005,960
Receivables at FVTOCI BEAFEG AR MEERE
B FE I TR IE 288,365 -
Restricted bank deposits 2R B ERITIF 5K 1,159,844 1,052,383
Note: At the end of the reporting period, the Group had pledged part of equity interests in Hiat « RIRE K - NEEF B BT B IR S5 (7 AR
Chaowei Power and the entire equity interests in Henan Chaowei Power Co,, Ltd. in LA IR AR 2 Al = S5 HE + A ERRER7T
order to obtain bank borrowings. EE -
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= /—\ Z & =
iR O R 15 ¥R =B 5F
Forthe year ended 31 December 2018
E_T-N\FT_A=T—HILEFE

:I:—?

51. OPERATING LEASES KedHg
The Group as lessee KEBEAEBA
018 2017
—tF
B’000 RMB"000
R s ARETT
Minimum lease payments paid for the year RENRBMFELEHE
under operating leases for premises B RIEEE K 24,863 12,986
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for R HIAE RIS - NREBRE T gL
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating HENT LE;@F'T:'/%E']*XEMTEEH O

leases which fall due as follows:

PR

018 2017

A —E—tF

000 RMB'000

R ARETT

Within one year —&FR 4,416 3,783
In the second to fifth year, inclusive E_ZERF(REEREME) 8,892 6,477
After five years hF% 352 -
13,660 10,260

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for certain of its properties. Leases are negotiated for terms of 1 to 6
years.

REMENFTHEAREREE TYERMND
e BOB—FE2 FBER -

The Group as lessor KEBEAHBEA
Property rental income earned for the year ended 31 December BHE-_Z - \FTZA=1+—HILFE W
2018 was approximately RMB35,722,000 (2017: RMB18,654,000). The FHSWALN R ARK35722000m(=F
properties held has committed tenants up to 2019 and 2022, —tF /\Eeﬁg186540007n) %ﬁﬁ’]%%
respectively. BEEEPEME  SREE_ZE-AFEZ
e S |
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with R E AR - AN B BB gt TRk
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: SEBERKETLHHOT -
018 2017
—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
=L ARETFT
Within one year —F R 10,384 3,629
In the second to fifth year, inclusive FEFLT (BEERWMTE) 11,739 5,256
22,123 8,885
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z-N\F+ZA=1+—HLFE

52. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 52. EXEE
018 2017
i Sl S
RMB'00( RMB'000
R # ARETTT
Contracted but not provided for: BRI #E R B
— acquisition of property, plant and — WEmE - BB
equipment B 62,516 142,204
— acquisition of intangible assets —EEFEE 8,212 7,803
— capital contribution to associates — [EERAREE 42,625 39,028
— capital contribution to a joint venture —RA—REEEFEFE - 12,800
53. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 53. HAEE
As at 31 December 2017, the Group provided guarantees to bank RZZBE—tF+_A=+—H x&EE LS
loans of third parties amounting to RMB8,000,000. In the opinion of ¥ /A AR 8,000000TTHIE = 77 RITE IR
the Directors, the fair value of the financial guarantee provided by HIER - EFERRABAEBRENSHE
the Group is not significant as the financial position of the RZATFELETER - AR ZEF B
counterparty is sound. SRR o
The financial guarantees were released during the current year (2017: ZEBERRAFEBRR(ZZE—tF: A
RMB8,000,000). R 8,000,0007T) °
54. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY AND ASSETS 54, ERBWBEHNBELATAWRBHELAAR

THROUGH ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
Acquisition in 2018

In January 2018, the Group acquired 55% equity interests in
Changxing Yongchao Environmental Protection Technology Co., Ltd
("Yongchao”) for a consideration of RMB12,220,000. Yongchao is
principally engaged in the lead-acid batteries recycling and lead
production and was acquired so as to continue the expansion of the
Group's principal business. This acquisition of business has been
accounted for using the purchase method.

Fair value of assets and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition
are as follows:

BE

REZZE-N\FEHWKRE

RZF—N\F— A AEBEWREREXBIR
REHEBR AR ([5KEB]) 55% % - R{EA
AR #122200007C c SKHBEEWR EIHEEE
eI KSR EE - WE IR A B EERE A
EBENEBER - BREBIEETHERE WE
JENER ©

REBERHRRANEERBEN A TFEND
T

Property, plant and equipment L E S 350
Trade and other receivables FEUSE 5 BR 51 K H A IR R TR 7,918
Inventories FE 9,220
Cash and cash equivalents HekBEeEEY 12,373
Trade and other payables FERTEE 5 BR 51 B H At JE < 5RIE (7,643)
22,218
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54. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY AND ASSETS 54, BBEWENRBARAWEKHRE QAR
THROUGH ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES EE (&)
(continued)
Acquisition in 2018 (continued) REZ-N\FHWE (&)
The fair value of trade and other receivables at the date of acquisition UG EE B HY - fEURE 5 BR 7 N H fh fE Uk SR8
amounted to RMB7,918,000. The gross contractual amounts of those HAFEASAR79180007T o 4 Uk K &
trade and other receivables acquired amounted to RMB7,918,000 at IWE 5 BE 7k Kk H A fE R i IB AUk EE B Bl 42
the date of acquisition. The best estimate at acquisition date of the EH&TEAE AR 79180007 ° KRULEE B HA
contractual cash flows not expected to be collected amounted to nil. NEEE R G AR e RENREHERS -
Goodwill arising on acquisition: WHEFTE AP 8 -

D00

Consideration transferred PR (8 12,220
Plus: non-controlling interest hn o SEERR R 9,998
Less: net assets acquired B T & EFE (22,218)
Goodwill arising on acquisition, provisional Wi prEE A e B (FRE) -
The acquisition-related costs are not material and have been WHEABRAR AN ER - BERIBmPIER ©

recognised in profit or loss.

Net cash inflows arising on acquisition WEBFELENRESRATE

D00
Consideration paid BARE (12,220)
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired B TR e RIS S E WSS 12,373

153
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54. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY AND ASSETS
THROUGH ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

54. BBWREKHEBARWKBHE2RR
&E (&)

(continued)
Acquisition of assets through acquisition of subsidiaries R-ZBE—+tFEBKNEHRBATIWEE
in 2017 =3

(i)

On 1 July 2017, Chaowei Power entered into an equity
exchange cooperative agreement (the “Agreement”) with
Song Xuecheng, an independent third party of the Group and
Song Wei (a person acting in concert with Song Xuecheng),
pursuant to which the Group agreed to dispose 39% equity
interest in Jiangsu Chaowei Power Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu
Chaowei”), and together with a cash consideration of
RMB30,000,000, to acquire 61% equity interests in Yangzhou
Huaxiang Nonferrous Metals Co., Ltd. (“Yangzhou Huaxiang”), a
company engaged in lead-acid battery recycling and lead
production. In late July 2017, pursuant to the agreement
between Chaowei Power and Zhang Yongxuan, a non-
controlling shareholder of one of the Company’s subsidiary,
Chaowei Power agreed to sell 10% equity interests in
Yangzhou Huaxiang to Zhang Yongxuan at a consideration of
RMB21,452,000. Upon completion of the two transactions,
Chaowei Power holds 51% equity interests in Jiangsu Chaowei.
Pursuant to the Agreement, (i) the boards of directors of
Jiangsu Chaowei and Yangzhou Huaxiang comprise 5
directors respectively, 3 of which are appointed by Chaowei
Power, 2 of which are appointed by Song Xuecheng; and (ii)
decisions should be voted by majority in the board meetings
of Jiangsu Chaowei and Yangzhou Huaxiang. As Chaowei
Power holds majority in the board of directors of these two
companies and was able to exercise control over Jiangsu
Chaowei and Yangzhou Huaxiang, Jiangsu Chaowei remained
as a subsidiary and Yangzhou Huaxiang became a subsidiary
of the Company.

(i)

R=ZT—+F+tHA—H BEERHE
REK (—BAEBENBILE=F) R
RN (REBRRK—BITEA L) R
rRmeEERE(BZE]D B &
SERZLEIHBHERERA A
([SIERFBEL ) R939% A% #E - I3 [E 2R
B AR 30,000,0007T @ WEEH M
mEPNECEBERAR([HMED])
(—REWEABEE M R EENR A R])
Mel%lkE - —E—tF AR R
BB R E IR koK E (AR Al — KB
RNAE|FEIEARARER ) FT L A Wik - BB
TR R & 5 M 2E 5 10% AR T 5 K
& KRB A AR 214520007 ° R
RPEKE  BERERER LB
51% B HE o IRIBWEE © () LERHBE R
BINEDNEESTHFIMAS AAK - &
FIANBHBEHEREZE 2 ABRKREK
ZE: RG)IE&BEREMNERIED
FRERNEESSRERZHES
AEE - ARNBEREREZMEK A A
MESSHZE  AltA BTSSR
BEEEGMNES - T&HRBEDEAR
RIMHI B A A - HMNEHEIK AARR
RIMMEB AR
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54. BBWREKEBARWBEHE2RR
BE (&)

54. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY AND ASSETS
THROUGH ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

222

(continued)
Acquisition of assets through acquisition of subsidiaries
in 2017 (continued)

(i)

On 31 August 2017, the Group acquired a 51% equity interest
in Guangxi Xinfeng New Energy Technology Co., Ltd.
("Guangxi Xinfeng”) from an independent third party of the
Group at a cash consideration of RMB51,000,000.

Prior to the acquisition by Chaowei Power, Yangzhou
Huaxiang was engaged in leasing of its plant and facilities to
third parties for earning of rental income. After the acquisition,
Yangzhou Huaxiang changed its principal activities to lead-
acid battery recycling and lead production. Guangxi Xinfeng
was under set up stage and would be engaged in

REZ-—tFEBRENBARWEE
E (&)

(i)

R-E—+FENA=+—8 K&EH
H—AAEEMNBYE = WEER
ERFRERR AR AR ([ EASEE])
B51%iR #: & RKEAREKE
51,000,000 7T, °

BMEDRBERERKBRIEERE
=7 M E R B iR A BREVE £ 4
A WER  BMNEANETEXRHE
AEYHBRE LR EER - E&EE
MERIZIY  BRERERHEED
NEL - AEERERE  BBHAE

manufacturing and sales of motive batteries. They were BEEERI DEMLE A NER
acquired by the Group so as to continue the expansion of the HEREREEND  #FUNEASE

Group's motive batteries operations, to obtain a stable supply
of quality lead thus improving the quality of the Group's
motive batteries and satisfying the need for the Group's
business development.

The acquisitions had been accounted for as acquisition of assets and
liabilities as each of the acquired subsidiary did not constitute a
business. The effect of the acquisition was summarised as follows:
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54. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY AND ASSETS 54, BBWENEBEARWEBHE AT R
THROUGH ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES EE(8\)
(continued)
Acquisition of assets through acquisition of subsidiaries R-ZBE—+tFEBKNEHRBATIWEE
in 2017 (continued) E (&)
Yangzhou Guangxi
Huaxiang Xinfeng Total
BMNER EREE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT AREFT ARETT
Assets acquired and liabilities R BKENEER
recognised at the date of acquisition: ~ FEFANERE :
Property, plant and equipment ME  BENRE 193,164 70,748 263912
Prepaid lease payments BIEEZE 26,131 37328 63459
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, HUBEE  BER
plant and equipment RS - 12477 12477
Intangible assets EVAE 184,199 = 184,199
Prepayments and other receivables P E e e 89,635 5,124 94,759
Bank balances and cash RIOEBRREE 2497 2,529 5026
Other payables and accruals Hib AR ENER (140,099) (28,206) (168,305)
Bank borrowings RITEE (141,000) - (141,000)
Net assets acquired K EEEFE 214,527 100,000 314,527
Less: non-controlling interests W R RE RS (105,118) (49,000) (154,118)
Total consideration #BRE 109409 51,000 160409
Total consideration satisfied by: BREUTYIZEELM
Fair value of 39% equity interest in a — KM B A 39% R iE
subsidiary P 100861 - 100861
Cash bk 8,548 51,000 59,548
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEE4 R &L :
Cash consideration paid BEEERE 8,548 51,000 59,548
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired W ERE MR EEEY (2497) (2,529) (5,026)
6,051 48471 54,522
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55. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 55. ARG
(a) During the year, the Group has significant transactions with () AKBERAFEHETI@EB R EEKR
following related parties: R :
Name Relationship
=g 2R
Zhejiang Doulan Intelligent Equipment Co.,, Ltd.* Controlled by Zhou Mingming
AIRES B R A A JE)BA BA P2 )
Xiamen Mate High-Tech New Power Co., Ltd.* Controlled by Zhou Mingming
EF SRR EETER AR A A JZ)BA BB Fr 42 )
Guangxi Xinfeng Environmental Protection Controlled by Zhou Mingming
Technology Co., Ltd.*
ErSERRE AR AR JE) R B AT 6l
Zhejiang Pulangte Joint venture
AL BA R B
Changshu Huaxing Chuangyi New Energy Joint venture
Technology Co., Ltd.*
BAEME —HLREHR AR A B
Moll Associate
Moll kNG
Zhejiang Yuanli Power Technology Co, Ltd.* Associate
ALIR I EEREHR B R A A A= NE
Hangzhou Xinglianxing Network Associate
Technology Co., Ltd.*
N2 &EEYEARE AR AR =N
Zhejiang Shidarui Electric Bike Co., Ltd.* Associate
AT ERBEEFRA A /NG|
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55. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 55. BBA RS (&)
(@) During the year, the Group has significant transactions with (a) AEENAFEETIEE T EEXR

following related parties: (continued)

X5 (&)

Name Relationship
=1 ZEES

Henan Yifeng Electric Bikes Manufacturing Co., Ltd.*
AT E Y EREERA

Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary

NGB 228 G

GE Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
GE e iIE NGB 220 S

Zhang Yongxuan

Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary

SRIKEF —HKWEB R R IEIE AR
Kai Mingmin Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
FER B8 —KWE R R IEIE AR
Chen Liwei Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
BRAIE —KWB R R IHERAR

Suzhou Honggi Yeyi Electric Technology Co., Ltd. *
M BEFRHARAR]

Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary

— M R B RO SF AR

Fu Fayou Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary

BIER —HKWEB R R IEIE AR

Zhou Fang Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary

A% —HKWE R R IEIE AR

Zhan Yong Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary

BB —KWE R R IEIE AR

* The English names of these companies are for reference only and have * RER AR EBEHRSE BRLE -

not been registered.
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55. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 55. @A 5 (&)
(b) During the year, the Group has entered into the following (b) REBERAFEHEBMOETUNTNE
significant transactions with its related parties: KRG :
Trade sales and purchase ESHERKE
Trade sales Trade purchase
EZHE ESEE
018 2017 018 2017
= = :EE—‘{:$ i g —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
B AREET T K% ARETTT
Entities controlled by the EEEHNERS
Directors - - 30,986 17,812
Associate A /NE] 5,400 12,738 - =
Joint ventures aRbE 10,982 15 35,940 =
Others EHih 273 11,836 34 713
16,655 24,589 66,960 18,525
Amounts due from related parties FE Uk BE B 75 TR IE
D18 31/12/2017
z T —t+tF+=-A=+—H
ade 0 ade Trade Non-trade
25 %5 85  ¥FES
8’000 RMB’000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
B R ARBTT ARETT
Entities controlled by the PiN/N =S 2l
directors of the Company HE e 4,178 19,000 3,887 -
Associate /NG| 14,310 129,984 = 13,300
Joint ventures EEbE 524 - 2,459 107,641
Others Hih 12,893 12,308 11,551 59,163
31,905 161,292 17,897 180,104
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55. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 55. BEtAR 5 (&)
(b) During the year, the Group has entered into the following (b) AEFARNFEEEBE HETIATE
significant transactions with its related parties: (continued) K5 (&)
Amounts due to related parties FE {3 BABE 5 TR 18
018 31/12/2017
g /\F+=A=+- 0 R ERRE
ade 0 ade Trade Non-trade
T %5 &5 FE S
B’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’' 000
R R ARETT AREBTT
Entities controlled by the o Rl
Directors HERE 6,363 4,740 9,422 -
Associate AN - - 6 =
Joint ventures AR 3,853 = = =
Others Hih 14,276 - 235 4,085
24,492 4,740 9,663 4,085
The non-trade balances due from/to related parties are FENLFENTRARE 5 H93E B 5 i R R &
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. B R B RARBREE
Loan to associates B HE A B &K
D18 2017
—E—tF
B'000 RMB'000
B ARBT T
Loan to associates: MEEE N REK
— Non-current portion (note i) — JEBNHAEE & (FT5Ei) 173,085 49,095
— Current portion (note ii) — BNEREL o (B aEiD) 19,209 13,787
Notes: Hiat -
(i) The amounts represent the loan to Fei Fang Technology Co., Ltd., an 10) SRR AN E L LN T FELREERA
associate of the Group, which is unsecured, carrying a fixed interest rate of AlfEH B - BEEH - 1R EE FE =
6.0% (2017: 4.9%) per annum with the maturity of 36 months. 6.0% (=F—+H4F : 49%) 1.8 + W36 1]
F £ 5|5
(ii) The amounts represent the loan to Moll, an associate of the Group, which is (i) & 15 [A] 7N 5 BB & L B Moll & B9 B
unsecured, carrying a fixed interest rate of 5.0% (2017: 5.0%) per annum with o REER REEFFE0N(ZF
the maturity of 12 months. —+4F : 5.0%)ETE - R 1218 A EFIE o

BEBHZERERAR / 20184® 227




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RO M R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2018
2= \F+ZA=+—RHLFE

55. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(c) Compensation of key management personnel

55.

BBAXS (&)
(0 FEEBAESHNME

018 2017

—E—tF

D0C RMB"000

R ARETFT

Short term employee benefits REEERA 11,237 7,166
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3R /RTR A5 21 3% 29 27
Share-based payments PARR 7 A E TR 83K 1,438 =
12,704 7,193

The remuneration of key management personnel is
determined with reference of the performance to individuals
and market trends.

56. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
The Company's share option scheme (“the Scheme”) was adopted
for the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and
eligible employees. Under the Scheme, the board of directors of the
Company may grant options to eligible employees, including
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares
in the Company.

The table below discloses movement of the Company’s share
options held by the Group’s employees (including directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries):

56.

TEEBABNMENERL2ER/AE
BEMEBEETE -

URBAERNNARRS

AR RO RHERHBI ([ 5181 ) R - =
BEHNANESRAERIESIRLED - 7
B e AARESRTALERES (S
EANTREWBATEE) S HERE -
SASRRE A A TS -

TREEAREES (REARARKHE
AANEE) HENARRREHLD)

Number of

share options

BREHE

Outstanding as at 1 January 2018 RZZFE—NF—H—BRHRITE =
Granted during the year AREERH 68,250,000
Outstanding as at 31 December 2018 RZZE—-—NF+ZHA=1+—HHERTHE 68,250,000
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56. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
The share options granted shall vest in accordance with the
timetable below, each with an exercise period commencing from
the relevant vesting date and ending 8 years after the date of grant
(4 April 2018 and 21 December 2018):

(1) 32,500,000 share options granted on 4 April 2018:
(@)  10% of the total number of the share options granted
shall vest on 4 April 2018

(b)  20% of the total number of the share options granted
shall vest on 4 April 2019

(©  70% of the total number of the share options granted
shall vest on 4 April 2020

(2) 35,750,000 share options granted on 21 December 2018:
(@) 10% of the total number of the share options granted
shall vest on 21 December 2018

(b)  20% of the total number of the share options granted
shall vest on 21 December 2019

(©  70% of the total number of the share options granted
shall vest on 21 December 2020

Exercise of the share options is conditional upon the achievement of
certain performance targets as set out in the respective offer letters,
during the validity period of the share options.

56. ARG BERNIRXS (&)

PR L BERESRETIREREES - &8
MITEHAEAEREERMESREAM(Z
E-N\FOANBR-_Z-NF+_A
—t+—R)&8FIL:

M R-DE— N\NFEHANBREREH
32,500,000 15 & A% A

@ FTERLEBRREAEAN10%EN =
T N\FNAMNERE

(b)  FTHX B AR R 4B B 20% S 1 —
T-NFOAMNBRS

(© FTIRLEBIREREA 70% N =
T _ZEPANARE

Q RZE-NFFTZAZ+—BHEEH
35,750,000 {7 B A% 2 :

@ ATERLEBRREAEAN10%EN =
T \F+t-A-+—E5E

(b) BT TR 3 2000 10—
T-NFT=A=t—RHE

© FIREERELEN70%ER =
T_EF+_A-+—HEB

PR TT R AR B IR A N Z R
AR RIFE TRIRBIFER - HAE

=

i

o

\r
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56.

57.

230

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 56. URHBBERNNRRZ (&)
(continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2018, options were granted on (E_E - \F+_A=+—HILFER "
4 April and 21 December. The estimated fair values of the options BIREROANEE+-_A=-+—HB&EH -
granted on those dates are RMB41,230,000 and RMB32,669,000, FIREBERENRZERLE BN MGTA
respectively. These fair values were calculated using the Binomial F1E 5 5l & AR 41,2300007T & A R
model. The inputs into the model were as follows: 32,669,0007C ° 2 EAFETER —EAE
At E - ZEANBABBEOT :
4 April 21 December
2018 2018
—B-N\F —E-N\F
mMAME +=A=t+-—H
Grant date share price B EIRR(E HK$4.183 HK$3.05
4183 87T 3.0587T
Exercise price 1TEE HK$4.332 HKS3.114
433287T 31147 7T
Expected life TEHAS A 8 years 8 years
84 85
Expected volatility 78 R i 47 5% 45.8%
Dividend yield i B s = 1.8% 1.7%
Risk-free interest rate 42 [ Bz 7| 2 1.84% 2.0%
The Group recognised the total expense of RMB21,247,000 for the AEBRARARREBREEZRNFEER
current year in relation to share options granted by the Company. B sz 4858 A R #E 21,247,000 7T ©
At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates MNEBHEEAR » REBEFTEFBEHRZKRE T
of the number of options that are expected to vest ultimately. The SRR ISR B M (hET o (BET(HEt e 2
impact of the revision of the estimates, if any, is recognised in profit (a0 ) Rz NTERR - W AEFE T R A AR HEE 1+
and loss, with a corresponding adjustment to the share option & o
reserve.
RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME CONTRIBUTIONS  57. E{KiEFI5t &2k

The employees of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are members of
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC
government. The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their employees’ payroll to the
retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to
make the required contributions under the scheme which are
calculated based on specified percentage of the employee’s basic
salaries during the year.

In accordance with the relevant mandatory provident fund laws and
regulations of Hong Kong, the Group operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying Hong Kong employees.
The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group
and under the control of an independent MPF service provider. Under
the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the
rules. The only obligation of the Group in respect of the MPF Scheme is
to make the required contributions under the scheme.
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N

58.

INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF

58. BEAQATAMBRRARRBEEEE

FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS HE R
OF THE COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the PRI AR - BREAA TSN ERD
Company at the end of the reporting period includes: BRI
0 2017
= —T—+F
000 RMB'000
ES ARETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FIRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - = &R 187 =
Investment in subsidiaries R B RRIMIEE 302,492 302,492
Amounts due from subsidiaries I EPNGIE S 549,462 379,058
852,141 681,550
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TEAS FIA M E b e IR IR 14,213 7,038
Financial assets at FVTPL BEAFEFABZNEMEE 1,961 2,321
Loan receivable EUIRE TR 4,608 4,608
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG B 29,518 38,846
Bank balances and cash RITEHR MRS 26,433 30,124
76,733 82,937
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENEE
Other payables H b E TR 567 2,703
Short term loans MHIEX 67,475 160,825
68,042 163,528
NET CURRENT ASSETS (LIABILITIES) RENEE(BE)FE 8,691 (80,591)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EERAB AR 860,832 600,959
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#EE
Share capital A% 7R 74,961 74,961
Reserves s 746,608 513,756
TOTAL EQUITY MR 821,569 588,717
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FnBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries e BB A R 508 39,263 12,242
860,832 600,959
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58. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF 58. EREA LA BERARRFEEES
FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS &R (&)

OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Share Retained

Share capital premium earnings Total

R R EE REBF @it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB"000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT

At 31 December 2016 RZZE—R"F+-A=1+—H 74961 417301 46,824 539,086
Profit and total comprehensive income  FRFE R 2 EIKEEE

for the year - - 124,969 124,969

Dividend paid to owners of the Company B I AZRBIHA AR - - (75,338) (75,338)

At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=-A=+—H 74,961 417,301 96,455 588,717
Profit and total comprehensive income  FRFER 2 ERFEE

for the year - - 301,543 301,543

Dividend paid to owners of the Company B A2 BB AR S, - - (68691) (68,691)

At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\F+_A=+—-H 74,961 417,301 329307 821,569
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59. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Group’s principal subsidiaries at the end of the

59. FEMBE QT
AEAHEENBRAIRBEBHERIBHE
BEFIT -

reporting period are as follows.

Issued and fully Equity interest
Place of paid-up attributable to
incorporation/ share capital/ the Company as at
Name of company establishment registered capital 31 December Principal activity
ML/ BERTRAR AAARTZA=t-H
INCER Kb RA/EMEx LA FTEEE
018 2017
“EtF
0 0 %
Directly held
EERE
Chaowei Power Group Limited BVI UsD100 100 100 Investment holding
BEBHNEEERAR EREARES 10057 RERR
Leadnew Limited BVI UsD100 100 100 Investment holding
BNERAH RBRBRES 100%7 REEK
Indirectly held
BEsE
Chaowei Power (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HKD10,000 100 100 Investment holding
BN (BE)ERATR &k 10000 7T RAHR
Moll Grundstiicks - und Vermagensverwaltungs ~ Germany EUR2,002,500 749 749 Property investment
GmbH & Co. KG MOLL G+ = 2002500 BT NERE
Chaowei Power (Note i) PRC RMB1,063,300,000 100 100 Manufacture of motive batteries
R ER (M) i AR#1,063,80000070 HEPNEN
Henan Chaowei Power Co, Ltd. PRC RMB10,000,000 60 60  Manufacture of motive batteries
(‘Henan Chaowei") (Note i)
AERHERARAR (D)) (M) HE& AR 100000007 BEBHNE
Shandong Chaowei Power Co, Ltd. (Note i) PRC RMB100,000,000 100 100 Manufacture of motive batteries
WRBHERERAF (M) e AR 1000000007 BEHNEN
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59. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 59. T EMB AT (&)

Issued and fully Equity interest
Place of paid-up attributable to
incorporation/ share capital/ the Company as at
Name of company establishment registered capital 31 December Principal activity
ERAL/ BETRAR ARXART=A=t-H
NAEH ek B&/ERER EiERAER TEXH
018 217
ZE—tF
0 0 %
Jiangsu Chaowei (Note i) PRC RMB100,000,000 61 61 Manufacture of motive batteries
&gl (ML) hE ARE 10000000078 HEPNEN
Anhui Chaowei Power Co, Ltd. PRC RMB10,000,000 75 75 Manufacture of motive batteries
("Anhui Chaowei") (Note i)
TRERERARAR (2R (HE) PE ARE 100000007 HEGNEN
Zhejiang Chaowei Power Energy Co, Ltd. (Notei)  PRC RMB150,000,000 100 100 Sales of motive batteries
FIRRSALEER A (Fa) FE AR 150000000 7T and materels
o " HEB N BRI
Jiangxi Xinwei Power Technology Co, Ltd. PRC RMB100,000,000 100 100 Manufacture of motive batteries
(Note i)
IRMHE N RRRERAR e AR 1000000007 HEGNEN
(Bt
Anhui Yongheng Power Technolagy Co, Ltd. PRC RMB65,500,000 95 95 Manufacture of motive batteries
("Anhui Yongheng') (Note i)
ZRKEDNMBARAA([ZHKE])  HE AR 65500000 C REGNTH
(Fit3ED)
Zhejiang Changxing Jintaiyang Power Co, Ltd. ~ PRC RMB10,000,000 51 51 Manufacture of motive batteries
("Zhejiang Changxing Jintaiyang’) (Note )
MIRESAGERERAA el AR 100000007 REGNEN
(DRIRES AR D) (M)
Zhejiang Chaowei Chuangyuan PRC RMB83,333333 81.5 805  Manufacture of motive batteries
Industrial Co, Ltd. (Note ) E ARE8333333 7 HEGNEN
MIBRAITERERAR (M)
Jiangsu Yongda Power Co, Ltd. PRC RMB80,000,000 60 60 Manufacture of motive batteries
("Jiangsu Yongda') (Note i)
TEAEERRINBRAR G ARE 800000007 REYNEN
(DT&RkiE ) ()
Qinyang Libiao Plate Co, Ltd. (‘Qinyang Libiao”) ~ PRC RMB63,240,769 85 85 Manufacture of electrode
(Note i) plate dividing paper
WHEERRARAR (DMGED (W) HE AR 63240769 7T HEFHRBERA
Zhejiang Yueda Plastic Co, Ltd. (Note i) PRC RMB40,850,000 51 51 Manufacture of plastic battery cases
MTREERBNBRAR (H) P AR 4085000070 HETHER
Hebei Chaowei Power Co, Ltd. (Note i) PRC RMB120,000,000 100 100 Manufacture of motive batteries
At BRERARAR (ML) P AR 1200000007 REHNEN
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59. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

59. TEME QT (&)

Issued and fully Equity interest
Place of paid-up attributable to
incorporation/ share capital/ the Company as at
Name of company establishment registered capital 31 December Principal activity
ERRL/ BRTRAR ARXART=A=t-H
NAEH R b5 BA/GRER e TEEH
018 2017
—FtF
; %
Zhejiang Xinwei Power Trading Co, Ltd. (Notei) ~ PRC RMB10,000,000 100 100 Sales of motive batteries
T ERRE AERAR (Hz) i ARE 1000000070 and materials
HEBNTHRIH
Henan Chaowei Zhengxiao PRC RMB60,000,000 90 90  Manufacture of motive batteries
Power Co, Ltd. (Note ) f AR 6000000070 REPNEN
R ERER A A ()
Shandong Chaowei Ciyao Power PRC RMB10,000,000 100 100 Manufacture of motive batteries
Co, Ltd. (Note ) G AR 1000000070 REPNEN
WRBAHZERARAA ()
Zhejiang Heniu Power Co, Ltd. (Note i) PRC RMB10,000,000 100 100 Sales of motive batteries
LB RARAR (M) G ARE 1000000070 and materials
REBNEMRME
Henan Chaowei Zhengxiao PRC RMB10,000,000 100 100 Sales of motive batteries
Power Sale Co, Ltd. (Note ) i AR 100000007 and materials
MEEEHENERHAEARAR (W) HEBNTHRIH
Chaowei Tici (Beijing) Energy PRC RMB100,000,000 51 51 Research and development
Technology Co, Ltd. (Notes i) i AR 10000000070 e
BEFR () RREARAR (W)
Zhejiang Chaowei Power Co, Ltd. (Notes i) PRC RMB50,000,000 100 100 Research and development of
MIREENERAR (i) i AR 5000000070 solar energy generating system
HERGREE RS
Zhejiang Lvming Energy Co, Ltd. (Notes ) PRC USD35,000,000 85.71 8571 Research and development
LSRR AR AR (i) i 35000000 7T of durathon batteries
HERAEN
Notes: M <
0] These companies are PRC limited liability companies. The English names of these (i) ZERABPEERAR]  RAXEFEMRS

companies are for reference only and have not been registered.

Z WREE -
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59.

236

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the Company'’s directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Except for Chaowei Power has issued short-term financing note,
medium-term note and Corporate Bond as disclosed in note 42 and
43 respectively, no other subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
at the end of both years.

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of
the Company that have material non-controlling interests:

59. TEMBE QT (&)

PRRBINEARBDEERREAEEES
HEEETEXENASENBAR - RIE
EEER 2V EMHMBARNFEHER
BB TR °

RERERETEARERE THRER
EEEH (T2 RBHABEE) LA -
B EL A PR B 2 B TA 5% P F A SR B B B TR
ERES

TR ARBFEAEAIERAERNIE
BB QRS

Place of Proportion of ownership interests Profit allocated to
incorporation and voting rights held by non-controlling interests Accumulated
and principal non-controlling interests for the year ended non-controlling interests
Name of subsidiary place of business at 31 December 31 December at 31 December
RT=A=t-R BEt=A=t-A
MR ISR FERERfERR LEEARE R+=A=t+-AM
HEADER TEERNE AR RFEL A FERERNAE EHEZE S
018 2017 018 2017 018 2017
B-tf : g-nc [
RMB’ 000 RMB'000 RMB' 000 RMB'000
R ARETR R AREFT
Henan Chaowei PRC 40% 40% 37417 34384 469,767 43350
ARE 8
Anhui Chaowei PRC 25% 25% 8,403 7002 94,592 101,189
R hE
Jiangsu Yongda PRC 40% 40% 8,793 9759 107,777 98984
TRfKE hE
Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests (89,820) (34077) 254,026 382,303
BEHERERS
[ARIEER
KB
Total &t (35,207) 17,068 926,162 1014826

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group’s
subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests is set out
below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.
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59. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 59. XEMBE LT (&)
Henan Chaowei B
D18 2017
—E—+F
B’ 000 RMB’000
=% AREFT
Current assets mEEE 1,505,379 1,247,824
Non-current assets EMENEE 633,870 651,500
Current liabilities nBBE 687,678 357,080
Non-current liabilities EREAE 277,154 461,369
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ ZNA BB A FE(LHERE 704,650 648,525
Non-controlling interests PR M 7 469,767 432,350
018 2017
—F—tF
B’000 RMB’000
s ARBT T
Revenue WA 4,000,237 2,898,766
Expenses H 3,906,695 2,812,807
Profit and total comprehensive income FRAFE RN SRR
for the year 93,542 85,959
Profit and total comprehensive income IN/NETEZ % = W Y D
attributable to owners of the Company NGk 56,125 51,575
Profit and total comprehensive income FEVE AR M 2w FEAG A
attributable to non-controlling interests PEANIN L 37,417 34,384
Profit and total comprehensive income FRMBEREZERELE
for the year 93,542 85,959
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests B IR R AI RS - 120,000
Net cash inflows (outflows) from operating LEEBIRSRA (R L) F58
activities 295,127 (120,374)
Net cash outflows from investing activities KEEHBEERL FE (28,968) (69,430)
Net cash (outflows) inflows from financing MEEEIRS R R AERE
activities (61,938) 237,537
Net cash inflows RERNFEE 204,221 47,733
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Anhui Chaowei

2T N\FEt+-_A=t+—HItFE
59. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 59,

FENRBELR (&)
ZHEER

0 2017
—T—+tF
000 RMB'000
R ARETTT
Current assets MENEE 398,344 582,274
Non-current assets JERBEE 339,632 289,355
Current liabilities mEBE 237,682 362,915
Non-current liabilities FERBBEE 121,929 103,960
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 2R RI¥EA A EILERS 283,773 303,565
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M 2 94,592 101,189
0 2017
—tF
B’000 RMB'000
R ARETT
Revenue A 1,837,255 1,153,147
Expenses 53 1,803,644 1,125,138
Profit and total comprehensive income FAFBEREEREBEE
for the year 33,611 28,009
Profit and total comprehensive income NARIHEAR AELFE
attributable to owners of the Company FemissiasE 25,208 21,007
Profit and total comprehensive income FET2E B% e 25 PR AR FI)
attributable to non-controlling interests PENEET 8,403 7,002
Profit and total comprehensive income FERFE N2 S ARE
for the year 33,611 28,009
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BT IEERERAARE 15,000 =
Net cash inflows from operating activities KL EHIRERAFHE 95,070 15,652
Net cash outflows from investing activities KR EHESRLE FE (89,038) (93,410)
Net cash inflows from financing activities BEEEIR S RAFE 6,423 76,668
Net cash inflows (outflows) RemA i) FE 12,455 (1,090)
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59. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 59. XEMBE LT (&)
Jiangsu Yongda TLERIKE
018 2017
—E—+F
B'000 RMB' 000
=% AREFT
Current assets B E 387,703 306,010
Non-current assets EMENEE 197,997 198,880
Current liabilities nBBE 205,983 250,614
Non-current liabilities EREEE 110,276 6,818
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 2N B1#EA A FE(LHERS 161,664 148,474
Non-controlling interests JEIE PR RE RS 107,777 98,984
018 2017
—F—tF
B’000 RMB’000
= ARBT T
Revenue WA 2,347,124 1,662,523
Expenses H 2,325,141 1,638,126
Profit and total comprehensive income FERFE N2 R S A EE
for the year 21,983 24,397
Profit and total comprehensive income IN/NETEZ % = W Y D
attributable to owners of the Company Gk 13,190 14,638
Profit and total comprehensive income FEVE AR M 2w FEAG A
attributable to non-controlling interests Pl 8,793 9,759
Profit and total comprehensive income FRAMBEREZERELE
for the year 21,983 24,397
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests B IR E R AR S - 40,000
Net cash (outflows) inflows from operating LEERBIRE OR ) RAFRE
activities (40,600) 94,219
Net cash outflows from investing activities KB IR RL FE (9,400) (20,038)
Net cash inflows (outflows) from financing MEEEIRSRACRE ) E2E
activities 55,628 (63,921)
Net cash inflows RERMNFEE 5,628 10,260
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The following table summarizes the consolidated results, assets and

TR AKEREBET —A=1T—HLAEF

liabilities of the Group for the five years ended 31 December: ERGE%EE BERABBBEIME
0 0 016 0 014
T h -
B’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Results E
Revenue A 26,948,237 24,654,011 21,454,756 18,870,205 18,187,060
Profit before taxation FRBEAT A 577,709 635639 705,070 545,872 73355
Taxation FHIE (200,202) (163,755) (86,012) (57,866) (35,067)
Profit for the year FRHE 377,507 471,884 619,058 488,006 38,288
Profit/(loss) attributable to EErl G
non-controlling interests RE(EFE/ (E) (35,207) 17,068 115,262 156,337 67,243
Profit/(loss) attributable to ARREE AEG
owners of the Company FE,/ (EE) 412,714 454816 503,796 331,669 (28,955)
Assets BE
Non-current assets EREEE 7,087,013 6,449,075 5,160,473 4,828,265 4142232
Current assets nmEEE 10,616,385 10,556,702 7,825,684 5,938,855 5,303,859
Total assets BEE 17,703,398 17,005,777 12,986,157 10,767,120 9,446,091
Liabilities afE
Non-current liabilities EREBE (2,742,530) (3,343,865) (1,590,731) (2,032,748) (1,276,630)
Current liabilities nEAE (10,032,038) (8,974,472) (7,244,005) (5,418,840) (5,388,135)
Total liabilities FER=E (12,774,568) (12,318,337) (8,834,736) (7,451,588) (6,664,765)
Capital and reserves BERRHE
Equity attributable to owners of VN/NGIEZZE DN
the Company iR 4,002,668 3672614 3,302,964 2,584,640 2,206,270
Non-controlling interests R ER 926,162 1014826 848457 730,892 575,056
Total Equity fatEn 4,928,830 4,687,440 4,151,421 3,315,532 2,781,326
Current ratio (current assets/ RELE(ReEE,/
current liabilities) TEAE) 1.06 118 108 1.10 098
Gearing ratio (total bank BARG B R (MBRTT
borrowings, short term financing e GHREEE
notes, medium-term note, HHIZE . EES
corporate bond, convertible —Hﬁﬂ%i%&%ﬂ‘l;ﬁﬁ&
bonds and obligations under BIMER/BE
finance lease/total assets) 37% 37% 29% 31% 41%
The results of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2018 AEEHE-—Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFEF
and its assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2018 are set forth on pages EHEEREN-_ZE—N\E+-_A=+—HHE
80 to 239, and are presented on the basis set out in note 1 to the EHEEHIINFENEEF239H  IRBEAH

consolidated financial statements.
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